


Ypsilanti District Library 
YDL Board Meeting, August 23, 2023 6:30 pm, YDL – Superior Branch 

AGENDA 

 

AGENDA ITEM  Information     Discussion   Action 
Call to Order     X 
*Roll Call       Brian Steimel                 Terrence Williams                 Jean Winborn       
                        Patricia Horne McGee              Theresa M. Maddix      
                        Bethany Kennedy             Kristy Cooper      
      
Approval of the Agenda X  X  X 
Public Comment      
Presentation: Michigan CLASS, Kristen Angel, Senior Director, Investment Services X  X   
Presentation: Michigan Avenue Roof Investigation Report, Jared Lawrence, 
Terracon, Inc. X  X   

 
Consent Agenda      

A. Proposed Minutes from July 26, 2023 Regular meeting  X  X  X 
B. July 2023 Financials & Check Registers X  X  X 

      
Communications X     

      
Committee Reports      

A. Facilities   X  X   
B. Superior Township Planning X  X   

      
Director’s Report      

A. Operational Update X     
B. Performance Indicators X     
C. Departmental Reports X     
D. Significant Library News X     

      
New Business      

A. Consideration of resolutions related to the Michigan Avenue roof X  X  X 
B. Award of snow removal contract(s) X  X  X 
C. Consideration of the purchase of laptops for staff use X  X  X 
D. Consideration of proposed renewal agreements for HVAC maintenance X  X  X 
E. Resolution to join Michigan CLASS investment pool X  X  X 

      
Board Member Comments    X   
Adjournment X  X  X 



 

 

Minutes  

of  

Previous  

Meeting 



Ypsilanti District Library 
Board of Trustees Meeting 

Minutes, July 26, 2023 (Unapproved) 
 
CALL TO ORDER 
Vice-President Bethany Kennedy called the Regular Meeting to order at 6:41 p.m. 
 
Attendance 
Trustees Present: Bethany Kennedy, Theresa M. Maddix, Kristy Cooper, Terrence Williams and Jean 
Winborn formed a quorum.  Patricia Horne McGee arrived at 6:42pm just after the call to order.                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                            
 
Also present: Director Lisa Hoenig, Assistant Director Julianne Smith, Business Office Manager Andrew 
Hamilton, Facilities Manager Jim Reed, as well as the Superior Branch Manager Mary Garboden. 
 
APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA 
Trustee Maddix moved to approve the agenda and Trustee Cooper supported this motion.  
 
Vote: Ayes:    6 

Nays:     0 
Motion: Passed 
Absent:  1 

 
PUBLIC COMMENT 
None  
 
Presentation: Superior Usage Report – Mary Garboden, Branch Manager 
Mary Garboden, Branch Manager of the Superior library location, first discussed the physical state of the 
building and some remaining construction items. She then reviewed patron numbers, which show a 
growing trend of usage month to month. She pointed out specific areas and services within the branch 
that are getting higher levels of usage than expected. Mary also discussed programming from teen 
specific programming to intergenerational programming, external programming from select 
organizations at the location, and how funding from various grants are also impacting programming. She 
reviewed her staff composition as well as staffing levels and a desire to reconvene with staff at the close 
of the summer to review what programs and services were the most successful.   
   
Consent Agenda 
Trustee Winborn moved to approve consent agenda (June 28, 2023 Regular meeting and June 2023 
Financials and Check Registers).  Trustee Horne McGee supported this motion. 
 
Vote: Ayes:    6 

Nays:     0 
Motion: Passed 
Absent:  1 

 
Communication 
Director Hoenig pointed out a wrap-up infographic of the “MI Library is Now” project, which was used 
primarily during the pandemic recovery effort in the community.  This project allowed for the purchase 
of hardware, such as laptops, as well as provided programming materials. She also mentioned the entry 
of the Genesee District Library to become a full member of The Library Network (TLN). 
 



Ypsilanti District Library 
Board of Trustees Meeting 

Minutes, July 26, 2023 (Unapproved) 
 
 
Committee Reports 
Superior Planning Committee Report provided information about the physical state of the building and 
the remaining items being addressed through punch-lists as well as being observed and reported during 
the one-year warranty period from the substantial completion date.  Also, the official Certificate of 
Occupancy was received from the Superior Township Building Department. 
 
Facilities Committee Report provided information about the curtainwall window sealing project at 
Whittaker, which is progressing well.  The big news is the water damage assessment for Michigan 
Avenue.  Director Hoenig and Assistant Director Smith went into detail about the mitigation efforts 
progressing at that location.  They discussed the initial steps and that many of the future steps will 
depend on what is discovered in the near future.  The desire to provide timely and accurate information 
about the location was highlighted with the understanding that it is a step-by-step process.  Finally, 
possible service options were discussed and will be re-evaluated once more information about the 
damage and repairs are known. 
 
Report of the Library Director 
Director Hoenig advised about a new grant opportunity she just heard about today.  This is a Michigan 
Community Center Grant program for non-profits and public entities with funds of up to $2.5 million to 
be used for capital improvements on a space that is considered like a community center.  She feels this 
could be a possible opportunity for the Michigan Avenue location.  She advised that last summer phase 
1 of the water remediation work was completed.  Phase 2 addresses the entire perimeter of the 
building’s foundation.  Director Hoenig advised this work and additional building preparation could be 
written into a grant proposal.  She will meet with the space planners to identify what other work may 
get us closer to being able to build onto the facility.   
 
Director Hoenig also discussed the window sealing work being currently performed at Whittaker.  During 
today’s most recent rain storm a new leak was identified in the front of the building, as well as several 
leaks in areas not yet addressed by the sealing work.   
 
Director Hoenig also briefly touched on the Building Monitor position being posted and is encouraging 
applications.  She mentioned the understanding that the Statistical Dashboard would be available for 
the August Board meeting.  Finally, she advised that Trustee Terrance Williams had an idea about 
Washtenaw County assisting with adding some hotspots and perhaps making some of them 
permanently located at some outreach sites.  This could be potentially funded by the County for a two-
year period. 
 
 
 
Old Business 
None 
 
New Business 

A. Award of bid for Whittaker roof piers repair project 
 

YPSILANTI DISTRICT LIBRARY 



Ypsilanti District Library 
Board of Trustees Meeting 

Minutes, July 26, 2023 (Unapproved) 
 

 
RESOLUTION NO. 2023-24 

 
July 26, 2023 

 
RESOLUTION TO AWARD A CONTRACT FOR WHITTAKER ROOF SEALING WORK TO 

INDUSTRIAL SERVICES INC. 
___________________ 

 
Whereas, the Library maintains a Capital Asset Replacement Fund to provide for higher-cost building 
maintenance and repairs necessary from time to time, and 
 
Whereas, following roof sealing work performed in 2022 water was still leaking through the ceiling 
tiles in one area at the Whittaker Road Library, and  
 
Whereas, Terracon Consultants conducted an investigation to determine the cause of the leaks, and  
 
Whereas, Terracon prepared preliminary scope documents for work to better seal the roof piers found 
to need reinforcement, and  
 
Whereas, the contractor hired in 2022, Industrial Services, Inc. (IS1), has submitted a proposal that 
includes a credit for prior work found to be insufficient, and  
 
Whereas, the ISI proposal has been vetted by Terracon, Now Therefore 
 
IT IS RESOLVED BY THE YPSILANTI DISTRICT LIBRARY BOARD that: 
 
The Library Director is authorized to engage Industrial Services, Inc. as described in the attached cost 
estimate dated July 21, 2023, for $10,900. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that 
 
The Capital Asset Replacement fund shall be used for this project. 
 
OFFERED BY: Trustee Maddix 
SUPPORTED BY: Trustee Winborn 
YES: 6            NO: 0           ABSENT: 1        VOTE: 6-0 Passed 

 
B. Consideration of a proposal to replace four (4) HVAC zone controllers at Whittaker 

 
 

YPSILANTI DISTRICT LIBRARY 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 2023-25R 
 



Ypsilanti District Library 
Board of Trustees Meeting 

Minutes, July 26, 2023 (Unapproved) 
 

July 26, 2023 
 

RESOLUTION TO AUTHORIZE HVAC ZONE CONTROLLER REPLACEMENTS AT 
WHITTAKER ROAD 
___________________ 

 
Whereas, the Whittaker Road heating, ventilating and air conditioning system is 20 years old and its 
aging parts are beginning to fail, and  
 
Whereas, several zone controllers in the Administrative wing recently failed, creating unacceptable 
climate conditions for YDL staff and server room equipment, and 
 
Whereas, Campbell, Inc. has provided a proposal to replace and program the failed zone controllers, 
Now Therefore 
 
IT IS RESOLVED BY THE YPSILANTI DISTRICT LIBRARY BOARD that: 
 
The attached work authorization agreement from Campbell, Inc. to replace the specified zone 
controllers at Whittaker Road at a cost of $7,947.00 is approved.  
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that: 
 
The Capital Asset Replacement Fund will be used for this project. 
 
OFFERED BY: Trustee Cooper 
SUPPORTED BY: Trustee Winborn 
YES: 6            NO: 0           ABSENT: 1        VOTE: 6-0 Passed 

 
C. Consideration of a revision to Whittaker pendant light replacement proposal 

 
YPSILANTI DISTRICT LIBRARY 

 
RESOLUTION NO. 2023-26 

 
July 26, 2023 

 
RESOLUTION TO APPROVE A REVISION TO THE PENDANT LIGHTING UPGRADE AT 

WHITTAKER  
 

___________________ 
 
Whereas, the Ypsilanti District Library Board approved Resolution 2023-19 to upgrade stack and 
pendant lighting at Whittaker to LED, and 
 



Ypsilanti District Library 
Board of Trustees Meeting 

Minutes, July 26, 2023 (Unapproved) 
 
Whereas, following approval, a sample of the specified pendant fixture was acquired and determined 
to be unsuitable, and  
 
Whereas, Enlighten has proposed additional solutions which will overcome the hurdles discovered, 
but at an additional cost, Now Therefore, 
 
IT IS RESOLVED BY THE YPSILANTI DISTRICT LIBRARY BOARD that the following pendant 
light option from the attached proposal is approved: 
 

� “PendA” for an increased cost of $1,955 
 -OR- 
� “PendB” for an increased cost of $10,156 

 
OFFERED BY: Trustee Winborn 
SUPPORTED BY: Trustee Horne McGee 
YES: 6            NO: 0           ABSENT: 1        VOTE: 6-0 Passed 
 

D. Award of bid for window washing at Whittaker 
 

YPSILANTI DISTRICT LIBRARY 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 2023-27 
 

July 26, 2023 
 

RESOLUTION TO AUTHORIZE WINDOW WASHING AT THE WHITTAKER ROAD 
LIBRARY  

 
___________________ 

 
 
Whereas, the windows at the Whittaker Road Library have never been professionally cleaned, and  
 
Whereas, two quotations were solicited, and the low bid is recommended, Now Therefore 
 
IT IS RESOLVED BY THE YPSILANTI DISTRICT LIBRARY BOARD that: 
 
A one-time window washing contract is awarded to Allied for a total cost of $7,450. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that: 
 
The Capital Asset Replacement Fund shall be used to pay for this work. 
 
OFFERED BY: Trustee Williams 
SUPPORTED BY: Trustee Maddix 

X 



Ypsilanti District Library 
Board of Trustees Meeting 

Minutes, July 26, 2023 (Unapproved) 
 
YES: 6            NO: 0           ABSENT: 1        VOTE: 6-0 Passed 

 
E. Resolution to authorize roof gutter sealing at Michigan Avenue 

 
YPSILANTI DISTRICT LIBRARY 

 
RESOLUTION NO. 2023-28 

 
July 26, 2023 

 
RESOLUTION TO AUTHORIZE ROOF GUTTER SEALING AT MICHIGAN AVENUE 

___________________ 
 
Whereas, the Michigan Avenue library suffered a catastrophic flood on July 1, and  
 
Whereas, the roof drains were overwhelmed by torrential rain and water infiltrated the building, and 
 
Whereas, the roof was inspected and a potential design flaw was discovered which may have 
contributed to the disaster, and 
 
Whereas, Bloom Roofing has provided a proposal to seal the roof gutters, preventing future overflow 
into the building from this source, Now Therefore 
 
IT IS RESOLVED BY THE YPSILANTI DISTRICT LIBRARY BOARD that: 
 
The attached proposal from Bloom Roofing to seal the gutters on the Michigan Avenue roof, at a cost 
of $8,920 is approved.  
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that: 
 
The Capital Asset Replacement Fund will be used for this project. 
 
OFFERED BY: Trustee McGee 
SUPPORTED BY: Trustee Winborn 
YES: 6            NO: 0           ABSENT: 1        VOTE: 6-0 Passed 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
BOARD MEMBER COMMENTS 

Trustee Comment 
Trustee Cooper No Comment 



Ypsilanti District Library 
Board of Trustees Meeting 

Minutes, July 26, 2023 (Unapproved) 
 

Trustee Steimel Absent 
Trustee Winborn Wanted to thank all the staff for the daily work they do, and especially thank 

them for dealing with the flooding at Michigan Avenue. 
Trustee Maddix Felt the July 4th parade was awesome, and it was cool to see crowds of 

people cheer for the bookmobile.  Thanked Joy, Julianne and Lisa specifically 
for dealing with the Michigan Ave. flooding, as well as a general thank you to 
staff for work they are doing. 

Trustee Williams Pleased that the library comes up in conversations in the community in 
positive ways.  He has heard many a positive comments on the programming 
being offered. 

Trustee Kennedy Expressed the “gut-punch” feeling she had when viewing pictures of the 
Michigan Ave. flooding.  Heartfelt thank you to staff. 

Trustee Horne McGee No Comment 
 
 

Adjournment 
Trustee Horne McGee moved to adjourn at 7:50 p.m.  Trustee Winborn seconded this motion.   

Vote: Ayes:    6 
Nays:     0 
Motion: Passed 
Absent:  1 



 

 

 

 

Financial 

Report 



FYE 11/30/18  
ACTUAL

FYE 11/30/19  
ACTUAL

FY 11/30/20   
ACTUAL

FY 11/30/21   
ACTUAL

FY 11/30/22   
ACTUAL

FYTD     
7/31/2023

Current FYTD 
Variance from 

11/30/22
Assets:
Total Cash & Cash Equivalents 2,377,714       2,596,924       2,940,888       3,413,908       3,497,836       3,302,987       (194,849)

Receivables & Other assets 49,282            98,153            84,370            108,670          132,113          108,949          (23,165)

Total Assets 2,426,996       2,695,077       3,025,258       3,522,578       3,629,949       3,411,935       (218,014)

Liabilities 145,758          85,577            313,638          344,511          215,952          281,850          65,898

Composition of Fund Balance
Reserved:
          Yoder Memorial 3,252              3,252              3,252              3,252              3,252              3,252              0
               Current YTD -                     
          Yates Memorial 3,357              3,357              3,357              3,357              3,357              3,357              0
               Current YTD -                     
Designated:
          Improvement Fund 1,102,434       352,434          352,434          352,434          352,434          -                     (352,434)
               Current YTD--net of revenues -                     
          Working Capital 500,000          500,000          500,000          500,000          500,000          500,000          0
               Current YTD -                     
Designated: MTT settlements
Designated: TEEN ZONE
               Current YTD
Unreserved/Undesignated 696,080          272,195          1,753,090       1,852,576       2,319,024       2,554,955       235,931
               Current YTD (23,885)        1,478,262     99,487          466,448         235,931        68,522          (167,409)

Total Fund Balance 2,281,238       2,609,500       2,711,620       3,178,067       3,413,998       3,130,085       (283,913)

Total Liabilities & Fund Balance 2,426,996     2,695,077     3,025,258     3,522,578      3,629,950     3,411,935     (218,014)

Ypsilanti District Library
Balance Sheet
July 31, 2023
General Fund



Ypsilanti District Library
Period  Ending 7/31/23  (66.7% of Year)
General Fund

ACCT #
FY 11/30/20    

ACTUAL
FY 11/30/21    

ACTUAL
FY 11/30/22   

ACTUAL

Amended FY   
2022-2023  
BUDGET

YTD 7/31/23 
ACTUAL

              
REMAINING 

BUDGET

YTD AS A 
% OF 

BUDGET

Total Revenues 5,568,866        5,918,352        6,086,564        6,211,643        4,850,286        1,361,357         78.1%

Expenditures
Dept 100 Administrative 2,163,719        2,132,617        2,357,850        2,936,006        1,783,567        1,089,084         60.7%
Dept 200 Michigan Ave. 555,976           542,948           619,718           740,892           472,188           269,032            63.7%
Dept 300 Outreach 82,140             92,558             103,158           311,340           201,929           104,368            64.9%
Dept 400 Superior Township 158,483           162,269           230,011           492,848           293,064           191,279            59.5%
Dept 500 Whittaker Rd 1,089,344        1,080,805        1,156,233        1,264,450        793,497           446,904            62.8%
Dept 600 Donations 12,312             21,629             52,305             -                       69,918             (69,918)             NA
Dept 700  Grants 7,405              19,079           31,359           -                      15,167           (15,167)           

Total 4,069,379        4,051,904        4,550,633        5,745,536        3,629,330        2,015,582         63.2%

Net Revenue Over Expenditures 1,499,486        1,866,447        1,535,931        466,107           1,220,956        

Sale of Assets -                       -                       -                       -                       
Board Designation of Funds (1,150,000)       (1,400,000)       (1,400,000)       (1,152,434)       
Fund balance - beginning of period 2,652,675        3,002,161        3,468,609        3,604,539        3,604,539        

Fund Balance - end of period 3,002,161        3,468,609        3,604,539        4,070,646        3,673,061        



Ypsilanti District Library
General Fund

Period Ending 7/31/2023
(66.7% of Year)

ACCT # ACCOUNT NAME
FY 11/30/20     

ACTUAL
FY 11/30/21     

ACTUAL
FY 11/30/22   

ACTUAL

Original FY 
2022-2023   
BUDGET

Amended FY     
2022-2023  
BUDGET

YTD 7/31/23 
ACTUAL

YTD AS A % OF 
BUDGET

Revenue
403.000 Superior Township Tax Levy 885,210 939,410 998,342 1,066,617 1,066,617 919,736 86.2%
425.000 City of YpsilantiTax Levy 836,671 866,352 889,936 928,809 928,809 322,007 34.7%
425.075 PPT Reimbursement 16,119 22,407 27,533 20,000 20,000 533 2.7%
440.000 Ypsilanti Township Tax Levy 3,486,095 3,653,122 3,707,057 3,869,999 3,869,999 3,364,073 86.9%
441.000 Renaissance Zone Reimb 66,633 68,165 67,905 65,000 65,000 0 0.0%
443.000 State Aid Direct 32,931 35,678 43,256 45,084 45,084 22,158 49.1%
447.000 State Aid Indirect 33,497 36,286 43,254 45,084 45,084 22,158 49.1%
500.500 Operational Grant Revenue 31,500
500.600 Talk Grant Revenue 30,629 47,787 41,774 35,000 35,000 38,593 110.3%
657.000 Lost Books/Misc. 22,485 7,187 6,777 6,000 6,000 4,727 78.8%
657.100 Smart Cards - Printing & Copies 11,776 8,765 22,883 20,000 20,000 21,750 108.7%
657.600 Proctor Fees 429 263 574 0 0 45
661.000 Penal Fines County 84,478 113,205 83,080 83,000 83,000 0 0.0%
662.100 Community room rentals 575 0 1,250 2,500 2,500 1,900 76.0%
679.000 Donations/Misc. 1,063 1,360 2,045 2,500 2,500 7,963 318.5%
681.000 Donations Designated 5,100 0 0 0 0 0.0
681.080 Donations/Memorials 4,555 7,170 7,736 600 600 2,684 447.3%
687.000 Interest/Checking 1,037 457 1,383 950 950 5,013 527.7%
687.010 Interest/Savings 6,175 5,226 3,154 6,500 6,500 35,073 539.6%
688.000 Interest/Endowment 0 6,227 0 0 0 0
689.000 Dividends-MML 4,219 4,312 7,460 6,000 6,000 6,490 108.2%
690.000 Dividend Revenue Endowment 7,220 9,045 8,161 8,000 8,000 13,366 167.1%
691.000 CARES act Credit 0 6,400 0 0 0 0

Total Revenue 5,536,898 5,838,824 5,963,558 6,211,643 6,211,643 4,819,768 77.6%



Ypsilanti District Library
General Fund

Period Ending 7/31/2023
(66.7% of Year)

ACCT # ACCOUNT NAME
FY 11/30/20     

ACTUAL
FY 11/30/21     

ACTUAL
FY 11/30/22   

ACTUAL

Original FY 
2022-2023   
BUDGET

Amended FY     
2022-2023  
BUDGET

YTD 7/31/23 
ACTUAL

YTD AS A % OF 
BUDGET

Expenditures
Dept 100 Administrative

702.000 Salary Wages 657,068 685,029 758,009 839,879 882,382 550,499 62.4%
702.100 Professional/Accounting 5,080 7,445 8,700 9,000 9,000 6,890 76.6%
702.150 Bank Fees 3,176 1,888 2,494 5,400 5,400 1,640 30.4%
702.900 Salary/Subs 3,327 1,571 5,987 15,600 24,971 14,387 57.6%
705.000 Employee Recognition Awards 336 804 689 750 750 541 72.1%
710.000 Paychex Payroll Service 11,166 12,115 13,050 14,800 19,800 16,045 81.0%
715.000 Employer Payroll Tax 144,791 148,792 164,634 205,360 202,897 134,770 66.4%
715.100 ACA Taxes Paid by employer 295 331 555 740 740 185 25.0%
718.000 MERS Defined Contribution 90,691 91,780 99,768 126,306 120,409 60,189 50.0%
719.000 FSA Admin Fee 707 729 624 758 758 400 52.8%
727.000 Office Supplies 26,412 24,088 38,242 32,400 32,400 29,158 90.0%
727.050 CARES act Exp 95 6,305 0
727.200 Supplies-Facility 13,820 12,957 18,696 31,900 31,900 12,637 39.6%
752.000 MML/Building Insurance 64,450 66,589 74,515 78,986 77,332 77,332 100.0%
753.000 MML/Workers Comp 7,204 9,744 10,202 10,875 10,875 6,714 61.7%
754.000 Health Insurance 361,059 394,266 380,631 470,886 470,886 304,307 64.6%
756.000 Delta Dental 34,311 34,322 32,832 36,383 36,383 23,169 63.7%
757.000 Employee Assistance Program 579 0 0 0 0 0
758.000 Life Insurance 3,969 4,316 4,061 4,183 4,183 3,175 75.9%
759.000 Vision Service Plan 8,856 9,074 8,907 8,963 8,963 7,228 80.6%
762.000 STD/LTD  (Disability Insurance) 11,403 10,594 12,301 14,235 14,235 12,637 88.8%
769.000 Printing & Publishing 12,840 18,325 18,779 20,900 20,900 13,029 62.3%
769.050 Classified Advertising 460 432 733 1,000 1,000 220 22.0%
774.050 Digital Collection 175,379 209,154 246,754 294,765 294,765 171,537 58.2%
774.100 Data Bases 21,988 24,948 28,073 50,000 50,000 26,324 52.6%
774.800 System Wide DVDs 2,959 493 61 500 500 53 10.6%
774.900 All Materials Processing 15,899 21,270 25,603 35,000 35,000 15,185 43.4%
774.950 Play Kits 1,447 2,590 2,975 5,000 5,000 2,587 51.7%
774.975 Library of Things 0 2,876 8,799 13,000 13,000 4,066 31.3%
801.000 Major Events 6,768 2,805 9,143 17,390 17,390 3,950 22.7%
801.500 Learning Never Gets Old 2,246 1,999 2,999 0 0 0
802.000 Mileage/Travel Reimbursement 289 775 4,754 5,000 6,500 3,561 54.8%
804.000 Workshops/Training 4,148 2,422 3,613 4,500 4,500 2,485 55.2%
805.000 Memberships & Dues 5,675 5,685 5,603 6,750 6,750 5,788 85.7%
806.000 Talk Grant Expenses 24,342 23,383 40,362 35,000 35,000 17,102 48.9%
807.000 Operational Grant Expenditure 10,000 12,755 127.5%
810.000 Capital Outlay - Buildings 600 5,197 650 5,000 5,000 2,755 55.1%
810.100 Capital Outlay - Improvements 1,300 3,500 0 2,400 2,400 0 0.0%
811.100 Capital Outlay - Technology 0 0 0 120,000 120,000 0 0.0%
812.000 Capital Outlay - Furnishings 0 268 1,100 5,000 5,000 1,831 36.6%
840.000 Repair & Main Bldg 0 -5,825 0 0 2,805 WH Flood
850.000 Automation - Technology 183,693 128,433 110,254 139,395 139,395 92,404 66.3%
850.100 Telecommunications -19,543 6,243 7,003 7,983 7,983 14,458 181.1%
850.200 ILS Contract 62,573 59,088 64,631 64,630 63,125 63,125 100.0%
850.500 Software Subscription 14,762 21,823 35,693 35,722 40,722 30,999 76.1%
890.000 The Library Network 2,796 2,796 2,796 4,500 4,500 0 0.0%
928.000 Postage 19,334 20,112 18,912 22,447 22,447 10,256 45.7%
965.000 Auditing Service 7,425 7,875 8,100 8,325 8,325 8,325 100.0%
975.000 Legal 6,422 5,280 11,191 10,000 10,000 162 1.6%
975.500 Legal - Negotiations 0 0 7,620 0 0 0
980.000 Professional/Contractual 154,793 27,087 54,649 27,740 27,740 7,185 25.9%
980.500 Branding Costs 1,188 2,201 894 2,500 3,250 3,945 121.4%
981.500 Lost Book Expense 3,749 1,094 1,646 6,300 6,300 2,690 42.7%
982.000 MTT Charge Back City 208 471 48 2,000 2,000 42 2.1%
983.000 MTT Charge Back TWP 200 1,070 3,873 7,500 7,500 878 11.7%
983.100 MTT Charge Back-Superior Twp 985 184 1,467 5,000 5,000 913 18.3%
984.050 Contributions/Endowment 0 750 250 33.3%

Total 2,163,719 2,132,617 2,357,850 2,872,651 2,936,006 1,783,567 60.7%



Ypsilanti District Library
General Fund

Period Ending 7/31/2023
(66.7% of Year)

ACCT # ACCOUNT NAME
FY 11/30/20     

ACTUAL
FY 11/30/21     

ACTUAL
FY 11/30/22   

ACTUAL

Original FY 
2022-2023   
BUDGET

Amended FY     
2022-2023  
BUDGET

YTD 7/31/23 
ACTUAL

YTD AS A % OF 
BUDGET

Dept 200 Michigan Ave.
702.000 Salaries 396,590 402,866 423,056 506,014 501,189 324,219 64.7%
702.800 Salaries-Pages 4,044 3,463 4,784 9,360 5,347 3,348 62.6%
771.000 Adult Books & Processing 25,084 22,288 18,713 22,100 22,100 11,357 51.4%
772.000 Youth Books & Processing 14,651 13,282 16,552 15,200 15,200 9,170 60.3%
776.000 Periodicals - Adult 2,979 2,802 4,395 3,000 3,000 545 18.2%
776.050 Periodicals - Youth 0 0 0 100 100 0 0.0%
778.000 Adult Audio/Visual 6,153 5,441 4,852 5,600 5,600 3,329 59.4%
779.000 Youth Audio/Visual 2,993 2,413 2,743 2,050 2,050 901 44.0%
801.500 Learning Never Gets Old 0 0 0 1,250 1,250 1,074 85.9%
802.200 Parking 3,600 3,600 3,600 3,900 3,900 3,600 92.3%
810.000 Capital Outlay - Buildings 18,869 10,000 68,081 29,000 29,000 18,357 63.3%
812.000 Capital Outlay - Furnishings 6,992 3,384 0 4,000 4,510 4,510 100.0%
840.000 Repair & Maintenance - Building 13,803 16,584 17,990 20,000 27,000 25,393 94.0%
840.025 Campbell Maint Contract 18,754 12,672 12,672 14,172 14,172 9,504 67.1%
840.050 Snow Removal/ Lawn Care 6,078 7,259 7,778 11,335 12,335 5,267 42.7%
900.000 Programs-Adult 1,625 1,462 1,772 3,000 3,000 414 13.8%
901.000 Programs-Youth 2,659 1,762 606 2,500 2,500 2,288 91.5%
940.000 Phone 4,535 4,553 2,631 4,695 4,695 1,545 32.9%
943.000 Natural Gas 3,624 3,946 4,838 5,777 5,777 3,494 60.5%
947.000 DTE - Electric 15,236 18,309 18,797 20,437 20,437 11,419 55.9%
949.000 Ypsilanti Comm Utilities Auth 7,707 6,864 5,858 7,290 7,290 3,977 54.5%
980.000 Professional Contractual (Security) 0 0 0 50,440 50,440 28,476 56.5%

Total 555,976 542,948 619,718 741,220 740,892 472,188 63.7%

Dept 300 Outreach
702.000 Salaries 69,159 70,870 77,276 244,241 249,284 156,940 63.0%
775.000 Library Materials 5,303 5,084 5,857 5,250 5,250 1,730 33.0%
801.500 Learning Never Gets Old 0 0 0 3,000 3,000 797 26.6%
811.000 Captial Outlay Vehicle 0 0 0 35,000 35,000 35,000 100.0%
840.000 Repair & Maintenance 6,017 14,636 13,986 11,993 11,993 5,037 42.0%
943.000 Fuel 1,661 1,967 6,040 6,813 6,813 2,425 35.6%

Total 82,140 92,558 103,158 306,297 311,340 201,929 64.9%



Ypsilanti District Library
General Fund

Period Ending 7/31/2023
(66.7% of Year)

ACCT # ACCOUNT NAME
FY 11/30/20     

ACTUAL
FY 11/30/21     

ACTUAL
FY 11/30/22   

ACTUAL

Original FY 
2022-2023   
BUDGET

Amended FY     
2022-2023  
BUDGET

YTD 7/31/23 
ACTUAL

YTD AS A % OF 
BUDGET

Dept 400 Superior Township
702.000 Salaries 146,792 149,424 211,331 358,053 351,867 231,988 65.9%
702.800 Salary/Pages 0 0 0 9,360 3,874 1,960 50.6%
771.000 Adult Books & Processing 0 0 0 15,550 15,550 5,221 33.6%
772.000 Youth Books & Processing 0 0 0 12,400 12,400 5,143 41.5%
775.000 Library Materials 5,842 6,553 7,388 0 0 0
776.000 Periodicals 0 0 0 500 500 75 15.0%
778.000 Audio/Visual 0 0 0 1,550 1,550 571 36.9%
801.500 Learning Never Gets Old 0 0 0 750 750 180 24.0%
810.000 Cap Outlay Building 0 0 3,000 3,000 1,795 59.8%
810.100 Cap Outlay Improvements 0 0 0
840.000 Repair & Maintenance 1,007 1,179 2,603 5,000 6,650 1,969 29.6%
840.025 Campbell Maint Contract 0 0 0 6,600 6,600 4,983 75.5%
840.050 Snow Removal & Lawn Care 980 980 2,980 14,000 23,450 14,749 62.9%
900.000 Programs - adult 543 580 267 600 600 350 58.4%
901.000 Programs - Youth 468 624 655 600 600 539 89.9%
902.000 Art Purchases 9,077
940.000 Phone 1,134 1,138 782 4,156 4,156 1,360 32.7%
943.000 Natural Gas 659 650 1,097 11,636 11,636 2,270 19.5%
947.000 DTE - Electric 960 1,044 1,299 10,061 10,061 1,807 18.0%
949.000 Ypsilanti Comm Utilities Auth 98 97 1,609 5,527 5,527 2,265 41.0%
980.000 Professional/Contractural 0 0 0 25,000 25,000 15,840 63.4%

Total 158,483 162,269 230,011 484,343 492,848 293,064 59.5%



Ypsilanti District Library
General Fund

Period Ending 7/31/2023
(66.7% of Year)

ACCT # ACCOUNT NAME
FY 11/30/20     

ACTUAL
FY 11/30/21     

ACTUAL
FY 11/30/22   

ACTUAL

Original FY 
2022-2023   
BUDGET

Amended FY     
2022-2023  
BUDGET

YTD 7/31/23 
ACTUAL

YTD AS A % OF 
BUDGET

DEPT 500 WHITTAKER RD
702.000 Salaries 701,249 722,800 749,625 782,222 804,271 519,498 64.6%
702.800 Salaries-Pages 15,483 19,698 28,923 37,440 37,440 22,522 60.2%
771.000 Adult Books 41,293 41,604 44,654 41,400 41,400 24,465 59.1%
772.000 Youth Books 23,641 27,802 29,974 29,000 29,000 17,310 59.7%
776.000 Periodicals - Adult 5,239 4,405 5,717 5,000 5,000 1,564 31.3%
776.050 Periodicals - Youth 759 745 617 800 800 0 0.0%
778.000 Adult Audio/Visual 15,746 10,284 8,739 10,700 10,700 3,704 34.6%
779.000 Youth Audio/Visual 4,159 4,236 4,157 3,300 3,300 1,323 40.1%
810.000 Cap Outlay Building 3,880 12,515 22,620 59,245 59,245 35,637 60.2%
810.100 Cap Outlay Improvements 0 0 0 0 0 0.0%
840.000 Repair & Maintenance - Building 39,729 22,271 54,658 27,300 27,300 18,768 68.7%
840.025 Campbell Maint Contract 42,797 42,797 41,649 43,705 43,705 28,654 65.6%
840.050 Snow Removal/Lawn Care 16,241 16,199 18,348 25,600 27,600 14,196 51.4%
900.000 Programs - Adult 4,206 3,765 2,382 4,200 4,200 2,055 48.9%
901.000 Programs - Youth 5,697 6,659 6,647 13,000 13,000 9,194 70.7%
903.000 Equipment Maintenance 820 1,564 0 3,000 3,000 0 0.0%
940.000 Phone 9,070 9,105 5,277 10,063 10,063 3,276 32.6%
943.000 Natural Gas 24,227 30,040 31,451 31,680 31,680 18,162 57.3%
947.000 DTE - Electric 92,512 99,414 96,182 105,364 105,364 69,015 65.5%
949.000 Ypsilanti Comm Utilities Auth 4,596 4,902 4,612 7,382 7,382 4,156 56.3%
980.000 Professional/Contractual 38,000 0 0 NA

Total 1,089,344 1,080,805 1,156,233 1,240,401 1,264,450 793,497 62.8%

Dept 600 Donations
Revenue:

Total Revenue 18,888 37,195
Total Donated revenue 18,888 37,195 106,336 12,518 NA

Expenditures:
Total Expenditures 12,312 21,629
Total Expenditures 12,312 21,629 52,305 69,918 NA

Dept 700  Grants
Revenue

Total Grant Revenue 13,080 42,333
    Total Revenue 13,080 42,333 16,670 18,000 NA

Expenditures
Total Expenditures 7,405 19,079

     Total Expenditures 7,405 19,079 31,359 15,167 NA
Total Net -- restricted for future 5,675 23,254 -14,689 2,833 NA
IMPROVEMENTS/Asset Sales

685.000 Sale of assets 0 NA
810.100 Approved projects-Improvements fund
850.100 Technology improvements NA

Total Other Revenue 0 0 0 0 NA
Total Revenue 5,568,866 5,918,352 6,086,564 6,211,643 6,211,643 4,850,286
Total Expenditures 4,069,379 4,051,904 4,550,633 5,644,912 5,745,536 3,629,330 63.2%

Net Revenue Over Expenditures 1,499,486 1,866,447 1,535,931 566,731 466,107 1,220,956
Fund Balance Beginning of Year 2,652,675 2,752,161 3,218,609 3,454,539 3,454,539 3,454,539
Board Designation -1,400,000 -1,400,000 -1,300,000 0 0 -1,152,434
Ending Fund Balance 2,752,161 3,218,609 3,454,539 4,021,270 3,920,646 3,523,061



FYE 11/30/18  
ACTUAL

FYE 11/30/19  
ACTUAL

FY 11/30/20   
ACTUAL

FY 11/30/21   
ACTUAL

FY 11/30/22   
ACTUAL

FYTD     
7/31/2023

Current FYTD 
Variance from 

11/30/22
Assets:
Cash and Current Assets 399,522         1,481,745      2,807,370      3,503,051      1,356,163      1,654,180      298,018
Total Assets 399,522         1,481,745      2,807,370      3,503,051      1,356,163      1,654,180      298,018

Liabilities -                     -                     -                     13,454           468,231         320,000         (148,231)

Fund Balance 399,522         1,478,745      2,665,015      3,489,597      887,932         1,334,180      446,249
Total Liabilities & Fund Balance 399,522       1,478,745    2,665,015    3,503,051      1,356,163    1,654,180    298,018

Ypsilanti District Library
Balance Sheet
July 31, 2023

Capital Asset Replacement Fund



Ypsilanti District Library
Capital Expenses
Period  Ending 7/31/23  (66.7% of Year)

ACCT # ACCOUNT NAME
FY 11/30/20   

ACTUAL
FY 11/30/21   

ACTUAL
FY 11/30/22   

ACTUAL
YTD 7/31/23 

ACTUAL
Revenue
Dept 400 Superior Construction

683.800 Superior Library Designated 54,603           857,193         450,871         76,376              
688.000 Interest 4,986             1,181             97                  5,212                

Other departments -                        
-                   -                   

Total 59,589         858,374       450,968        81,588             
Transfer from Operating Fund 1,400,000 1,400,000 1,300,000 1,504,868         

Expenditures
Dept 200 Michigan Aveneue Projects

980.000 Prof/Contractual 16,860           97,989           28,116              

Subtotal -                     16,860           97,989           28,116              
Dept 400 Superior Construction

702.150 Bank Fees -                     620                1,503             450                   
752.500 Insurance - Bldrs Rsk 8,564             -                        
780.000 Opening Day Collection 194,247         9,768                
801.000 Major Events 3,544             7,744             2,191                
812.000 Capital Outlay - Eq/Furn 208,175         36,712              
850.000 Automation - Technology 91,123           18,225              
910.000 Site Development 106,263         32,064           -                     -                        
943.000 Fuel/Natural Gas 1,482             -                        
975.000 Legal/Attorney 10,944           16,797           720                -                        
980.000 Prof/Contractual 12,709           21,763           -                     -                        
981.000 Architect Fees 93,110           275,895         142,813         (32,314)             
955.100 General Contractor 46,274           655,988         3,167,412      921,326            
985.300 Outside Contract Expense -                     42,875           42,877              

Subtotal 269,300         1,006,671      3,866,658      999,236            
Dept 500 Whittaker Projects

980.000 Prof/Contractual -                     410,262         387,987         112,855            

Subtotal -                   410,262       387,987        112,855           
TOTAL Capital Expenditures 269,300         1,433,793      4,352,633      1,140,207         

Total Revenue Over Expenditures 1,190,289      824,581         (2,601,665)     446,249            
Beginning Fund Balance 1,474,716    2,665,005    3,489,586    887,932           
Ending Fund Balance 2,665,005      3,489,586      887,930         1,334,180         



Capital Asset Replacement Fund
Composition of Fund Balance

Superior Project Other Total
2019 opening balance 11/30/18 0 399,522 Project Summary Through:

Board Assigned 1/23/2019 1,150,000 7/31/2023 7/31/2023
Balance 11/30/2019 1,150,000 331,745 1,481,745 Superior Other

Board 4,852,434 2,234,179
2020 Capital Campaign 1,457,040

Board Assigned 1/22/2020 1,150,000 250,000 Future pledges 320,000
Capital Campaign & Int prior to 11/30/20 66,110 Expense -6,141,863 -1,067,609

Expenses Paid prior to 11/30/20 -269,300 -13,540 487,610 1,166,570
Balance 11/30/2020 2,096,810 568,205 2,665,015

2021
Board Assigned 1/27/2021 1,200,000 200,000

Capital Campaign & Int 11/30/2021 858,374
YTD Expenditures 11/30/2021 -1,006,670 -427,122

Balance 11/30/2021 3,148,514 341,083 3,489,597

2022
Board Assigned 1/26/2022 1,000,000 300,000

YTD Capital Campaign & Int 11/30/2022 450,968
YTD Expenditures 11/30/2022 -3,866,658 -485,975

Balance 11/30/2022 732,824 155,108 887,932

2023
Board Assigned 352,434 1,152,434

YTD Capital Campaign & Int 7/31/2023 81,588
YTD Expenditures 7/31/2023 -999,236 -140,972

Balance 7/31/2023 167,610 1,166,570 1,334,181
320,000 future pledges

1,654,181



Ypsilanti District Library

Check Register Report

Check 
Date

Check 
Number

Status
Amount

BANK: 

Vendor 
Number

Vendor Name Check Description

ANN ARBOR 1Page:

12:20 pmTime:

08/01/2023Date:

Void/Stop 
Date

Reconcile 
Date

ANN ARBOR Checks

 372.35LEANN DEBROCK LEDEPrinted07/05/23 75912 PP#16  7/6/23 live check 

 9,461.78ENLIGHTEN SOLUTIONS LLCESLPrinted07/05/23 75913 concrete bas for locker-MA 

 1,980.00A PRODUCTION BUILDING 
SOLUTION

APBSPrinted07/07/23 75914 June 2023 coverage 

 200.00SARA ADDINGTON SARARPrinted07/07/23 75915 chair yoga  #2 of 2 

 138.00ALLSTAR ALARM LLCAALLCPrinted07/07/23 75916 8/1-10/31/2023 coverage 

 200.00BENCHMARK DESIGN 
STUDIO

BENCHPrinted07/07/23 75917 newspaper board 

 500.00BLACK MEN READBBRPrinted07/07/23 75918 8/5/23 program 

 495.00BLOOM ROOFING SYSTEMSBLOOMPrinted07/07/23 75919 MA 6/26/23 service 

 2,400.00BOXCAR STUDIOBOXPrinted07/07/23 75920 hosting June renewal 2024 

 206.81BP PRODUCTS OF NORTH 
AMERICA

A15Printed07/07/23 75921 report date 7/6/23 

 13.99CANTON PUBLIC LIBRARYA45Printed07/07/23 75922 lost-ILL Ouran high school 

 19.99CAPITAL AREA DISTRICT 
LIBRARY

CADLPrinted07/07/23 75923 lost ILL-Berserk 2 

 4,953.78CAPITAL ONECAPONEPrinted07/07/23 75925 ALL  5/25-6/23/23 billing 

 800.00JAMES CAREY JCARYPrinted07/07/23 75926 June 2023 service 

 102.71CENGAGE LEARNINGCENPrinted07/07/23 75927 BFF 

 2,372.95CIT TECHNOLOGY FIN SERV 
INC.

CITPrinted07/07/23 75928 due 7/19/23 

 14.99CROMAINE DISTRICT 
LIBRARY

CROMPrinted07/07/23 75929 lost-ILL  Beruseruku 

 21.94DISCOUNT SCHOOL SUPPLY0000000398Printed07/07/23 75930 Superior sipplies 

 2,721.92DOWNRIVER BUS REPAIR, 
INC.

MBPPrinted07/07/23 75931 contactor/sensor/door latch 

 47.14DTE ENERGYDTE ENERGYPrinted07/07/23 75932 whit street June 2023 

 11,798.53DTE ENERGYDTE ENERGYPrinted07/07/23 75933 whit 5/24-6/23/23 service 

 1,852.08DTE ENERGYDTE ENERGYPrinted07/07/23 75934 MA 5/31-6/29/23 service 

 11,453.86ENLIGHTEN SOLUTIONS LLCESLPrinted07/07/23 75935 50% deposit whit stack light 

 252.96FUNFLICKS OF MICHIGANBLWTPrinted07/07/23 75936 Outdoor show-Colorful Dream 

 226.72GRAINGERGRNGPrinted07/07/23 75937 caster/core wheel 

 19.20HACKLEY PUBLIC LIBRARYHACPrinted07/07/23 75938 lost ILL-Cooking from the Spir 

 35.95HENRY FORD COMMUNITY 
COLLEGE

HFCCPrinted07/07/23 75939 lost ILL-The Devil 

 1,694.68LISA HOENIG LIHOPrinted07/07/23 75940 PP#16 7/6/23 

 1,393.06DEREK HUMPHREY HUMPSPrinted07/07/23 75941 PP#16 7/6/23 

 252.35KSS ENTERPRISESKSSENTPrinted07/07/23 75942 book tape 24 rolls 

 68.99LAKESHORE LEARNING 
MATERIALS

0000000471Printed07/07/23 75943 whit youth supplies 

 1,289.69MONIQUE LOPEZ-GEIMAN A50Printed07/07/23 75944 PP#16 7/6/23 

 741.75MICHIGAN AFSCMEAFSCMEPrinted07/07/23 75945 July 2023 dues 

 166.37MICHIGAN TECHNOLOGICAL 
LIBRARY

MTUVPOPrinted07/07/23 75946 lost-ILL  Kashiramoji 

 250.00MIDWEST COLLABORATIVE 
FOR

MCLSPrinted07/07/23 75947 Annual Member fee 2024 

 1,573.86MIDWEST TAPE LLCMIDWESTTAPPrinted07/07/23 75948 503935495........ 

 17.99MONROE COUNTY LIBRARY 
SYSTEM

A36Printed07/07/23 75949 lost-ILL Prayer for Owen 

 12.50OAKLAND COMMUNITY 
COLLEGE

OCCPrinted07/07/23 75950 lost ILL-Jojo's bizarre 

 3,167.61OVERDRIVE, INC.OVPrinted07/07/23 75951 01576CO23192107..... 

 36.35PATRON ACCOUNTPATRPrinted07/07/23 75952 return-Eight Dates.... 

 32.00PATRON ACCOUNTPATRPrinted07/07/23 75953 return-Russia 

 12.10PATRON ACCOUNTPATRPrinted07/07/23 75954 return-Encyc Brown Boy Detec 

 273.63PINTER'S FLOWERLAND INC.PINTERPrinted07/07/23 75955 whit flower boxes 

 725.00PLANTWISEPWPrinted07/07/23 75956 whit burn 

 265.42PLAYAWAY PRODUCTS LLCPLAYPrinted07/07/23 75957 Happy Place 

 373.75Q+MQMPrinted07/07/23 75958 TALK Guide 

 150.00KAMRON REYNOLDS KAREYPrinted07/07/23 75959 Mange Draw 7/24 & 7/31 

 150.00KAMRON REYNOLDS KAREYPrinted07/07/23 75960 Mange Draw 7/10  & 7/17 



Ypsilanti District Library

Check Register Report

Check 
Date

Check 
Number

Status
Amount

BANK: 

Vendor 
Number

Vendor Name Check Description

ANN ARBOR 2Page:

12:20 pmTime:

08/01/2023Date:

Void/Stop 
Date

Reconcile 
Date

ANN ARBOR Checks

 1,850.00RNA FACILITIES 
MANAGEMENT

RNAPrinted07/07/23 75961 MA  #3 of 8 

 156.36SAWA BOOKSSAWAPrinted07/07/23 75962 Disney the Lion 

 914.81SCHOLASTIC INC.0000000300Printed07/07/23 75963 Whit summ chall 

 3,711.13SECURITY & PROTECTIVE 
SERVICES

SPSPrinted07/07/23 75964 Junes 2023 service 

 30.45SHERWIN-WILLIAMS0000000443Printed07/07/23 75965 Superior touchups 

 1,500.00SIGNS BY TOMORROWSBTPrinted07/07/23 75966 Explorer wrap 

 448.21OLIVIA SNELLING OLSNPrinted07/07/23 75967 PP #16 7/6/2023 

 8.95ST. CLAIR COUNTY LIBRARYSCCLPrinted07/07/23 75968 lost ILL-Mama do you love me 

 700.49STAPLES ADVANTAGESTAPADPrinted07/07/23 75969 statement 6/25/23 

 151.00TERMINIXTERMPrinted07/07/23 75970 MA 6/8/23 treatment 

 90.00UNIQUE MANAGEMENT 
SERVICES,

UMSIPrinted07/07/23 75971 July 2023 curbside 

 801.13GAIL VALENTINE 0000000116Printed07/07/23 75972 PP #16 7/6/2023 

 884.51MARIANNE VANDENBERGEN VANDPrinted07/07/23 75973 PP#16 7/6/23 

 2,631.37Y C U A0000000021Printed07/07/23 75974 MA 5/20-6/19/263 service 

 3.59YPSILANTI ACE HARDWAREYPSIHARDPrinted07/07/23 75975 supplies 

 1,980.00A PRODUCTION BUILDING 
SOLUTION

APBSPrinted07/14/23 75976 Superior july 2023 service 

 566.49ALLIED WASTE SYSTEMS 
#241

AWSPrinted07/14/23 75977 Superior July 2023 service 

 4,369.05AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICESAMCASEPrinted07/14/23 75979 07/01/23 billing 

 414.50ASSOCIATED PLUMBING & 
SEWER

0000000559Printed07/14/23 75980 whit men's room 

 100.61BAKER & TAYLOR 4108482LORPrinted07/14/23 75981 statement 6/30/2023 

 399.48BAKER & TAYLOR INC  
4108472

BAKTAYPrinted07/14/23 75982 statement 6/30/23 

 89.70BAKER & TAYLOR INC 
4407662

BAKLPrinted07/14/23 75983 statement 6/30/2023 

 927.25BAKER & TAYLOR INC. 
4387742

BK7742Printed07/14/23 75984 statement 6/30/23 

 848.54BAKER & TAYLOR INC. 
4387752

BK7752Printed07/14/23 75985 statement 6/30/2023 

 310.04BAKER & TAYLOR INC. 
4387762

BK7762Printed07/14/23 75986 statement 6/30/2023 

 19.20BAKER & TAYLOR INC. 
4387772

BK7772Printed07/14/23 75987 statement 6/30/23 

 562.27BAKER & TAYLOR INC. 
4387792

BK7792Printed07/14/23 75988 statement 6/30/2023 

 2,484.05BAKER & TAYLOR, INC. 
573063

0000573063Printed07/14/23 75989 statement 6/30/23 

 2,417.31BAKER & TAYLOR, INC. 
573097

0000573097Printed07/14/23 75990 statement 6/30/23 

 2,131.84BAKER & TAYLOR, INC. 
573121

0000573121Printed07/14/23 75991 statement 6/30/2023 

 1,459.45BAKER & TAYLOR, INC. 
573139

0000573139Printed07/14/23 75992 statement 6/30/23 

 306.68BANK OF ANN ARBORBAAPrinted07/14/23 75993 closing 6/30/23  #0667 

 50.00BASICBASICPrinted07/14/23 75994 July 2023 ad fee 

 110.00BENCHMARK DESIGN 
STUDIO

BENCHPrinted07/14/23 75995 double sided octagon 

 45,785.09BLUE CARE NETWORK OF MIBCNPrinted07/14/23 75996 August 2023 coverage 

 1,583.18CONSTELLATION 
NEWENERGY-

CONSTELLPrinted07/14/23 75997 all-June 2023 service 

 2,899.24DELTA DENTAL PLAN OF 
MICHIGAN

0000000027Printed07/14/23 75998 August 2023 coverage 

 300.00GLAZEGLZPrinted07/14/23 75999 crafternoon program 

 73.28GORDON FOOD SERVICE, 
INC.

GORDONPrinted07/14/23 76000 MA supplies 

 573.29GRAINGERGRNGPrinted07/14/23 76001 return core wheel 

 392.00HOWELL NATURE CENTERHNCPrinted07/14/23 76002 MA 8/5/23 program 

 788.43IMPERIAL DADEIMPDADPrinted07/14/23 76003 tissue/brag box/glove 

 255.00MERS OF MICHIGANMERSPrinted07/14/23 76004 Hamilton  DKNSCCSFXJP 



Ypsilanti District Library

Check Register Report

Check 
Date

Check 
Number

Status
Amount

BANK: 

Vendor 
Number

Vendor Name Check Description

ANN ARBOR 3Page:

12:20 pmTime:

08/01/2023Date:

Void/Stop 
Date

Reconcile 
Date

ANN ARBOR Checks

 1,138.00MICHIGAN POWER RODDING, 
INC.

A29Printed07/14/23 76005 MA flood 

 525.97MIDWEST TAPE LLCMIDWESTTAPPrinted07/14/23 76006 504031318......... 

 16,920.92MIDWEST TAPE LLCMIDWESTTAPPrinted07/14/23 76007 hoopla June 2023 

 128.00MY FAVORITE PLANT 
COMPANY

MY FAVORITPrinted07/14/23 76008 July 2023 service 

 100.00KAMRON REYNOLDS KAREYPrinted07/14/23 76009 Manga Draw for teens 

 132.22SUBURBAN SPRINKLER 
SYSTEMS

SUBSPRPrinted07/14/23 76010 MA start up 

 1,681.25SUPERIOR LANDSCAPE 
COMPANIES

SLCPrinted07/14/23 76011 Superior july 2023 service 

 1,151.74SUPERIOR TOWNSHIP 
UTILITY DEPT

STUDPrinted07/14/23 76012 Superior June 2023 service 

 6,160.00TERRACON CONSULTANTS, 
INC.

TCIPrinted07/14/23 76013 whit windows 

 3,291.76BANK OF ANN ARBORBAAPrinted07/19/23 76014 Julianne 4396 cycle 06.30.2023 

 182,617.58Checks Total (excluding void checks):101Total Checks:

 182,617.58Bank Total (excluding void checks):101Total Payments:

Grand Total (excluding void checks):Total Payments: 101  182,617.58



 

 

 

 

Communications 





Literacy Liberty for All
A Community Q & A

Friends of the Canton Public Library &
 Friends of the Plymouth District Library 

are pleased to present

concerns facing libraries today
1st amendment & right to read
how libraries select books
why representation matters

Tuesday, Sept 19, 2023 at 7pm
at the Penn Theatre

760 Penniman Ave., Plymouth

THE PANEL:
George Belvitch - retired PCCS educator and 

President, Plymouth-Canton PFLAG
 

Toni Issac - teacher & librarian, Troy High School 
 

Loren Khogali - Executive Director, 
American Civil Liberties Union (ACLU) of Michigan

 

Kathy Lester - President, American Association 
of School Librarians (AASL)

 

Beth Rayl - Chief Academic & Innovation Officer, 
Plymouth-Canton Community Schools

 

Thomas Walker - Interim Dean, Wayne State University Library
System and professor, WSU School of Information Sciences

 

 

A panel of local experts will provide their
perspective on a range of topics:

Audience questions will be solicited and
included in the discussion.



Intergenerational programs intentionally unite the generations in ways that enrich participants’ 
lives and help address vital social and community issues while building on the positive resources 
that young and old have to offer each other and to their communities. These programs bring 
people of different generations together for ongoing, mutually beneficial, planned activities, 
designed to achieve specified program goals and promote greater understanding and respect 
between generations. Reciprocity, sustainability, intentionality, training, support, and viewing 
younger and older people as assets are hallmarks of successful programs.

There are many types of intergenerational 
programs ranging from mentoring and 
community service to service learning and 
workforce development. The goals of 
these programs are just as varied, 
and some examples are outlined in 
the chart on pages 4 and 5. Some 
programs primarily focus on 
improving academic outcomes 
among younger generations 
with older volunteers as tutors, 
mentors, allies, and friends. 
Other programs primarily 
focus on improving social, 
health, and economic aspects 
for older adults with younger 
generations as partners. While 
other programs aim to promote 
healthier lifestyle behaviors for 
both generations simultaneously, 
thereby lowering health risks. The 
possibilities for intergenerational 
programs are endless.

FACT SHEET: INTERGENERATIONAL  
PROGRAMS BENEFIT EVERYONE

• Academic 
Achievement  
& Enrichment

• Physical, Cognitive,  
& Mental Health 

• Social Isolation  
& Loneliness

• Cultural Identity

• Environmental  
Awareness & Action

• Affordable Housing 
 
 

• Job Readiness  
& Entrepreneurship

• Neighborhood 
Revitalization

• Addressing Structural 
Racism & Inequalities

• Technology  
Access & Use

• Caregiving

• Food insecurity

• Community Change

• Substance Use

• Ageism

AN INTERGENERATIONAL LENS CAN BE APPLIED  
TO WIDE RANGE OF TOPICS SUCH AS: 

Intergenerational programs unite 
younger and older generations to enrich 
participants’ lives and help address 
vital social and community issues.



2  •  FACT SHEET: INTERGENERATIONAL PROGRAMS BENEFIT EVERYONE

WHY NOW?
The United States is in the midst of a 
profound demographic transformation with 
both younger and older people making up 
an increasing proportion of the population. 
Additionally, the U.S. population is more 
diverse and interconnected than in previous 
centuries. Around the world, communities 
are enhanced by a growing population of 
elders. Older volunteers possess a lifetime 
of experience, skills, and knowledge. Their 
passion and wisdom can improve the 
academic, health, and social conditions of 
a child, teenager, or young adult through 
mentoring, tutoring, and friendship. Children, 
youth, and young adults also want more 
meaningful relationships with adults in their 
communities through civic engagement and 
leadership positions. And nearly 8 out of 10 
adults want to spend more time with people 
outside their age group.1 

Even before the COVID-19 pandemic forced 
all ages to self-isolate, the United States was 
facing a loneliness epidemic affecting both 
older and younger generations. The negative 

impacts of social isolation and loneliness are 
well documented, and research suggests 
that remaining socially engaged can improve 
these outcomes.2 Ninety-two percent of 
Americans believe intergenerational activities 
can help reduce loneliness across all ages.3

Overall, the science shows that 
intergenerational programs lead to positive 
outcomes among young individuals, 
older volunteers, as well as teachers and 
administrators, workplaces, community 
spaces, families, and neighborhoods.4 

PROGRAM SPOTLIGHT: 1,000 GRANDMOTHERS 

The International Association for Indigenous Aging and the Michigan Public Health 
Institute developed and piloted the 1,000 Grandmothers project to reduce childhood 
deaths in Native communities by working with elder tribal participants, especially 
grandmothers, to conduct focused mentoring and education for young tribal mothers. 

PROGRAM SPOTLIGHT: HONOLULU WALKS 

Honolulu Walks is a youth-led intergenerational initiative of Age-Friendly Honolulu that 
mobilizes community members from the bookend generations – keiki to kupuna – to 
explore their built environment and walking culture and create ideas to make Honolulu 
more age-friendly. Through personal experiences and the photovoice process, program 
participants share about walkability and foster intergenerational relationships. 

of Americans believe 
intergenerational 
activities can help 
reduce loneliness 
across all ages.

92%

http://iasquared.org/wordpress2/what-we-do/current-projects/
1000-grandmothers/
http://agefriendlyhonolulu.com/youth-initiative/


FACT SHEET: INTERGENERATIONAL PROGRAMS BENEFIT EVERYONE  •  3

SOCIAL JUSTICE,  
EQUITY, AND INCLUSION 
A growing number of programs are focused 
on diversity, social justice, equity, and 
inclusion. Black, Indigenous, and people 
of color, as well as individuals from lower 
socioeconomic statuses are less likely to 
be asked to volunteer but when they are 
asked and engaged, research shows that 
they report greater psychological, cognitive, 
social, and academic outcomes compared to 
their counterparts5. The Eisner Foundation 
has invested resources in Los Angeles 
County to intergenerational programs 
that advance equity and justice through 
mentoring programs, literacy efforts, the 
performing arts, and medical volunteers.6 
Some cultures may not use the language 
of “intergenerational programs” given that 
multigenerational and intergenerational 
relations are normative to their customs, 
values, and traditions. Having a strong sense 
of belonging and understanding of history 
and cultural ways of living is protective to 
health and coping in the face of adversity 
for tribal elders and youth.7 More programs 
and research are needed in equity, systemic 
racism, and cultural identity.

CONCLUSION
Intergenerational programs are meaningful, 
important, and fun - and they are booming 
across the U.S. and around the world. If 
you have participated in one or seen one in 
action, you will likely recall the high levels 
of energy, enthusiasm, and innovation. 
Evaluation data suggests they improve 
academic performance and various 
dimensions of health, and they bolster a 
strong sense of community and compassion. 
Research also shows that every age group 
is positively impacted by these types 
of programs. There are also benefits for 
administrators and staff members of these 
programs, family members of program 
participants, and other community residents. 
We hope you will use this resource to 
help make the case for intergenerational 
initiatives in your community. Together, 
we can help build a world that values and 
engages all generations.

PROGRAM SPOTLIGHT: NYU INTERGENERATIONAL HOME SHARE 

New York University and New York Foundation for Senior Citizens Intergenerational 
Home Share Program aims to bolster economic security, health, and a sense of 
belonging between older homeowners with rooms and graduate students in need 
of affordable housing with a focus on people of color, first generation students, 
and low-income older adults. 

NEARLY 8 OUT OF 10 ADULTS 
want to spend more time with people 
outside their age group.

https://wp.nyu.edu/nyuintergenhomeshare/


4  •  FACT SHEET: INTERGENERATIONAL PROGRAMS BENEFIT EVERYONE

WHO BENEFITS? EVERYONE.
Research has documented a wide range of benefits for everyone involved. 

BABIES &  
PRE-SCHOOL8

• Higher levels of interactive play
• Improved abilities with cooperative play 
• Improved empathy
• Greater social acceptance
• Better vocabulary and language abilities

ELEMENTARY 
SCHOOL 

CHILDREN9

• Enhanced reading and writing
• Improved task orientation, short-term memory, problem solving, 

and accountability
• Increased patience, sensitivity, compassion, respect, and empathy 
• Reduced anxiety, sadness, and stress
• Improved mood management
• Healthier diets and nutrition, increased physical activity, less 

“screen time”

MIDDLE SCHOOL 
CHILDREN10

• Improved academic performance
• Healthier family dynamics
• Improved peer relationships
• Decreased depressive symptoms
• Reduced substance use
• Reduced disordered eating
• Enhanced reasoning, problem solving, accountability,  

conflict resolution
• Decreased bullying and victimization
• Clearer educational aspirations, occupational interests and goals 

HIGH SCHOOL 
STUDENTS11

• Improved ego integrity, self-confidence, purpose in life
• Improved emotions and mental health
• Enhanced physical health
• Increased levels of collective efficacy, social capital,  

and social cohesion
• Empowered to make changes in school and neighborhood

YOUNG ADULTS 
& COLLEGE 
STUDENTS12

• Higher rates of civic engagement
• Entrepreneurial capabilities, occupational skills, and mastery
• Expressed higher levels of self-confidence, efficacy,  

and self of self
• Gained skills and knowledge for geriatrics and gerontology
• Learned and taught ways to improve the environment



FACT SHEET: INTERGENERATIONAL PROGRAMS BENEFIT EVERYONE  •  5

PARENTS & ADULT 
CHILDREN13

• Less worried about aged parents
• Happy about their civic engagement
• Older volunteers brought resources and skills back home to teach 

grandchildren and children in neighborhood
• Better family communication

OLDER ADULTS14 • Decreased social isolation
• Improved quality of life and purpose in life
• Improved self-worth, self-esteem, empowerment
• Cognitive health improvement
• Reduced falls and frailty, increased strength, balance, and walking
• Learned new skills, leadership proficiencies, and knowledge

ALL AGES • Reduced ageism and age discrimination among young  
and old alike 

• Improved mental, physical, and cognitive health unique to each 
life stage

• Greater sense of belonging and connection with others of 
different ages.

• More acceptance of people who are different from themselves. 

STAFF, 
CAREGIVERS, & 

NEIGHBORHOODS15

• Administrators and staff report positive outcomes such as 
improved mental health, an increased sense of community, and 
gaining a sense of energy and purpose during long and  
hard workdays.

• Informal caregivers receive respite when a younger person cares 
for their loved one and they too report joy from the experience.

• Family caregivers also report decreased social isolation.
• Some studies have identified an increase in neighborhood trust, 

social cohesion, and a sense of community.
• Shared site intergenerational programs - settings where children, 

youth, and older adults participate in services and/or programs at 
the same time and at the same place - have shown many benefits 
for staff, families, and organizations.  

• Generations also come together for physical improvements to the 
community such as walking trails, benches, urban parks, green 
spaces, clearer signage, reduced litter, and recycling options.

MORE INFORMATION

This fact sheet is a companion piece to Generations United’s resource Making the Case for 
Intergenerational Programs. Please refer to that document for more detailed information including the 
findings from the comprehensive review of the literature on intergenerational programs.  

The Generations United website contains additional information about intergenerational programs and 
public policies including toolkits to help you get started, examples from our Programs of Distinction, an 
on-line directory with information on a wide range of intergenerational programs, and much more.

https://www.gu.org/resources/making-the-case-for-intergenerational-programs/
https://www.gu.org/resources/making-the-case-for-intergenerational-programs/
http://www.gu.org


6  •  FACT SHEET: INTERGENERATIONAL PROGRAMS BENEFIT EVERYONE

ENDNOTES
1 Generations United & The Eisner Foundation (2017). I Need 

You, You Need Me: The young, the old, and what we can 
achieve together

2 National Academies of Sciences, Engineering, and Medi-
cine. (2020). Social isolation and loneliness in older adults: 
Opportunities for the health care system. The National 
Academies Press.

3 Generations United and The Eisner Foundation (2018). All 
in together: Creating places where young and old thrive.

4 Generations United (2021). Making the Case for Intergener-
ational Programs.

5 McBride, A. M., Gonzales, E., Morrow-Howell, N., & McCrary, 
S. (2011). Stipends in Volunteer Civic Service: Inclusion, 
Retention, and Volunteer Benefits. Public Administration 
Review, 71(6), 850-858.; Morrow-Howell et al., 2008

6 Eisner Foundation (2020). Beyond zero-sum choices: The 
promise of funding intergenerational equity solutions.

7 Generations United and National Indian Child Welfare Asso-
ciation (2020). American Indian & Alaska Native Grandfam-
ilies: Helping children thrive through connection to family 
and cultural Identity.

8 Detmer, M. R., Kern, P., Jacobi-Vessels, J., & King, K. M. 
(2020). Intergenerational Music Therapy: Effects on Lit-
eracy, Physical Functioning, Self-Worth, and Interactions. 
Journal of Intergenerational Relationships, 18(2), 175-195.; 
DeVore, S., Winchell, B., & Rowe, J. M. (2016). Intergener-
ational programming for young children and older adults: 
An overview of needs, approaches, and outcomes in the 
United States. Childhood Education, 92(3), 216-225.; Femia, 
E. E., Zarit, S. H., Blair, C., Jarrott, S. E., & Bruno, K. (2008). 
Intergenerational preschool experiences and the young 
child: Potential benefits to development. Early Childhood 
Research Quarterly, 23(2), 272-287.; George, D. R., & Wagler, 
G. (2014). Social learning and innovation: developing two 
shared-site intergenerational reading programs in Hershey, 
Pennsylvania. Journal of Intergenerational Relationships, 
12(1), 69-74.; Gilchrist, C. L. (2014). The Impact of Inter-
generational Programs: Evidence for Expansion (Doctoral 
dissertation, Miami University).; Heydon, R., McKee, L., & 
O’Neill, S. (2017). Singing our song: the affordances of sing-
ing in an intergenerational, multimodal literacy programme. 
Literacy, 52(2), 128-136.; Jarrott, S. E., & Smith, C. L. (2011). 
The complement of research and theory in practice: 
Contact theory at work in nonfamilial intergenerational pro-
grams. The Gerontologist, 51(1), 112-121.; Lux, C., Tarabochia, 
D., & Barben, E. (2020). Intergenerational Program Percep-
tions and Recommendations: Perspectives from Teachers, 
Children, Residents, and Staff. Journal of Intergenerational 
Relationships, 18(2), 196-213. 

9 Biggs, M. J. G., & Knox, K. S. (2014). Lessons learned from 
an intergenerational volunteer program: A case study of a 
shared-site model. Journal of Intergenerational Relation-
ships, 12(1), 54-68.; Cohen-Mansfield, J., & Jensen, B. (2017). 
Intergenerational programs in schools: Prevalence and per-
ceptions of impact. Journal of Applied Gerontology, 36(3), 
254-276.; DeVore et al., 2016; DuBois, D. L., Portillo, N., 
Rhodes, J. E., Silverthorn, N., & Valentine, J. C. (2011). How 
effective are mentoring programs for youth? A systematic 
assessment of the evidence. Psychological Science in the 
Public Interest, 12(2), 57-91.; Galbraith, B., Larkin, H., Moor-
house, A., & Oomen, T. (2015). Intergenerational programs 
for persons with dementia: A scoping review. Journal of 
Gerontological Social Work, 58(4), 357-378.; Gilchrist, 2014; 
Gualano, M. R., Voglino, G., Bert, F., Thomas, R., Camussi, E., 
& Siliquini, R. (2018). The impact of intergenerational pro-

grams on children and older adults: A review. International 
Psychogeriatrics, 30(4), 451-468. Heyman, J. C., & Gutheil, 
I. A. (2008). “They touch our hearts”: The experiences of 
shared site intergenerational program participants. Journal 
of Intergenerational Relationships, 6(4), 397-412.; Isaki, E., & 
Harmon, M. T. (2015). Children and adults reading interac-
tively: The social benefits of an exploratory intergeneration-
al program. Communication Disorders Quarterly, 36(2), 90-
101.; Κasseropoulou, M., Κoniari, G., Frosi, L., Papantoniou, G., 
Tsolaki, M., & Κoraitou, D. (2020). Pilot intergenerational in-
teraction program in elementary school: examining the ef-
fects on the cognitive skills of students attending the First 
Class of the Elementary School. Scientific Annals-School 
of Psychology AUTh, 13, 94-123.; Lee, Y. S., Morrow-Howell, 
N., Jonson-Reid, M., & McCrary, S. (2012). The effect of the 
Experience Corps® program on student reading outcomes. 
Education and Urban Society, 44(1), 97-118.; Marcia, S. M., 
Alicia, R. P., Parpura-Gill, A., & Cohen-Mansfield, J. (2004). 
Direct observations of children at risk for academic failure: 
Benefits of an intergenerational visiting program. Educa-
tional Gerontology, 30(8), 663-675.; Martins, T., Midão, L., 
Martínez Veiga, S., Dequech, L., Busse, G., Bertram, M., ... & 
Costa, E. (2019). Intergenerational programs review: Study 
design and characteristics of intervention, outcomes, and 
effectiveness. Journal of Intergenerational Relationships, 
17(1), 93-109.; Galbraith, B., Larkin, H., Moorhouse, A., & 
Oomen, T. (2015). Intergenerational programs for persons 
with dementia: A scoping review. Journal of Gerontologi-
cal Social Work, 58(4), 357-378.; Raposa, E. B., Rhodes, J., 
Stams, G. J. J., Card, N., Burton, S., Schwartz, S., ... & Hus-
sain, S. (2019). The effects of youth mentoring programs: 
A meta-analysis of outcome studies. Journal of Youth and 
Adolescence, 48(3), 423-443.; Schroeder, K., Ratcliffe, S. 
J., Perez, A., Earley, D., Bowman, C., & Lipman, T. H. (2017). 
Dance for health: an intergenerational program to increase 
access to physical activity. Journal of Pediatric Nursing, 37, 
29-34.

10 Biggs & Knox, 2014; Cohen-Mansfield & Jensen, 2017; Du-
Bois et al., 2011; Gilchrist, 2014; Raposa et al., 2019.

11 Barnard, D. (2014). Through our eyes: A pastoral care 
bridge linking the generations. Journal of Religion, Spiritu-
ality & Aging, 26(2-3), 122-135.; Cohen-Mansfield & Jensen, 
2017; DuBois et al., 2011; Gilchrist, 2014; Kim, J., & Lee, J. 
(2017). Intergenerational program for nursing home resi-
dents and adolescents in Korea. Journal of Gerontological 
Nursing, 44(1), 32-41.; Knight, T., Skouteris, H., Townsend, 
M., & Hooley, M. (2017). The act of giving: a pilot and fea-
sibility study of the My Life Story programme designed to 
foster positive mental health and well-being in adolescents 
and older adults. International Journal of Adolescence and 
Youth, 22(2), 165-178.; Ohmer, M. L. (2016). Strategies for 
preventing youth violence: Facilitating collective efficacy 
among youth and adults. Journal of the Society for Social 
Work and Research, 7(4), 681-705.; Schroeder et al., 2017.

12 Breck, B. M., Dennis, C. B., & Leedahl, S. N. (2018). Imple-
menting reverse mentoring to address social isolation 
among older adults. Journal of Gerontological Social Work, 
61(5), 513-525.; D’Abundo, M. L., Fugate-Whitlock, E. I., & 
Fiala, K. A. (2011). Recycling mentors: An intergenerational, 
service-learning program to promote recycling and envi-
ronmental awareness. Journal of Public Health Management 
and Practice, 17(4), 373-375.; Martins et al., 2019; Milbourn, 
B., Mahoney, N., Trimboli, C., Hoey, C., Cordier, R., Buchan-
an, A., & Wilson, N. J. (2020). “Just one of the guys” An 
application of the Occupational Wellbeing framework to 
graduates of a Men’s Shed Program for young unemployed 
adult males with intellectual disability. Australian Occupa-
tional Therapy Journal, 67(2), 121-130.; Pstross, M., Corrig-

https://www.gu.org/resources/i-need-you-you-need-me-the-young-the-old-and-what-we-can-achieve-together/
https://www.gu.org/resources/i-need-you-you-need-me-the-young-the-old-and-what-we-can-achieve-together/
https://www.gu.org/resources/i-need-you-you-need-me-the-young-the-old-and-what-we-can-achieve-together/
https://www.gu.org/resources/all-in-together-creating-places-where-young-and-old-thrive/
https://www.gu.org/resources/all-in-together-creating-places-where-young-and-old-thrive/
https://www.gu.org/resources/making-the-case-for-intergenerational-programs/
https://www.gu.org/resources/making-the-case-for-intergenerational-programs/
https://www.eisnerhealth.org/beyond-zero-sum-choices-promise-funding-intergenerational-equity-solutions/
https://www.eisnerhealth.org/beyond-zero-sum-choices-promise-funding-intergenerational-equity-solutions/
https://www.gu.org/resources/american-indian-alaska-native-grandfamilies-helping-children-thrive-through-connection-to-family-and-cultural-identity/
https://www.gu.org/resources/american-indian-alaska-native-grandfamilies-helping-children-thrive-through-connection-to-family-and-cultural-identity/
https://www.gu.org/resources/american-indian-alaska-native-grandfamilies-helping-children-thrive-through-connection-to-family-and-cultural-identity/
https://www.tandfonline.com/doi/abs/10.1080/01634372.2015.1008166
https://www.tandfonline.com/doi/abs/10.1080/01634372.2015.1008166


FACT SHEET: INTERGENERATIONAL PROGRAMS BENEFIT EVERYONE  •  7

an, T., Knopf, R. C., Sung, H., Talmage, C. A., Conroy, C., & 
Fowley, C. (2017). The benefits of intergenerational learning 
in higher education: Lessons learned from two age friendly 
university programs. Innovative Higher Education, 42(2), 
157-171.; Santini, S., Baschiera, B., & Socci, M. (2020). Older 
adult entrepreneurs as mentors of young people neither in 
employment nor education and training (NEETs). Evidenc-
es from multi-country intergenerational learning program. 
Educational Gerontology, 46(3), 97-116.

13 Morrow-Howell, N., McCrary, S., Gonzales, E., McBride, A. M., 
Hong, S.I., & Bline, W. (2008). Experience Corps: Benefits 
of Volunteering. (CSD Research Brief 08-23). St. Louis, MO: 
Washington University, Center for Social Development.

14 Andreoletti, C., & Howard, J. L. (2018). Bridging the genera-
tion gap: Intergenerational service-learning benefits young 
and old. Gerontology & Geriatrics Education, 39(1), 46-60.; 
Atkins, R., Deatrick, J. A., Gage, G. S., Earley, S., Earley, D., 
& Lipman, T. H. (2019). Partnerships to Evaluate the Social 
Impact of Dance for Health: A Qualitative Inquiry. Journal of 
Community Health Nursing, 36(3), 124-138.; Barnard, 2014; 
Belgrave, 2011; Breck et al., 2018; Carcavilla, N., Meilán, J. J. 
G., Llorente, T. E., Martínez-Nicolás, I., & Tamayo-Mortera, 
O. (2020). The impact of international videoconferencing 
among older adults and secondary students. Gerontol-
ogy & Geriatrics Education, 41(3), 352-366.; Carlson, M. 
C., Saczynski, J. S., Rebok, G. W., Seeman, T., Glass, T. A., 
McGill, S., ... & Fried, L. P. (2008). Exploring the effects of 
an “everyday” activity program on executive function and 
memory in older adults: Experience Corps®. The Gerontol-
ogist, 48(6), 793-801.; Carlson, M. C., Kuo, J. H., Chuang, Y. 
F., Varma, V. R., Harris, G., Albert, M. S., ... & Tan, E. J. (2015). 
Impact of the Baltimore Experience Corps Trial on cortical 
and hippocampal volumes. Alzheimer’s & Dementia, 11(11), 
1340-1348.; Carlson, M. C., Erickson, K. I., Kramer, A. F., Voss, 
M. W., Bolea, N., Mielke, M., ... & Fried, L. P. (2009). Evidence 
for neurocognitive plasticity in at-risk older adults: the 
Experience Corps program. Journals of Gerontology Series 
A: Biomedical Sciences and Medical Sciences, 64(12), 1275-
1282.; Cichy, K. E., & Smith, G. C. (2011). Closing the gener-
ation gap: Using discussion groups to benefit older adults 
and college students. In Enhancing cognitive fitness in 
adults (pp. 137-154). Springer, New York, NY.; DeVore et al., 
2016; Galbraith et al., 2015; George, 2011; Gilchrist, 2014; Gi-
raudeau, C., & Bailly, N. (2019). Intergenerational programs: 
What can school-age children and older people expect 
from them? A systematic review. European Journal of Age-
ing, 1-14.; Gonzales, E., & Nowell, W. B. (2017). Social Capital 
and Unretirement: Exploring the Bonding, Bridging, and 
Linking Aspects of Social Relationships. Research on Aging, 
39(10), 1100-1117.; Gruenewald, T. L., Tanner, E. K., Fried, L. 
P., Carlson, M. C., Xue, Q. L., Parisi, J. M., ... & Seeman, T. E. 
(2016). The Baltimore experience corps trial: enhancing 
generativity via intergenerational activity engagement in 
later life. Journals of Gerontology Series B: Psychological 
Sciences and Social Sciences, 71(4), 661-670.; Gualano et 
al., 2019; June, A., & Andreoletti, C. (2020). Participation 
in intergenerational service-learning benefits older adults: 
A brief report. Gerontology & Geriatrics Education, 41(2), 
169-174.; Knight et al., 2017; Lee, K., Jarrott, S. E., & Juckett, 
L. A. (2020). Documented Outcomes for Older Adults in 
Intergenerational Programming: A Scoping Review. Journal 
of Intergenerational Relationships, 18(2), 113-138.; Leedahl, 
S. N., Brasher, M. S., Estus, E., Breck, B. M., Dennis, C. B., 
& Clark, S. C. (2019). Implementing an interdisciplinary 
intergenerational program using the Cyber Seniors® reverse 
mentoring model within higher education. Gerontology & 
Geriatrics Education, 40(1), 71-89.; Lux et al., 2020; Macfar-
lane, J., Stephens, C., & Taylor, J. (2019). Intergenerational 
exchange and the possibilities of role substitution for older 
people. Quality in Ageing and Older Adults, 20(3), 98-109.; 
Mahoney, N., Wilson, N. J., Buchanan, A., Milbourn, B., Hoey, 

C., & Cordier, R. (2020). Older male mentors: Outcomes 
and perspectives of an intergenerational mentoring 
program for young adult males with intellectual disability. 
Health Promotion Journal of Australia: Official Journal of 
Australian Association of Health Promotion Professionals, 
31(1), 16.; Martins et al., 2019; Montepare, J. M., & Farah, K. 
S. (2018). Talk of Ages: Using intergenerational classroom 
modules to engage older and younger students across 
the curriculum. Gerontology & Geriatrics Education, 39(3), 
385-394.; Nicholson, N. R., & Shellman, J. (2013). Decreas-
ing social isolation in older adults: effects of an empower-
ment intervention offered through the CARELINK program. 
Research in Gerontological Nursing, 6(2), 89-97.; Ohmer, 
2016; Parkinson, D., & Turner, J. (2019). Alleviating Social 
Isolation through Intergenerational Programming: DOROT’s 
Summer Teen Internship Program. Journal of Intergener-
ational Relationships, 17(3), 388-395.; Pstross et al., 2017; 
Sakurai, R., Yasunaga, M., Murayama, Y., Ohba, H., Nonaka, 
K., Suzuki, H., ... & Rebok, G. W. (2016). Long-term effects 
of an intergenerational program on functional capacity 
in older adults: results from a seven-year follow-up of the 
REPRINTS study. Archives of Gerontology and Geriat-
rics, 64, 13-20.; Santini et al., 2020; Seeman, T., Merkin, S. 
S., Goldwater, D., & Cole, S. W. (2020). Intergenerational 
mentoring, eudaimonic well-being and gene regulation 
in older adults: A pilot study. Psychoneuroendocrinology, 
111, 104468.; Serrano, I. (2018). Evaluating the Social and 
Technological Benefits of an Intergenerational Program for 
Older Adults. (Master’s thesis, University of Rhode Island); 
Teater, B. (2016). Intergenerational programs to promote 
active aging: The experiences and perspectives of older 
adults. Activities, Adaptation & Aging, 40(1), 1-19.; Varma, V. 
R., Carlson, M. C., Parisi, J. M., Tanner, E. K., McGill, S., Fried, 
L. P., ... & Gruenewald, T. L. (2015). Experience Corps Balti-
more: exploring the stressors and rewards of high-intensity 
civic engagement. The Gerontologist, 55(6), 1038-1049.; 
Zhong, S., Lee, C., Foster, M., & Bian, J. (2020). Intergen-
erational Communities: A Systematic Literature Review of 
Intergenerational Interactions and Older Adults’ Health-Re-
lated Outcomes. Social Science & Medicine, 113374.

15 Generations United & The Eisner Foundation, 2018; Guerre-
ro, L. R., Jimenez, P., & Tan, Z. (2017). TimeOut@ UCLA: An 
intergenerational respite care and workforce development 
program. Journal of Intergenerational Relationships, 15(3), 
290-294.; Heyman & Gutheil, 2008; Kaplan, M., Thang, L. L., 
Sánchez, M., & Hoffman, J. (Eds.). (2020). Intergenerational 
contact zones: Place-based strategies for promoting social 
inclusion and belonging. Routledge.; Kamei, T., Meguro, S., 
Yamamoto, Y., & Kanamori, T. (2020). St. Luke’s Inter-
generational Day Program; Nagomi-no-kai (Harmonized 
Program) Program Profile. Journal of Intergenerational 
Relationships, 18(1), 106-112.; MacKenzie, S. L., Carson, A. 
J., & Kuehne, V. S. (2011). The meadows school project: A 
unique intergenerational “immersion” program. Journal of 
Intergenerational Relationships, 9(2), 207-212.; Murayama, 
Y., Murayama, H., Hasebe, M., Yamaguchi, J., & Fujiwara, Y. 
(2019). The impact of intergenerational programs on social 
capital in Japan: a randomized population-based cross-sec-
tional study. BMC Public Health, 19(1), 156.; Ohmer, 2016; 
Whiteland, S. R. (2013). Intergenerational visual art pro-
grams at shared sites: A step toward sustainability. Journal 
of Intergenerational Relationships, 11(4), 396-409.



ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

Generations United gratefully acknowledges RRF Foundation for 
Aging for its support of this fact sheet. Very special thank you 
to Ernest Gonzales, Rachel Kruchten, and Cliff Whetung, New 
York University, Silver School of Social Work for researching 
and writing this document. Thank you also to Matt Kaplan, Penn 
State University; Lori Marks, Link Generations; and Anita Rogers, 
Generations United Senior Fellow for their thoughtful review. 

Design & Layout:  
Six Half Dozen

This document was supported by a grant from  
RRF Foundation for Aging.

© 2021, Generations United 

Reprinting permissible provided  
“Generations United” is credited  

and no profits are made.

For further information, please contact:

Generations United 
Phone: (202) 289-3979  

Email: gu@gu.org  
www.gu.org



Advertisement

POLITICS & ELECTIONS

Michigan libraries launch citizen initiative to fight book
bans
Published: Aug. 02, 2023, 6:00 a.m.

498
shares

By Jordyn Hermani | jhermani@mlive.com

'Gender Queer' and the culture war in Michigan's libraries'Gender Queer' and the culture war in Michigan's libraries

With book bans at public libraries taking center stage around the country, the Michigan Library Association

is calling on residents to push back against what it sees as censorship and a violation of First Amendment

rights.

In doing so, the association has launched a six-month campaign – dubbed MI Right to Read – which calls on

Michiganders to help raise awareness of communities looking to ban book titles or otherwise infringe on

what it refers to as the public’s “right to read.”

Subscribe

https://www.googleadservices.com/pagead/aclk?nis=4&sa=L&ai=CWn-XiAnRZPrCBt3VgrAPoZum0ATnn4L8cfaY8N7OEcLi-o3INxABILfI00dgyc7NiZCk6A-gAZOUjfQoyAEJ4AIAqAMByAPLBKoE5wJP0Auyvuqc21zvYl6L1mguxkliCvY6j5EQmIgypZJjLx3yjtlibsxAVBqNOdvCQsCmULBvWNRfseYiLQ1dMwcnnBUzZQq3sTNjcdh_4lob_8DUK6eVn-QY1pEihV77xDbjPylVdb3OliG4EhtiTCc-Bdeyi2UPc9hWRz489M9SI5dpnbeDazuaof86FP-g1FrrDFE20xcpG34u3N8mIdyWLcJeKAK-uQX0hxcrljSY1EUTiatkKqs4nXnyzIqmpYTlbkVtqekO3rfdWkPLkegpyvdpExjMNZrXyO7wbVL0NObQmReQW8tuRglxaOo0PZ0J0HrJ2YAagIYEJA9GrYi97QDxXCPRO0MmlWEmTlH7C_kiFnyepmuvVQlSxiDAs2YFzCEzA6vVO3g6lRAO-cAA8-jbXjR5Q-3YgbSRTdB8uYZYRAliFc2zc5b_b7HuQUcgG0ULLQNC19rZW0e1h6g23iT4Vl0ZlMAE4ueXnLEE4AQBwAUF-gUGCCUQARgAoAYugAeBkpDWA6gH2baxAqgHjs4bqAeT2BuoB-6WsQKoB_6esQKoB6SjsQKoB6a-G6gHmgaoB_PRG6gHltgbqAeqm7ECqAeDrbECqAf_nrECqAffn7ECqAfKqbECqAfrpbEC2AcAwAgB0ggZCIBhEAEYHTICigI6B4HQgICAgARIvf3BOoAKA5ALA5gLAcgLAYAMAaIMCCoGCgTDsLECuAwB2gwRCgsQsOSBw9-didyZARICAQOqDQJVU-AS3uLy_-q72Zf4AdgTC9AVAfgWAYAXAQ&ae=1&ase=2&num=1&cid=CAQSOwBpAlJW4uGwGFmEXcl50fKkHIKfpmIjxxu1Vzx57Gi3jWAMMbrHt_Ut-WjPP-fDTBNUJfDZ63teE1-5GAE&sig=AOD64_0_fxBfmA1k7VjllZDYeC0IkXsCZw&ctype=5&client=ca-pub-2937494567949278&nb=19&adurl=https://www.yiume.com/products/mens-funky-hawaiian-shirt-marine-life-seahorse-octopus-print-button-down-tencel%3Fvariant%3D40463769763923%26currency%3DUSD%26utm_medium%3Dproduct_sync%26utm_source%3Dgoogle%26utm_content%3Dsag_organic%26utm_campaign%3Dsag_organic%26gclid%3DEAIaIQobChMI-qbEverKgAMV3aoAAB2hjQlKEAEYASABEgJF3fD_BwE
https://www.googleadservices.com/pagead/aclk?nis=4&sa=L&ai=CWn-XiAnRZPrCBt3VgrAPoZum0ATnn4L8cfaY8N7OEcLi-o3INxABILfI00dgyc7NiZCk6A-gAZOUjfQoyAEJ4AIAqAMByAPLBKoE5wJP0Auyvuqc21zvYl6L1mguxkliCvY6j5EQmIgypZJjLx3yjtlibsxAVBqNOdvCQsCmULBvWNRfseYiLQ1dMwcnnBUzZQq3sTNjcdh_4lob_8DUK6eVn-QY1pEihV77xDbjPylVdb3OliG4EhtiTCc-Bdeyi2UPc9hWRz489M9SI5dpnbeDazuaof86FP-g1FrrDFE20xcpG34u3N8mIdyWLcJeKAK-uQX0hxcrljSY1EUTiatkKqs4nXnyzIqmpYTlbkVtqekO3rfdWkPLkegpyvdpExjMNZrXyO7wbVL0NObQmReQW8tuRglxaOo0PZ0J0HrJ2YAagIYEJA9GrYi97QDxXCPRO0MmlWEmTlH7C_kiFnyepmuvVQlSxiDAs2YFzCEzA6vVO3g6lRAO-cAA8-jbXjR5Q-3YgbSRTdB8uYZYRAliFc2zc5b_b7HuQUcgG0ULLQNC19rZW0e1h6g23iT4Vl0ZlMAE4ueXnLEE4AQBwAUF-gUGCCUQARgAoAYugAeBkpDWA6gH2baxAqgHjs4bqAeT2BuoB-6WsQKoB_6esQKoB6SjsQKoB6a-G6gHmgaoB_PRG6gHltgbqAeqm7ECqAeDrbECqAf_nrECqAffn7ECqAfKqbECqAfrpbEC2AcAwAgB0ggZCIBhEAEYHTICigI6B4HQgICAgARIvf3BOoAKA5ALA5gLAcgLAYAMAaIMCCoGCgTDsLECuAwB2gwRCgsQsOSBw9-didyZARICAQOqDQJVU-AS3uLy_-q72Zf4AdgTC9AVAfgWAYAXAQ&ae=1&ase=2&num=1&cid=CAQSOwBpAlJW4uGwGFmEXcl50fKkHIKfpmIjxxu1Vzx57Gi3jWAMMbrHt_Ut-WjPP-fDTBNUJfDZ63teE1-5GAE&sig=AOD64_0_fxBfmA1k7VjllZDYeC0IkXsCZw&ctype=5&client=ca-pub-2937494567949278&nb=9&adurl=https://www.yiume.com/products/mens-funky-hawaiian-shirt-marine-life-seahorse-octopus-print-button-down-tencel%3Fvariant%3D40463769763923%26currency%3DUSD%26utm_medium%3Dproduct_sync%26utm_source%3Dgoogle%26utm_content%3Dsag_organic%26utm_campaign%3Dsag_organic%26gclid%3DEAIaIQobChMI-qbEverKgAMV3aoAAB2hjQlKEAEYASABEgJF3fD_BwE
https://www.googleadservices.com/pagead/aclk?nis=4&sa=L&ai=Cijk7iAnRZPrCBt3VgrAPoZum0ATnn4L8cfaY8N7OEcLi-o3INxABILfI00dgyc7NiZCk6A-gAZOUjfQoyAEJ4AIAqAMByAPLBKoE5wJP0Auyvuqc21zvYl6L1mguxkliCvY6j5EQmIgypZJjLx3yjtlibsxAVBqNOdvCQsCmULBvWNRfseYiLQ1dMwcnnBUzZQq3sTNjcdh_4lob_8DUK6eVn-QY1pEihV77xDbjPylVdb3OliG4EhtiTCc-Bdeyi2UPc9hWRz489M9SI5dpnbeDazuaof86FP-g1FrrDFE20xcpG34u3N8mIdyWLcJeKAK-uQX0hxcrljSY1EUTiatkKqs4nXnyzIqmpYTlbkVtqekO3rfdWkPLkegpyvdpExjMNZrXyO7wbVL0NObQmReQW8tuRglxaOo0PZ0J0HrJ2YAagIYEJA9GrYi97QDxXCPRO0MmlWEmTlH7C_kiFnyepmuvVQlSxiDAs2YFzCEzA6vVO3g6lRAO-cAA8-jbXjR5Q-3YgbSRTdB8uYZYRAliFc2zc5b_b7HuQUcgG0ULLQNC19rZW0e1h6g23iT4Vl0ZlMAE4ueXnLEE4AQBwAUF-gUGCCUQARgBoAYugAeBkpDWA6gH2baxAqgHjs4bqAeT2BuoB-6WsQKoB_6esQKoB6SjsQKoB6a-G6gHmgaoB_PRG6gHltgbqAeqm7ECqAeDrbECqAf_nrECqAffn7ECqAfKqbECqAfrpbEC2AcAwAgC0ggZCIBhEAEYHTICigI6B4HQgICAgARIvf3BOoAKA5ALA5gLAcgLAYAMAaIMCCoGCgTDsLECuAwB2gwRCgsQsOSBw9-didyZARICAQOqDQJVU-ASic7C4PLSn47uAdgTC9AVAfgWAYAXAQ&ae=1&ase=2&num=1&cid=CAQSOwBpAlJW4uGwGFmEXcl50fKkHIKfpmIjxxu1Vzx57Gi3jWAMMbrHt_Ut-WjPP-fDTBNUJfDZ63teE1-5GAE&sig=AOD64_3MFXvRMkl3OcMqUDTwvTedQOniMw&ctype=5&client=ca-pub-2937494567949278&nb=9&adurl=https://www.yiume.com/products/mens-hawaiian-shirt-sea-ocean-fish-print-cotton-button-down-short-sleeve-aloha-shirt%3Fvariant%3D40823646027859%26currency%3DUSD%26utm_medium%3Dproduct_sync%26utm_source%3Dgoogle%26utm_content%3Dsag_organic%26utm_campaign%3Dsag_organic%26gclid%3DEAIaIQobChMI-qbEverKgAMV3aoAAB2hjQlKEAEYASACEgLQTvD_BwE
https://www.googleadservices.com/pagead/aclk?nis=4&sa=L&ai=C0DFniAnRZPrCBt3VgrAPoZum0ATnn4L8cfaY8N7OEcLi-o3INxABILfI00dgyc7NiZCk6A-gAZOUjfQoyAEJ4AIAqAMByAPLBKoE5wJP0Auyvuqc21zvYl6L1mguxkliCvY6j5EQmIgypZJjLx3yjtlibsxAVBqNOdvCQsCmULBvWNRfseYiLQ1dMwcnnBUzZQq3sTNjcdh_4lob_8DUK6eVn-QY1pEihV77xDbjPylVdb3OliG4EhtiTCc-Bdeyi2UPc9hWRz489M9SI5dpnbeDazuaof86FP-g1FrrDFE20xcpG34u3N8mIdyWLcJeKAK-uQX0hxcrljSY1EUTiatkKqs4nXnyzIqmpYTlbkVtqekO3rfdWkPLkegpyvdpExjMNZrXyO7wbVL0NObQmReQW8tuRglxaOo0PZ0J0HrJ2YAagIYEJA9GrYi97QDxXCPRO0MmlWEmTlH7C_kiFnyepmuvVQlSxiDAs2YFzCEzA6vVO3g6lRAO-cAA8-jbXjR5Q-3YgbSRTdB8uYZYRAliFc2zc5b_b7HuQUcgG0ULLQNC19rZW0e1h6g23iT4Vl0ZlMAE4ueXnLEE4AQBwAUF-gUGCCUQARgCoAYugAeBkpDWA6gH2baxAqgHjs4bqAeT2BuoB-6WsQKoB_6esQKoB6SjsQKoB6a-G6gHmgaoB_PRG6gHltgbqAeqm7ECqAeDrbECqAf_nrECqAffn7ECqAfKqbECqAfrpbEC2AcAwAgD0ggZCIBhEAEYHTICigI6B4HQgICAgARIvf3BOoAKA5ALA5gLAcgLAYAMAaIMCCoGCgTDsLECuAwB2gwRCgsQsOSBw9-didyZARICAQOqDQJVU-AS5Ymd07ytuJOxAdgTC9AVAfgWAYAXAQ&ae=1&ase=2&num=1&cid=CAQSOwBpAlJW4uGwGFmEXcl50fKkHIKfpmIjxxu1Vzx57Gi3jWAMMbrHt_Ut-WjPP-fDTBNUJfDZ63teE1-5GAE&sig=AOD64_2CVNjPFRPjrU97lSuymeSW1fNQLg&ctype=5&client=ca-pub-2937494567949278&nb=9&adurl=https://www.yiume.com/products/mens-hawaiian-shirt-luminocean-print-cotton-button-down-short-sleeve-aloha-shirt%3Fvariant%3D40795549401171%26currency%3DUSD%26utm_medium%3Dproduct_sync%26utm_source%3Dgoogle%26utm_content%3Dsag_organic%26utm_campaign%3Dsag_organic%26gclid%3DEAIaIQobChMI-qbEverKgAMV3aoAAB2hjQlKEAEYASADEgIwdfD_BwE
https://www.googleadservices.com/pagead/aclk?nis=4&sa=L&ai=C05sSiAnRZPrCBt3VgrAPoZum0ATnn4L8cfaY8N7OEcLi-o3INxABILfI00dgyc7NiZCk6A-gAZOUjfQoyAEJ4AIAqAMByAPLBKoE5wJP0Auyvuqc21zvYl6L1mguxkliCvY6j5EQmIgypZJjLx3yjtlibsxAVBqNOdvCQsCmULBvWNRfseYiLQ1dMwcnnBUzZQq3sTNjcdh_4lob_8DUK6eVn-QY1pEihV77xDbjPylVdb3OliG4EhtiTCc-Bdeyi2UPc9hWRz489M9SI5dpnbeDazuaof86FP-g1FrrDFE20xcpG34u3N8mIdyWLcJeKAK-uQX0hxcrljSY1EUTiatkKqs4nXnyzIqmpYTlbkVtqekO3rfdWkPLkegpyvdpExjMNZrXyO7wbVL0NObQmReQW8tuRglxaOo0PZ0J0HrJ2YAagIYEJA9GrYi97QDxXCPRO0MmlWEmTlH7C_kiFnyepmuvVQlSxiDAs2YFzCEzA6vVO3g6lRAO-cAA8-jbXjR5Q-3YgbSRTdB8uYZYRAliFc2zc5b_b7HuQUcgG0ULLQNC19rZW0e1h6g23iT4Vl0ZlMAE4ueXnLEE4AQBwAUF-gUGCCUQARgDoAYugAeBkpDWA6gH2baxAqgHjs4bqAeT2BuoB-6WsQKoB_6esQKoB6SjsQKoB6a-G6gHmgaoB_PRG6gHltgbqAeqm7ECqAeDrbECqAf_nrECqAffn7ECqAfKqbECqAfrpbEC2AcAwAgE0ggZCIBhEAEYHTICigI6B4HQgICAgARIvf3BOoAKA5ALA5gLAcgLAYAMAaIMCCoGCgTDsLECuAwB2gwRCgsQsOSBw9-didyZARICAQOqDQJVU-ASueToq9-D5onTAdgTC9AVAfgWAYAXAQ&ae=1&ase=2&num=1&cid=CAQSOwBpAlJW4uGwGFmEXcl50fKkHIKfpmIjxxu1Vzx57Gi3jWAMMbrHt_Ut-WjPP-fDTBNUJfDZ63teE1-5GAE&sig=AOD64_1jCFGgQothxebZJOJ3iUMkxANAMg&ctype=5&client=ca-pub-2937494567949278&nb=9&adurl=https://www.yiume.com/products/hawaiian-shirts-for-men-vintage-cotton-button-down-colorful-fish-short-sleeve-aloha-shirt%3Fvariant%3D40460095815763%26currency%3DUSD%26utm_medium%3Dproduct_sync%26utm_source%3Dgoogle%26utm_content%3Dsag_organic%26utm_campaign%3Dsag_organic%26gclid%3DEAIaIQobChMI-qbEverKgAMV3aoAAB2hjQlKEAEYASAEEgIshfD_BwE
https://www.mlive.com/politics
https://www.mlive.com/staff/jhermani1/posts.html
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=x043zuGWgMA
https://www.mirighttoread.com/about
https://www.mlive.com/


“The majority of Michiganders support the work our public libraries do and want to see various

perspectives portrayed in the content available at their local libraries,” said Debbie Mikula, executive

director of the Michigan Library Association. “Michigan’s public libraries are centers for community, and we

want to ensure that librarians across Michigan can do their jobs and serve the needs of all individuals.”

Advertisement

In a statement, the organization urged Michigan parents to join their coalition to aid in speaking out against

what it sees as book banning and censorship happening around the state.

In doing so, the campaign offers a toolkit for those interested in submitting letters to the editor of their local

paper, graphics of support for local libraries and news surrounding the topic of book bans.

Michigan gained national attention in 2022 when residents of Jamestown Township voted to defund the

Patmos Library after it refused to pull LGBTQ-related materials from its shelves. Barring new funding, the

library is slated to close in mid-2024 after two operating millage proposals failed in the midst of fervor

surrounding the book.

Most of the uproar centered on the 2019 graphic novel “Gender Queer: A Memoir” by Maia Kobabe, which

tells the author’s story of coming out as a nonbinary person. As part of the memoir, Kobabe recounts and

depicts a sexual act which has left some feeling the book is not appropriate for children.

Kobabe, in an interview with MLive earlier this year, said the book’s topics are more geared toward high

school ages and up and pushed back on the idea that graphic novels were inherently meant for child

audiences.

'Gender Queer,' a book by Maia Kobabe is the most banned 'Gender Queer,' a book by Maia Kobabe is the most banned ……

Advertisement

https://www.mirighttoread.com/parents
https://www.mlive.com/politics/2022/11/patmos-library-millage-fails-again-following-controversy-over-lgbtq-books.html
https://www.mlive.com/news/grand-rapids/2022/08/patmos-library-will-pursue-another-millage-amid-controversy-over-lgbtq-books.html
https://www.mlive.com/politics/2023/05/how-maia-kobabes-life-story-became-the-most-banned-book-in-america.html
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=N3zO21caR_w


SPONSORED BY: CHARLES SCHWAB

Ask Carrie: What should I do with cash?
You might choose an interest-bearing checking account, a

certi�cate of deposit, or something else entirely. It all depends
on you.

Since the initial Patmos controversy challenges to books offered in public libraries have only ramped up,

with contention also hitting the Lapeer Library in March of this year.

There, “Gender Queer” was the center of a dispute between community members who believed it should

stay on library shelves versus those who wanted it gone on the belief its pages constituted a form of

pornography.

Librarians, however, have argued a content neutral approach, maintaining libraries are simply venues for

individuals to check out whichever books they like and should not be tasked with moderating who can

check out what from their collections.

Lapeer County Prosecutor John Miller even weighed in on the topic, filing a Freedom of Information Act

request with the library to find out more information on the book – but only after Miller was quoted in a

Bridge Michigan article which alleged he was mulling whether keeping the book on library shelves could

potentially constitute a crime.

Ultimately, the book stayed on Lapeer library shelves and Attorney General Dana Nessel has since been

tasked with writing an opinion on whether book bans specifically targeting LGBTQ subjects are

discriminatory in nature.

“We need help from parents and all community members when they see these types of efforts to limit or

censor content at our public libraries,” said Juliane Morian, coalition member and Rochester Hills Public

Library director. “Parents should know that librarians want to partner with them during their family visits to

the library to help guide children to age-appropriate content. We can also share resources they might not

know exist at the library, like e-books, audiobooks, STEM kits and more.”

Advertisement

SPONSORED BY: CHARLES SCHWAB

5 Ways to Save Money When Traveling Domestically
Stay on budget and enjoy your vacation. Here are �ve ways to

help keep travel costs down.

More from MLive

https://bttrack.com/Click/Native?data=BVVA4NaYQ1NK_DbsXWhbNRQM4SAwZiT8jaNOmoD6o8n56N4t4hExQdzLv_ynLZNsHbFpZ7tSGq7mIVUq7NVIUCfyxgTHkxyTSCu4AAY5nsEvTgAQoqpwACPwBYF3GqvtwAWmwAwLygWh0dHA6Ly93d3cubWxpdmUuY29tL3BvbGl0aWNzLzIwMjMvMDgvbWljaGlnYW4tbGlicmFyaWVzLWxhdW5jaC1jaXRpemVuLWluaXRpYXRpdmUtdG8tZmlnaHQtYm9vay1iYW5zLmh0bWwAc10ka-uBwz8uwXAACPRcxOTguMTExLjE2Ny4xNjMAvAAAAxOhGj3JBFYWTY0MjdvMkhLaWJPeEZ0Mk4xV2hva0FuMlVKckYwTHdhTkYwNVhUWEN3bERvMVpZAAh2Nyd2RjbnRybC5uZXQAnJqcMLGZMhgbmhkwmpqxsJoZmhwcm5yYsJwaMZibMhqZnJmcMZqaMxyYHJmZHLIcsLGbGBqaGRocmBocGxkymIBaWQ1LXN5bmMuY29tAKSiGpUasLk2s7GlPLQ7MjQqvJi3u5y2pbWWlq-iqhqjOrQlvSOYNrC6qyO0mpujLSY8oS08sa-hupkkM6cmN7WmIao8K6ogtyc2pqclqycoOpwyOqUyNJkbM4BdGRpZACZmRowmTIaGhaYspuZlpoxsZsWsTKynJaZG7KZHJmaMrKZsJwALq5gE0ODE5NwCwTMxAY4SwGBfhgZGYGj2BuNgdUgAwDCASKgAADjjkxhvlyXgL-q5LijklgZwAA2P4AAAAAAAAEoACCAjAPoAADnh3ns9byW6UAM4JCS9BpzC6NLsygDEbcusQB4o9AIA2
https://www.mlive.com/news/flint/2023/03/controversial-lgbtq-memoir-the-subject-of-heated-lapeer-library-meeting.html
https://www.mlive.com/news/flint/2023/03/controversial-lgbtq-memoir-the-subject-of-heated-lapeer-library-meeting.html
https://www.bridgemi.com/michigan-government/michigan-prosecutor-mulls-charging-lapeer-library-over-lgbtq-book
https://www.mlive.com/politics/2023/06/are-lgbt-book-bans-discriminatory-michigans-civil-rights-agency-wants-ag-opinion.html
https://bttrack.com/Click/Native?data=BVVAUEG0wneTipmD_SkYU7mqW7mwTR_3MXqa0Qirpc264aDaJTgjTXiuXD0cBVOilgpVE8jbHy7mIVUq7NVIUCfyxgTHkxyTSCu4AAY5osEvTgAQkhVwACPblYF3GqvtwAWmwAwLygWh0dHA6Ly93d3cubWxpdmUuY29tL3BvbGl0aWNzLzIwMjMvMDgvbWljaGlnYW4tbGlicmFyaWVzLWxhdW5jaC1jaXRpemVuLWluaXRpYXRpdmUtdG8tZmlnaHQtYm9vay1iYW5zLmh0bWwAc10ka-uBwz8uwXAACPRcxOTguMTExLjE2Ny4xNjMAvAAAAxOhGlelBFYWTY0MjdvMkhLaWJPeEZ0Mk4xV2hva0FuMlVKckYwTHdhTkYwNVhUWEN3bERvMVpZAAh2Nyd2RjbnRybC5uZXQAnJqcMLGZMhgbmhkwmpqxsJoZmhwcm5yYsJwaMZibMhqZnJmcMZqaMxyYHJmZHLIcsLGbGBqaGRocmBocGxkymIBaWQ1LXN5bmMuY29tAKSiGpUasLk2s7GlPLQ7MjQqvJi3u5y2pbWWlq-iqhqjOrQlvSOYNrC6qyO0mpujLSY8oS08sa-hupkkM6cmN7WmIao8K6ogtyc2pqclqycoOpwyOqUyNJkbM4BdGRpZACZmRowmTIaGhaYspuZlpoxsZsWsTKynJaZG7KZHJmaMrKZsJwALq5gE0ODE5NwCwTMxAY4SwGBfhgZGYGj2BuNgdUgAwDCASKgAADnl0ESHlwhdR7-5bNvj8gZwAA2P4AAAAAAAAEoACCAjAPoAADjiIxtTDxgcCcq4K6S20pzC6NLsygDEbcusQRquDQIA2


 

 

 

 

Committee 

Reports 



To:  YDL Board of Trustees 
From:  Lisa Hoenig, Library Director 
Date: 8/17/2023 
Re:  Superior Planning Committee report 
 
We haven’t had a construction team meeting in several months, but have one scheduled on 8/29 to try 
to work out any last wrinkles.  Project status: 
 

• Margolis determined that 15 plants did not survive the winter; they will replace them.  This and 
additional hydroseeding to help the lawn fill in should take place by the end of August. 

• An area near the sidewalk on the southwest side of the building was pooling with water.  The 
ground seemed to have settled lower than the drain; Margolis also to add topsoil in this area to 
improve the grade.  

• Baseboard heating unit to be installed in the staff work area was cracked; we are waiting for a 
replacement to arrive. 

 
We are unhappy with the wire management system at the reader tables.  They come disconnected 
from the table and the floor regularly and do not meet our needs.  The manufacturer has agreed to 
replace them and has offered a number of different options. 

TelSystems did some work on the speaker volume adjustments but further work is required. Some 
handheld microphones are backordered.  We are also working to get information from them on how to 
best utilize the rear camera system in the meeting room.   

The additional bulletin boards arrived with the incorrect hardware.  They will be installed when 
replacement hardware is received. 

We continue to work with Dan Whisler on a plan for interactive play area elements for the Youth area. 

    

 



To:  YDL Board of Trustees 
From:  Lisa Hoenig, Library Director 
Date:  8/18/2023 
Re:  Facilities Committee report 
 
I recently received the final bill from RAM Construction for the Michigan Avenue water remediation 
project that wrapped up in September 2022.  I pushed hard for this bill before the end of last fiscal year 
but it never came.  They apologized for internal errors when sending it at last.   
 
Because of this I decided to provide a rundown on all of the capital improvement projects you have 
approved recently: 
 

• Resolution 2023-12 BRI sidewalk reconstruction project administration:  No bids received for 
sidewalk reconstruction; waiting until December to re-bid.  In preparation for this work I have 
requested a quote to have some dead trees removed from the round beds in the sidewalk. 

• Resolution 2023-16 HVAC gasket replacement at Whittaker:  Campbell has been working on this 
for the past several weeks.  They will wrap up in the next few days and turn the system back on. 

• Resolution 2023-17 Windows Phase 3:  Proceeding.  See the latest site visit report attached. 
• Resolution 2023-18 Youth wooden chairs:  Expected to arrive by month’s end. 
• Resolution 2023-19 Stack and pendant lighting:  Stack lighting has been upgraded to LED and 

DTE rebate application has been submitted.  All pendant lights except for Customer Service 
Desk area have also been upgraded.   

• Resolution 2023-23 MA roof repairs:  Solar PVC boots replaced. 
• Resolution 2023-24 Whittaker roof repairs:  Materials have been received.  Contractor expected 

to begin work the week of August 28. 
• Resolution 2023-25 Zone controllers:  Materials have been received.  Campbell expected to 

install week of August 28. 
• Resolution 2023-26 Pendant lighting (revised):  Waiting for finish samples to arrive to make 

final selection; 10-12-week lead time to order.  Expect to have new lights installed at Customer 
Services Desk before end of the fiscal year. 

• Resolution 2023-27 Window washing:  Waiting for Allied to schedule. 
• Resolution 2023-28 MA gutter sealing:  Completed 8/16.  Jared Lawrence to report his findings 

at 8/23 Board meeting. 
 
The Whittaker string lights (Resolution 2022-54) were repaired long ago, but an issue remains with the 
communication between the lights and our lighting control system.  Siemens has been working to get 
to the bottom of this, but progress has been slow. 
 
** 
 
Michigan Avenue flood remediation work continues.  The interior is largely gutted.  It will be a very 
long process to bring the building back to a useable condition.  We will know more when On-Site 
Restoration finishes their work.  Julianne and I will make a verbal report at the board meeting. 















 

 

 

 

Director’s 

Report 
and attachments 



Library Director’s Report 
August 23, 2023 

 
Excitement Building 
YDL staff are buzzing with excitement over the 3 ILS (integrated library system) demonstrations scheduled next 
week. We released an RFP on March 8 and received 7 vendor proposals. Sarah Zawacki’s resignation threw a 
wrench into our schedule, but with the hiring of Katie Page as our new Head of Acquisitions in June, we got back 
on track. We welcome TLN (The Library Network) to demonstrate the consortium’s shared system on 8/22, 
SirsiDynix on 8/23, and Innovative Interfaces on 8/24. The sessions are all-day affairs but will be recorded. We are 
excited to make a selection and move forward with next steps to bring our public a more robust, effective, and user-
friendly catalog experience! 
 
Facilities:   

• 7 new task chairs came in for Whittaker staff this month; recipients are happy.   
• The outer pane of glass on a curtainwall window in Whittaker Youth shattered on 8/12, likely from a long-

buried manufacturing imperfection.  An insurance claim has been filed; the internal pane is fine. 

Financial:   
• We received a stock gift this month to support reconstruction at Michigan Avenue. I immediately sold it; 

proceeds are now in the bank. Our TD Ameritrade account will migrate to Schwab in early September. 
• We received our second and final state aid payment and our annual penal fines distribution this month. 

Penal fines were less than anticipated. 

Personnel:   
• On August 28, librarian Amisha Harijan will join the Whittaker Adult Services staff. Amisha has worked for 

both the Detroit Public Library and Grand Rapids Public Library in the past, as well as the Detroit Public 
Library Foundation. She has experience in adult services, youth services, management, and development, 
and has a keen interest in archives and local history. 

• Communications Intern Samantha Huck resigned her position effective 8/10 to attend college. She brought 
a lot to her position and will be missed. We will be interviewing for her replacement soon. 

• We received 6 applications in response to the FT Building Monitor posting and are in the process of 
arranging interviews. YDL will throw a belated retirement barbecue for Derek Humphrey later this month; 
please let me know if you would like to attend and I will share details! 

Technology:   
• UM researcher Finn Bell approached YDL with a proposal to create a new oral history database to exist 

alongside our AP Marshall African-American Oral History Archive. Finn’s project focuses on local food 
growers. He is awaiting word on potential funding from the University. Fingers crossed! 

Side Notes: 
• Chris McMullen and I gave Superior branch tours to representatives from the Mullick Foundation (7/31) 

and Creative Washtenaw (8/16) this month. 
• The Superior Art Committee met via Zoom on 8/1 to hammer out a selection process for art submissions. 

The deadline to submit is 9/15, and the committee is scheduled to convene on 10/9 to narrow down 
choices. I am working on a grant proposal that would fund a district-wide Celebration of Art and Artmaking 
in 2024 to highlight the chosen pieces and YDL’s existing public art collection. 

• I attended two fascinating webinars this month: AI and Libraries (8/9) and Beyond Book Bans (8/15). 
• With Scott Garrison from MCLS I spoke about TALK at the Library of Michigan’s online director’s 

meeting on 8/11. 
 



YDL Dashboards 



8/15/23

DEVELOPMENT 

REVENUE BY SOURCE     Where the $ Comes From

ACTUAL TO DATE NOTES

DONATIONS FY21/22 FY22/23
Annual Report   $2,675 $1,685

Annual Appeal   $22,549 $11,887 21/22 includes a $10,000 gift

Individual $85,004 $3,029 21/22 includes $73,150 gift

Corporate $0 $850

Sponsorship $1,000 $1,000 Ann Arbor SPARK

Memorials $2,769 $4,144

Tributes $751 $275

Third Party ‐ Kroger, Amazon $946 $634

Friends of the YDL $24,000 $12,212

$139,694 $35,716

GRANTS
Charitable Foundation/Organization $20,600 $24,600 Dresner, A2 Rotary, ALA

Corporate Foundation $0 $30,500 Toyota, Kids Gardening

Government $41,774 $38,593 Talk Grant

$62,374 $93,693

ENDOWMENT FUNDS
YDL Agency Distribution $1,393 $1,497

Goussef Fund Distribution   $17,240 $9,077 Superior sprinker system

YDL General Endowment Distribution $6,768 $7,859

$25,401 $18,433

TOTAL: $227,469 $147,842

SUPERIOR CAPITAL CAMPAIGN
Grants  (Funds Received) $164,500 $120,500 Towsley, Song, Anonymous, MACC

Corporate/Organization $14,800 $11,555
AK, Domino's, Menlo, Campbell, D&Z, 

Stites

Donations ‐ Individual $388,669 $17,457

$567,969 $149,512



8/15/23

DEVELOPMENT 

REVENUE BY FUND Where the $ Goes

FY2021/2022  ACTUAL NOTES
General Fund $30,389 Includes Endowment Distribution

Miscellaneous Specified Funds $123,390 Friends and designated, non‐capital 

Superior Capital $567,969

TOTAL: $721,748

Endowment gifts received 

and deposited with AACF:  $5,000

FY2022/2023  AS OF:
6/22/2023 7/19/23 8/16/23

General Fund $21,756 $21,831 $22,582

Miscellaneous Specified Funds  $48,281 $49,321 $50,331

Superior Capital Campaign $145,862 $146,462 $149,512

TOTAL: $215,899 $217,614 $222,425

Endowment gifts received 
and deposited with AAACF:  $6,588

General Fund
10%

Miscellaneous 
Specified Funds

23%

Superior Capital 
Campaign

67%

Development Revenue    8/15/23

General Fund Miscellaneous Specified Funds Superior Capital Campaign



 

 

 

 

Department  

Reports 
 



Acquisitions Department Board Report 
August 2023 
 
Department News and Activities 
 

• This month, I’ve been working with the rest of the ILS selection committee to prepare for 
the vendor demonstrations at the end of the month. The vendor presentations will be open 
to all staff, and recorded for those who can’t attend in person or via livestream. I’ve already 
been receiving questions and feedback about the products, so there is definitely a sense of 
excitement among YDL staff! 

 
• Acquisitions staff continues to work on our regular tasks, including placing and receiving 

orders, processing materials, repairing items, MeLCat, inventory, and cataloging. 
 
 
Statistics 
 

• The collection budget is currently 65% encumbered. 
• 296 items were cataloged in July. 
• 4,598 items, including 3,798 e-items, were added in July. 
• YDL borrowed 885 items from other libraries via MeLCat in July. 
• YDL loaned 840 items to other libraries via MeLCat in July. 
• 104 items no longer in our system have been returned since going fine free. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
Submitted by Katie Page 
August 14, 2023 



Assistant Director 
Board Report:  August, 2023 
 
 

• We are making significant progress on a new ILS.  Three vendors are joining us for 
presentations in the community room on August 22-24.  These will be both livestreamed and 
recorded so that staff in other buildings or who are out of town will be able to watch them in 
full.  We will share the links with you as well if you are interested! 
 

• The water claim downtown is significant and truly sad.  I am working with our adjuster to 
make sure we have approval for the right parties to work on the reconstruction.  As of today, 
we are still unable to enter without full PPE. 
 

• The fall exhibit should be truly beautiful!  Several of us have 
worked on designing fun and engaging programs around its 
themes, and a full line-up of over ten programs is scheduled.  Two 
of the big ones include a Mad Hatter Tea Party for children 
(including “Drink Me Tea” that changes color – hope you don’t 
shrink!), with staff in costume and giant chess on the lawn.  The 
kickoff event will be a big outdoor movie night on an inflatable 
screen with popcorn and Sno-cones.  You won’t want to miss it on 
September 8! 
 

• After years of wishing for a programming space while the 
community room is in use, we are making progress toward adding elements to the 
“triangular bay” that will make this possible.  A large, mounted TV will be installed, and 
along with our portable mic, presentation capabilities will be one step closer.  Additional 
considerations for blinds and lighting control are TBD. 
 

• Another long-awaited initiative is currently on the books:  the replacement of Whittaker’s 
aging and unreliable drinking fountains!  Most organizations made upgrades due to COVID, 
and while we are a little late to the game due to necessary plumbing reconfigurations, we are 
finally there.  The new high-low fountains will have both bubblers and chilled, filtered bottle 
filling stations.   
 

• Our dedicated Friends, Bob and Mary Jane Ferrett, will be moving out of the area before the 
snow flies; who can blame them?!  As a result, the Friends are looking to divvy up the 
significant work Bob and Mary do selling books online.  Jim and I met with Patty and Marci 
to create a space for them in the Mezzanine, complete with shelving, lighting, a desk, and a 
laptop.  The sales will go on!   
 

• Jodi and I will be traveling to Kalamazoo next month to view and help design programming 
around the Wonder Media exhibit, which is a library-based media literacy and news literacy 
digital content initiative.  

 
Submitted by Julianne Smith, August 18, 2023 



Submitted by Sam Killian on 8/18/2023 

 

Community Relations 
Monthly report: August, 2023 

Major print/design pieces produced:  
• We’ll send the fall issue of The Loop to 

the printer soon. This will cover 
September through November and will 
include information about the Michigan 
Avenue closure, the “A Colorful 
Dream” exhibit, our ALA Great Stories 
Grant, National Library Card Sign-up 
month, our usual content from 
community partners like the Health 
Department, schools, 826michigan, and 
more. 

• We’re working on promotional items like tattoos, flyers, and bus ads to send to the printer to 
highlight the Toyota STEM grant.  

Promotions 
• Toyota STEM: We’re getting more intentional about promoting the Toyota STEM grant, 

and are looking to create tattoos and bus ads to make the program more visible. We’re also 
going to make flyers to share with local schools and a web page to highlight all the programs 
and resources people can use as a result of the grant.  

• National Library Card Sign Up Month: September is National Library Card Sign Up 
Month, so we’ll have a blog post, social media, and an article in the fall Loop encouraging 
people to get, renew, and use their library cards! 

Notable Media Mentions 

• CBS Detroit ran a story about our ALA Great Stories grant and book club that will start in 
October. 

• The A2Y Chamber ran our press release about the Great Stories grant in their newsletter. 
• Concentrate is planning a piece about our ALA Great Stories grant and book club. 

Community Relations news 
• We’re currently reviewing applications and scheduling interviews for our new 

Communications Intern, hopefully to start in September. 
• Our Parkridge meetings have been on hiatus for the summer, and will pick up in the fall. 

 
Notable Social Media activity 
 
Through the first half of August, we had over 50,000 impressions with our posts on Facebook (up 
285% from the last period). Our overall engagement on social media has gone up 58% from the last 
period as well. 
 
 
 
 



Submitted by Sam Killian on 8/18/2023 

 

• Our post with cats highlighting the Libby app 
reached over 2,100 people with nearly 150 
engagements.  

• Our picture of Ken with a shirt that said “Fight 
evil. Read books,” reached nearly 42,000 people 
with more than 900 engagements, including 300+ 
likes! 

• Our latest post encouraging people to submit 
artwork for display at the Superior branch 
reached 1,800 people with more than 80 
engagements. 

• Our post sharing the community quilt that 
Maddy sewed together for the Bicentennial 
reached more than 1,000 people with more than 
60 engagements. 

• The Libby post with the cats, and the post with 
Ken also got over 100 likes each on Instagram. 

• We’re consistently getting 300+ views on our Tik 
Tok videos and are up 270 followers and 3,674 
video likes. 
 

 
 



 

Customer Services 

Monthly report: August 2023 

 

Circulation Stats 

For the month of July, we checked out 46,775 items system wide. 

Patrons also downloaded 16,726 digital items. 

We issued 393 new library cards.  

 

Michigan Ave News 

There are still approximately 1,200 items from YDL-Michigan currently checked out.  At 
the time of the closure, there were close to 3,000 in circulation.  As stated in the last 
board report, we are housing the returns in the mezzanine at YDL-Whittaker.  We 
currently have five full bins of items just waiting for their safe return to YDL-Michigan. 

 

 
 

Submitted by John Connaghan on August 15, 2023 

 



YDL DEVELOPMENT REPORT 
August 2023 

 
PROCESSES AND REPORTING 
A grants management process is nearly ready for review.  Once the first draft has been completed, Chris will 
meet with Lisa to adjust and finalize before the process is officially rolled out to staff.   

 
OUTREACH – MAKING CONTACT 
Chris attended the Ann Arbor Area Community Foundation’s 60th Anniversary Kick-Off Party at Scarlett 
Middle School in Ann Arbor on July 28th.  The theme was a silent disco which encouraged participation by kids 
and their families.  Though the silent dancing was inviting, Chris spent her time speaking with A3CF Board 
members including Sean Duval of Golden Limousine and Betsy Petoskey from Conlin, McKenney & Philbrick. 
 
PROGRAM GRANTS 
In Process - Writing 
Great Michigan Read 2023/24 – Author tour and supplies for this year’s book, Firekeeper’s Daughter.  We 
will be partnering with the Saline District Library on this project in hopes of being selected for an author visit. 
 
Michigan Humanities Council Fall 2023  
Potential funder for the new Superior Art Fund and associated programs/workshops. 
Due September 7, may request up to $20,000 (requires organizational match). 
 
Michigan Arts and Culture Council Minigrant 2024 
Due January 15, this $4.000 mini-grant would support programs and receptions surrounding the artwork for 
Superior. This application is dependent upon MACC funds being available for this round of funding.  Chris will 
maintain contact with Creative Washtenaw (our region’s re-granting organization) regarding fund availability. 
 
Mobile Beacon Wi-Fly Digital Inclusion 
National grant which would provide a Wi-Fly Lending Launch Kit which includes 25 laptops, 25 mobile 
hotspots and one year of Mobile Beacon’s unlimited broadband service. ($10,000 value) Monica and Katie are 
crafting the grant with support from Chris and Lisa. Application is due September 30. 
 
Exploring 
Michigan Department of Education Out-Of-School Time Learning 
Supporting expanded in-person learning opportunities for kids K – 12, via mentoring, literacy, leadership, 
community engagement, STEAM, health, and recreation. Must provide educational programming in core  
areas including math, reading and science. Joy will be attending a webinar on August 28th.  A notice of Intent to 
Apply is required as a pre-requisite for application.  Once the RFP is released, we have 30 days to apply. 
 
ALA Thinking Money for Kids 2024/25                                                                                                           
Applications can be submitted now through September 8, resources for financial education for children ages 3  
– 12.  The program kit is valued at $2,000. 
 

https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Silent_disco


Staff continue to explore intergenerational programming at YDL.  Inspired by our participation in the Ypsilanti 
Intergenerational Community Solutions Institute at EMU, we have gathered a group of staff at YDL to focus on 
how we can develop our intergenerational programming.  At the first meeting, ideas and thoughts were 
gathered.  The committee will meet again on August 31st to determine where we would like to focus our 
energies and next steps.  
 

FALL ANNUAL APPEAL 
In anticipation of our annual appeal mailing in November, Chris has updated all politicos in the database.  She 
is now working on reviewing our current prospect list for the mailing, as well as making sure the list is as clean 
as possible.  She is also identifying lapsed donors who have not made a gift in the last two years.  There is an 
opportunity to create a more personalized letter to these donors encouraging them to continue their support. 
 

SUPERIOR CAPITAL CAMPAIGN 
Funds Raised:  $1,992,847    Balance to Raise:  $7,153 
We are not quite done yet, but we are so very close. We continue our outreach to select patrons and donors to 
help complete the campaign.  Lisa and Mary are working on determining costs for equipment for the 
interactive play area at Superior.  We currently have funds committed from Domino’s, but would welcome 
additional funds to complete the space. 
 

Please direct potential donors to our website if they would like to make a gift online! 
 
Lisa and Chris welcomed Lyric Osinski from The Mullick Foundation for a tour of Superior on July 31st.  The 
Mullick Foundation donated $10,000 in support of the kitchenette and Lunch, Listen and Learn this summer.  
We were happy to have her join us during lunch, so she could see the kids and the program in action.  
 
Margaret Woodard from Creative Washtenaw toured the library on August 16 and was very excited about the 
interactive ground mural which they supported. Margaret also agreed to provide a letter of support for our 
application to the MI Humanities Council for the Art Fund. She also nudged us to consider becoming a 
member of Creative Washtenaw (creativewashtenaw.org). 
 
On August 17, Nicole and Chris proudly presented the Superior garden to Ann Ringia from the Ann Arbor 
Farm & Garden Club.  They generously donated funds in support of the garden early on in the campaign.  She 
was thrilled with all the garden-to-table programming and unique opportunities Nicole has created for our 
patrons. Nicole will be presenting to the Club in January.  She also talked about future dreams for the garden, 
which sparked Ann’s interest.  She indicated another application to the Club may be in order. 
 
We continue to try to find a time to welcome Mary Stewart, President of the Kiwanis Club of Ann Arbor, for a 
tour of Superior.  They were co-sponsors with Creative Washtenaw/MACC in funding the interactive ground 
mural.  Lisa has also reached out to Sally Petersen.  Chris will circle back around to The Children’s Foundation 
this fall, as well as Mike Martin of the Martin Family Foundation. 
 
FUN FUNDRAISING FACT 
In 2022, the largest source of support in the U.S. came from individuals which represented 64% of total giving. 
 
Report respectfully submitted by Chris McMullen, Development Coordinator      8/17/23 



Facilities Department 
Board Report: August 2023 
On-Site Restoration continues the demolition 
needed at Michigan Ave following the flood. They 
have removed all the paneling, drywall, and plaster 
to get to the original wall when the building was 
erected in 1915. Parts of the ceiling have been 
removed also. On-Site is now working on some of 
the flooring the needs to be removed before repairs 
can start. 

Jared and his crew from Terracon water tested the gutters at Michigan Ave to test 
Bloom Roofing’s work, and any possible other issues. They found multiple areas of 
concern with the gutter. Bloom Roofing part of the repairs were successful. Jared will 
forward a report of his assessment of the situation. 

We had some vandalism at Michigan Ave. Someone 
threw a water bottle breaking a window near the 
employee entrance. Harmon Glass gave an estimate 
for repairs. The glass has to be ordered, and will be 
installed once it gets in. An insurance claim was 
made, a police report was made. Police have not 
found the suspect. 

A glass panel of the curtain wall at Whittaker Road 
shattered last week. There was a defect in the glass 
during manufacturing. Twenty some years after is was 
made it decided to break. Glasco, the company doing 
the window sealing work is giving us a quote for 
replacing the window. An insurance claim has been 
made on this also. 

In preparation for Julie’s exhibit coming 
in later this month, we painted the 
Whittaker Road Community Room walls 
white to help show off all the brilliant 
colors of the artwork. 

 

 

 

 



Put up shelving left over from the old 
Superior building for the Friends of the 
Library to help them better utilize their space 
in the mezzanine. 

      

 

 

 
Ron has been working on some curbs at Michigan Ave that crumbled, or have broken 
over the years. Here are a couple pictures of his handy work.  

 

 

Submitted by:  Jim Reed 

August 17, 2023 

 

 

 

 



INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY SERVICES DEPARTMENT 
August 2023 

Submitted by Scott Ostby  
Technology Manager  
August 18, 2023 

Status Report  
 New servers – 2023 will continue the process of system upgrades. Newly acquired hardware/virtual software 

provides us with a platform to grow and refresh almost every one of our in-house systems. I’ve added the Virtual 
hosts to their new home, updated backup infrastructure, and brought a few critical/new systems online. 

 Zoho Management– We’ve finished the bulk of the install concluding the major objectives. In the coming months 
we’ll look to adjust to any system issues but also implement enhanced maintenance tasks. 

 Spring/Summer Cleaning – I’ve been working on some of our data closets to re-organize and give the 
infrastructure a re-organization. Years of dust and day to day living has accumulated and I’ll be working to get 
these vital backend areas a once or twice over likely through the summer as time allows. 

 Updated Firewall – Our primary firewall has seen a few years of service and is scheduled to be replaced. I will 
plan for an install after hours with negligible impact to operations. I currently have the unit in hand and am 
hopeful to install it after some of the upcoming holiday time constraints pass. 

 Michigan Ave Water Closure – Previous plans for re-arrangement will be implemented during the re-opening 
process in the coming months. As of right now all required equipment to enable Mich Ave staff to operate across 
our other facilities have been removed and installed. A remediation company is handling the large task of removal 
and storage of most of our other IT equipment until the building is ready to re-accept the systems. Next steps will 
be to prepare for replacement of system affected by the flood such as security cameras and data wiring. 

 New ILS System – We look forward to taking part in the selection and implementation process for an exciting 
new ILS system. 
 

 Miscellaneous Equipment updates – We’re looking to replace a few older laptops and exploring a solution to add 
a digital display for programming needs at Whittaker Rd on the first floor. 
 

 Security Cameras – There’s been a request to reinforce camera coverage in our system. We’ll be exploring the 
possibility of a few notable improvements. 
 

 

Overall System Status  
 We’re currently focused on rolling out new equipment and look forward to reviewing our systems as a whole to 

determine additional points of improvement through-out 2023. 

 

New or Upcoming Items 
 Memory Lab – We’re taking part in an added feature that in some form will certainly help patrons archive/digitize 

personal physical/digital media. 
 
 

 



Michigan Avenue Board Report: August 2023  
 
Building 
Much of the demolition has been completed.  Upstairs the entire wall surfaces, 
floor to ceiling, along the exterior of the building have been taken down to the 
brick & concrete base layer. All decorative cornices and several feet of ceiling 
around the perimeter of the building have been removed.  In some spots there 
are large sections of ceiling removed. The columns at the back have been 
stripped of all surface material. Room 1 and the New Book room have had all 
but the interior walls removed. Due to the lead paint on the upstairs walls, 
Onsite created a “room within a room” containment system of plastic walls 
from floor to ceiling.  The first most internal “rooms” have now been removed 
and industrial HEPA filters are constantly running. The carpeting and lobby tiles 
have been removed from the majority of the upstairs. Unfortunately the latest 
report indicates that there is still moisture under the luaun board substrate 
beneath the carpeting. This means that the entire substrate in the New Book 
Room and Room 1 will need to be removed, along with a 6’ perimeter of the 
main upstairs area. The good news is that none of the decorative ceiling in the 
lobby was damaged and it remains untouched. The entire outside wall of the 
stairwell has been brought down to the brick and metal beaming layer. 
Downstairs, all carpeting has been removed from the Program Room, Room 2, 
Teen Zone, bathroom/elevator hallway, and about 6’ perimeter around the main 
youth area. Room 2 has also had the drywall removed from the outside 
perimeter walls. From my perspective, the inside of the building is surreal.  
 
Meanwhile, Jim has brought in roofing folks who have taken care of a gutter 
issue and problem areas where the newer back office addition joins the original 
part of the building. Terracon will flood the system with huge amounts of water 
to test whether the fixes are good for handling future heavy rain storms.  
 
Julianne has been very involved with all aspects of communications with insurance and 
OnSite, the disaster recovery/demolition company. That has been extremely helpful!  We 
had a walkthrough with Phoenix construction company and Kyle, our architect for the 
space study, about how to make a bit of lemonade out of this by possibly making 
improvements in the structure or layout that MIGHT move us toward some of the 
ideas that were proposed in the 2019 space study.  Multiple meetings have been 
held with Julianne, myself, and Michigan Ave staff to see what types of 
improvements will make the biggest difference. Since the priority is to get us up and 
running again as soon as possible, funding a major construction project was not in 
the budget, and, of course, we still don’t know the full scope of the damage, loss, 
and fixes, we are still in limbo and gathering information.  As info is gathered, there 
is a balancing act of weighing what’s realistic, and doable in a short amount of time, and choosing wisely.  
 
Staff 
Mich Ave staff have been relocated at WR and Superior for the duration of this project.  Shoshanna and 
Aaron are in WR Adult Services. Pat, Kelly, and Stephanie are in WR Youth, Kathryn and Alias are working 
in WR Circ, and Jenny is working with Outreach.  Rachel, Scott, Charline, and Maddy are working at 
Superior.  Venus is working mostly at WR Circ but has one night at Superior Circ.  I’m roving around from 
place to place, currently at Superior, providing some manager support while Mary is on vacation. Everyone is 
very grateful that there were no layoffs and that they can be useful and learn new things while taking turns at 
other departments. While no one would have asked for this, it has been beneficial to get to know colleagues 
that we don’t normally work with and see how processes can be done differently. I’m very grateful to Paula, 



Monica, Jodi, John and Mary for taking on the extra work and complexity of mixing in Mich Ave temporary 
staffing with their regular folks.   

 
Programs & Services 
We have been able to keep some programs running by relocating them.  Crafternoons was held twice at the 
Glaze Studio, Jenny and Stephanie held storytimes at Bridge Community Center, Jenny held flower pounding 
at WR.  Pat held her book clubs and Read-to-Dog program at Whittaker Rd. Stephanie has done gardening 
programs outside at Mich Ave or they’ve been relocated to Growing Hope’s Incubator Kitchen behind us.  
We’ve had pretty good attendance despite all the changes! Monumental efforts were made in planning fall 
programs.  We originally planned to only relocate/cancel September programs but it became clear that we 
would likely be closed for the entire fall. Along with trying to stuff our programs into Superior and 
Whittaker’s already busy schedules, Spark East, Riverside Arts, Ypsilanti Senior Center, and Parkridge have all 
generously allowed us to hold various programs at their locations with little or no fee. Sam deserves huge 
kudos for his incredible patience trying to edit The Loop while we have been moving things around.  
 
We have a few services we have been able to offer at the branch.  The Wi-Fi is still available outside. We have 
been able to keep the book drop available to downtown folks thanks to Khi and Ken emptying it when they 
do delivery. We have some type of issue with outside electricity to the after-hours lockers and the power 
stand so those seem to be sporadic and we hope to stabilize those issues. People are frequently using the 
electricity by the back door and the emergency exit so having a working charging station is valuable.  

Joy Cichewicz 
August 17, 2023 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 



 



Outreach Board Report - August 2023 
 

August 15th marked my one-year anniversary as the Head of 
Outreach Services!  Yay!  It has been amazing being here at Ypsilanti 
District Library!  I have a wonderful Outreach Team that all have 
done amazing things, enjoy working with my YDL colleagues, and a 
community that has embraced me fully.  I am very humbled by this 
experience.  I am looking forward to doing much on behalf of the 
library and the community.  Thank you, Ypsilanti for welcoming me. 
 
 

Eastern Michigan University has been a 
great partner.  Eastern Michigan University 
donated over 500 STEM kits for the 
summer camps this year.  Bia Hamed, 
Director of K-12 STEM Outreach at EMU, 
received a grant from the University of 
Michigan.  On our third visit with the 
Summer Camps for Summer Challenge, we 
handed out free books and STEM kits.  You 
cannot help but smile with pride when you 
see the kids receive their earnings after the 

hard work of reading 
for the entire summer! 
 
The next partnership with Eastern Michigan University was being at their 
Bike Rodeo event.  There were over 80 attendees and 69 of them visited our 
table, Bookmobile and Book Trike!  We passed out over 29 STEM kits 
purchased with the Toyota STEM Grant we received this year!  We took 
pictures with Swoop, the EMU mascot.  It was a wonderful experience and 
an honor to be invited.  Thank you, Sgt Joseph Torres III for having us there.  
The team: Khi, Jenny, Noah, and me.  There were helmets, food, and other 
organizers there for the families. 
 

 

 

 

 

mailto:jtorresi@emich.edu


We love being a part of the community and YDL make sure that they are present 
at any event.  We tabled at two of the Ypsilanti Jazz Festivals at Riverside Park 
and had a total of 67 people stop by.  We also passed out 14 STEM kits.  I had 
one concert attendee speak so highly about how we are at events that you 
wouldn’t expect to see a library!  This is what YDL is all about!  We want to be 
present and reach out to share our resources any and everywhere! 

 

 

 

 

 

 

We also were at the Shop for a Cop Back to School event at Fireman’s Park (team: Susana, 
Monique, Ken, Jenny), Youth at the Park (Ken, Jenny), and Family Fun Night at Fireman’s Park 
(Khi, Monica).  These events are especially important due to youth, families, and literacy. Any 
time we get an opportunity to visit with the community about programs and services that we 
offer is always great.   It is not always about numbers it is ALWAYS about the people we affect 
and make sure to stop by to simply say hi to us.  This shows the great work and love we receive 
from all of Ypsilanti, Ypsilanti Township, and Superior Township.  We thank you.  

 

 

 



Superior Board Report 
August 2023  
 
Program Highlights 

• Lunches, storytimes, and most other programs concluded 
on August 4. Our first summer of  programs at Superior 
was wildly successful. It gave us good information we can 
use for planning future summer lineups. Our partnerships 
with Youth Arts Alliance and Healthy Habits Start Now 
were integral to our ability to put on daily programs after 
lunch.  

o Program attendance from June 19-August 4: 2,345  
o Lunch attendance from June 26-August 4: 826  
o Storytime attendance: 423 

• Black Men Read did a family storytime on August 5. 
• Kallista joined Psyche for a Market Storytime at the 

Farmer’s Market.  
• We hosted a talk on August 1 by local historian Matt 

Siegfried about Ypsilanti’s Emancipation Day celebrations 
throughout time. The event was well-attended and we had 
some young listeners who were particularly engaged in 
learning about the history of  African American migration 
to and through Ypsilanti, Emancipation Day celebrations, 
and more.  

 
 
Building & Grounds 

• We had to close early on Wednesday, July 26 for a power 
outage. We remained close through the day on Thursday, 
July 27, reopening Friday the 28th.  

• Although our Garden to Table program is done, the garden 
is yielding some beautiful produce. See Nicole’s latest 
harvest to the right. She places extra produce at the 
checkout desk for patrons to take home.  
 

 
Staffing: 

• We said goodbye to four very helpful summer staff  – our two Graham Scholars Liv & Noah, in 
addition to two Food Gatherers employees, Diamond and Sentra, who oversaw our lunch program. 
Their help made our busy summer a bit easier!  

• Monique assisted the Outreach Department in staffing the Back to School Backpack Giveaway at 
Fireman’s Park.  
 

Submitted by Mary Garboden, 
August 8, 2023 



Whittaker Road-Adult Services Board Report: August 2023 

Here is a listing of August programs:  

• Microsoft Word – Basics 
• Google Slides for Beginners (Adult-Virtual) 
• Microsoft Excel – Basics 
• Vegetable Succession Planting: - Planting Into Fall  
• How to Host a Zoom Meeting (Adult-Virtual) 
• Microsoft Word – Intermediate 
• Google Calendar - Basics 
• Microsoft Excel – Intermediate 
• Google Docs for Beginners (Adult-Virtual) 
• Microsoft PowerPoint – Basics 
• Gmail - Basics 
• Plant-Based Vegan – Made Easy! 
• Google Sheets for Beginners (Adult-Virtual) 
• Microsoft Excel – Pivot Tables (Intermediate) 
• Google Sheets Tips & Tricks (Adult-Virtual) 
• Garden questions? Ask The Master Gardener! 
• Document Shredding 
• Google Docs Tips & Tricks (Adult-Virtual) 
• Microsoft Publisher – Basics 
• Virtual African American Authors Book Discussion Group 
• Mystery Lover's Book Group 

 

August has been a slow month for programs, with sparse attendance thus far. We do expect a better 
showing for our annual document shredding event which takes place later this month. We’ve had calls 
over a few months about this so it seems like there is interest.  

Aaron has been helping with weeding of the Whit Road collection which has been very helpful!  
Shoshanna will also soon be helping out with this. All staff are weeding collection areas in preparation 
for our new ILS.   It’s good to have accurate records and not carry over records for unneeded items into 
a new system. Thanks to Facilities staff for hauling the boxes of weeded materials out of our office.  

While we will miss long-time staffer Christy Havens when she retires in mid-September, we’re also 
excited to welcome a new staff member, Amisha Harijan, who will begin work on Aug 28th.  We look 
forward to making good use of her talents and having a new friendly face at the reference desk.  Robert 
Neil attended his first econtent meeting along with Christy as he will become our new econtent 
representative, and Sheila Konen is now handling our holds manager econtent purchasing.  Brigitte will 
take over updates to our econtent brochure. Thanks to Christy for assisting other staff in taking over 
these duties.  



All staff will have a chance to hear from the finalists for our new ILS system (in person, virtually, or 
viewing recorded sessions) next week. We are really looking forward to a new, more robust system that 
will offer both staff and patrons a new and improved ILS experience.   

Submitted by Paula Drummond August 16, 2023 



Whittaker Youth Services Board Report August 2023
Programs
Little Ones
Storytimes During the eight week summer session, we hosted 23 storytimes with an average
attendance of 45. Several offsite storytimes were presented at local parks and the farmers market on
Saturday mornings, with attendance ranging from 11 to 22.
Nature Play The last three sessions of exploratory play-based learning stations in the garden focused on
birds and nests, small pretend play worlds such as a construction site and zoo, and nature potions.
Kids and Parents
Lunch and After Lunch Programs through the first week of August Over the eight week session, we
hosted 29 lunches and 38 after lunch programs. We served about 40 kids per lunch and program
attendance averaged 61 per program. People often stayed to play all afternoon and we were happy to
have help fromMichigan and Outreach staff to keep the desk covered.
Mondays Kam Reynolds offered weekly drawing classes for tweens.
Tuesdays Reading Buddies capped off an extended session that included an 826michigan writing
workshop where buddies wrote together and a party the teens planned with ice cream and cookie
decorating. Readers took home polaroid photos of themselves with their buddies.
Wednesdays STEM Play activities remained most popular. The final two sessions included circuits with
Jodi, Audrey and Michael where kids played with our Snap Circuit sets and made glowing flowers and
small flashlights using conductive tape and LED lights; and water engineering with Psyche, Marlena and
Jodi where kids moved water and water beads from bin to bin through PVC pipes, built and tested Lego
boats, and slid on the SlipNSlide. Even tweens and teens enjoyed the water on the hot day.
Thursdays The last three Move programs included a big indoor/outdoor scavenger hunt with Psyche;
bubbles with Marlena and Ulana where kids made bubble paintings, played with water beads, and did
activities with jump ropes and Marlena’s giant scrunchie; and field day with Psyche, Liz, and Ulana where
kids ran an obstacle course, played YDL’s giant games, and had cool treats.
Nature STEAM included nature journals with Liz, Jaclyn, Noah and Liv, where kids made a book and then
used tools to improve their observation and recording skills; composting, where kids made take-home
compost bottles and learned about composting with the county, played a sorting game with Noah and
Liv, and helped get our new compost bin started with the county’s recipe of brown and green materials
that included items gathered outside and uneaten raw produce saved from lunches; and landscape art
with Jaclyn, where kids learned about perspective and color and set up outside to draw what they saw,
then learned about plant parts and took home seed bombs with Noah and Liv.
Teens
Volunteers Teens logged about 500 hours this summer. Kelly and Jodi hosted a party attended by 12
teens, who ate pizza, played a game and reflected on what they did over the summer and how those
activities translate to bullet points on a resume. TAG has had a steady group of 10-12 teens who worked
on fall ideas for programs and kept the pixel art in the teen area going.
Other 6 teens met in the garden to make art with petals and leaves from the garden and art supplies and
anime club continues to meet monthly.
Other Work
Around the Department Audrey and Michael created a new interactive display where kids can make the
cover of a favorite book. Audrey created a back-to-school display. Psyche created a flower-making
project for the art cart. Our sub Claire made a Sci Fi display for the teen area.
YDL-Michigan Programs Pat’s book clubs and Read to Moon have temporarily relocated to our
department and are going well.
Bridge Book Bundles Audrey and Emma developed popular “bridge packs” based on a patron request
made to Psyche. They created temporary bundles of books with leveled readers, math and science
books, and a list of sight words, to help kids get ready for the grade they’ll enter in the fall.
Rain Garden Six volunteers joined Noah and Liv to do a major weed of the rain garden. A representative
from the county came out to assess and gave Jodi suggestions for next steps. After asking Jim to have
soil and compost delivered, we’ll host another volunteer work session before next month’s plant swap.
Summer Challenge 2,090 people have signed up and 846 have earned a prize for completing 10
activities so far. Submitted by Jodi Krahnke August 16, 2023



 

 

 

 

New Business 
 



To:  YDL Board of Trustees 
From:  Lisa Hoenig, Library Director 
Date:  8/17/2023 
Re:  Consideration of resolutions related to the Michigan Avenue roof  
 
 
On August 10th I emailed the Board the following: 

I would like to request your approval of the attached proposal for gutter testing at Michigan Avenue for 
$5,000.  The YDL Purchasing Policy caps my approval limit at $4,000, but includes an “emergency” 
clause at the end for items that come up between Board meetings:  

B. Emergency  Purchases 
An emergency is defined as an unforeseen combination of circumstances or the resulting state that calls 
for immediate action. If a situation impinges on Library services or facilities and 
an emergency purchase contravening the policy statements above is deemed necessary, it must be 
approved by the Library Director and/or his/her designee. Established procedures will be followed as 
much as is practicable under the circumstances. A written justification of the nature of 
the emergency and the selection of the particular vendor shall be submitted to the Library Board and 
shall become part of the record for the purchase. 
 
This isn't exactly an “emergency," but On Site should finish the clean-up at Michigan Avenue by 8/18, 
and we don't want to risk water getting inside after their completion date.   
 
If a majority of you will approve this expenditure via email, I will have Terracon perform the testing 
early next week.  I would then bring a resolution for your formal approval to the Board meeting, 
indicating the use of Capital Asset Replacement Fund monies for this expense.  If the testing reveals 
any further deficiencies, there may be additional expenses for approval. 
 
A majority of Trustees responded “yea” to this request.  The testing was completed on 8/16.  I have 
invited Jared Lawrence of Terracon to join us via Zoom at the Board meeting to share his findings and 
recommendations. 
 
A resolution formally approving the proposal for gutter testing is attached. 
 

https://www.ypsilibrary.org/about/policies/purchasing-policy/


YPSILANTI DISTRICT LIBRARY 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 2023-29 
 

August 23, 2023 
 

RESOLUTION TO AUTHORIZE ROOF GUTTER TESTING AT MICHIGAN AVENUE 
___________________ 

 
Whereas, the Michigan Avenue library suffered a catastrophic flood on July 1, and  
 
Whereas, the roof drains were overwhelmed by torrential rain and water infiltrated the 
building, and 
 
Whereas, the roof was inspected and a potential design flaw was discovered which may have 
contributed to the disaster, and 
 
Whereas, Bloom Roofing has sealed the roof gutters, but concerns about drains and seams 
remained, and 
 
Whereas, Terracon Inc. proposed to test the gutters for water infiltration, and using the 
emergency clause of the Purchasing Policy, the Library Director requested they move forward 
immediately, Now Therefore 
 
IT IS RESOLVED BY THE YPSILANTI DISTRICT LIBRARY BOARD that: 
 
The attached proposal from Terracon to test the gutters at Michigan Avenue roof, at a cost of 
$5,000 is approved.  
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that: 
 
The Capital Asset Replacement Fund will be used for this project. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
OFFERED BY: __________________________________________________ 
 
SUPPORTED BY: __________________________________________________ 
 
YES:            NO:             ABSENT:            VOTE: 















To:  YDL Board of Trustees 
From:  Lisa Hoenig, Library Director 
Date:  8/17/2023 
Re:  Award of snow removal contract  
 

Facilities Services Manager Jim Reed and I released an RFQ for snow removal services on August 1st 
(attached).  We requested separate quotes for each location, and asked for both seasonal pricing as 
well as per-service pricing.   

We received three quotations by the August 16th deadline.  As has been the case in the past, upon 
analysis, the seasonal pricing is the better option.  A chart is attached tabulating the bids received.  The 
low bid is from A.K. Lawncare, our current snow removal service.  They have been our provider for 
Whittaker and Michigan Avenue for the past 6 years, and they have performed satisfactorily. 

A.K. was also awarded a one-year contract to handle snow removal at Superior last fall. 

I recommend the Board award the contract for snow removal at all 3 YDL locations to A.K. Lawncare 
for a total of $27,500 per season for the next three years. 

 
 



YPSILANTI DISTRICT LIBRARY 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 2023-30 
 

August 23, 2023 
 

RESOLUTION TO AWARD A SNOW REMOVAL CONTRACT 
 

___________________ 
 
 
Whereas, the Ypsilanti District Library released a Request for Quotation for Snow Removal 
Services, and 
 
Whereas, YDL wishes to lock in a seasonal contract for the next three years, and 
 
Whereas, three bids were received and tabulated, and  
 
Whereas, A.K. Lawncare, the Library’s current snow removal contract holder, which has a 
satisfactory performance record, submitted the low bid, Now Therefore, 
 
IT IS RESOLVED BY THE YPSILANTI DISTRICT LIBRARY BOARD that the snow 
removal contract for all three YDL locations is awarded to A.K. Lawncare for a seasonal total 
of $27,500 for the 2023-24 through 2025-26 winter seasons. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
OFFERED BY: ____________________________________________________________ 
 
SUPPORTED BY: __________________________________________________________ 
 
YES:            NO:             ABSENT:            VOTE: 



 

 

REQUEST FOR QUOTATION 
YPSILANTI DISTRICT LIBRARY 

3 YEAR CONTRACT FOR SNOW REMOVAL 
 

AUGUST 1, 2023 
 
The Ypsilanti District Library is accepting quotations for a three-year contract for snow 
removal for the 2023/24 through the 2025/26 winter seasons.  The winter season is 
defined as the period from November 15 through April 15.  The contract will include all 
three Library locations:  

• 5577 Whittaker Road, Ypsilanti Township 
• 229 W. Michigan Avenue, Ypsilanti 
• 1900 Harris Road in Superior Township 

 
Snow depths shall be determined by the official report of the National Bureau and Local 
Weather Service, and/or on-site measurements for purposes of any price delineation due 
to depth of snowfall. 
 
QUOTE FOR EACH LOCATION TO INCLUDE: 
 

1. Price for snow plowing per push and any delineation in price for depth of snowfall. 
2. Seasonal price for snow plowing and any delineation for depth of snowfall. 
3. Price for removing snow from each location’s sidewalks and Library Plaza 

downtown per push and any delineation for depth of snowfall. 
4. Seasonal price for removing snow from each location’s sidewalks and Library 

Plaza downtown and any delineation for depth of snowfall. 
5. Price for salting of parking lots, roadways and areas not requiring ice melter per 

application. 
6. Seasonal price for salting of parking lot and areas not requiring ice melter. 
7. Price for de-icing each location’s sidewalks and Library Plaza downtown per 

application. 
8. Seasonal price for de-icing each location’s sidewalks and Library Plaza downtown. 
9. Price for heavy equipment and labor for snowfalls in excess of 10 inches. 
10. A list of three (3) commercial references for whom snow removal was performed. 

 
GENERAL INFORMATION 
 

1. The chosen vendor will ensure that they will be able to respond quickly to adverse 
weather conditions that affect the parking lot and walkways to keep them hazard 
free for Library patrons during the hours that the library is open.   

2. On days the Library opens at 9 or 10 a.m., employees begin arriving at or before 
8 a.m., therefore the main sidewalks at both locations and staff parking area at 
Whittaker Road need to be cleared prior to 8 a.m. The remaining parking areas 
and sidewalks must be cleared no later than 8:30 a.m. (for snowfalls that occur 
overnight).   



 

 

3. On Sundays, the Whittaker Road Library opens at 1 p.m. and employees begin 
arriving at or before noon, however, work should be timed such that patrons have 
safe access to the materials return boxes at all locations during the morning hours.   

4. Areas to be plowed include: 
a. Whittaker: the non-motorized path along Whittaker Road bordering the 

Library property, and Veterans Drive running through the Library property 
b. Michigan Avenue:  an 8’ path through Library Plaza downtown and access 

to the Plaza’s seating areas 
c. Harris Road:  The drive-up book return loop. 

5. The successful company will provide a Proof of Insurance Certificate which 
includes Property Liability, Property Damage and Workers’ Compensation upon 
execution of a contract with the Ypsilanti District Library. 

6. The successful company will provide a minimum of two (2) contact persons with 
their contact information (cell and land line telephone numbers). 

7. This contract shall commence on November 15, 2023 and continue for a period of 
three (3) years. The Ypsilanti District Library may terminate this contract at any 
time by giving thirty (30) days written notice by certified mail.  Should cancellation 
occur a refund of the sum paid by the Ypsilanti District Library would be pro-rated 
on the basis of the unused portion of the contract period paid. No service charge, 
handling fees or other penalties for cancellation will be allowable. 

8. Both parties must agree that the contract is not transferrable or assignable. 
9. It is further understood that no other agreement – oral or written – expressed or 

implied – shall limit or qualify the terms of this agreement unless such additional 
agreement is accepted in writing by both parties. 

10. Final acceptance and awarding of the contract will be the decision of the Ypsilanti 
District Library Board of Trustees at their August 23, 2023 meeting. 

11. The decision of the Ypsilanti District Library Board of Trustees to award the 
contract will be based on various factors including; price, reference checks, and 
quality of workmanship. Lowest price proposal is not automatically awarded the 
contract. 

12. The Ypsilanti District Library reserves the right to reject any proposal. 
 
Questions regarding the properties or YDL’s expectations should be directed to Jim Reed, 
Facilities Manager, via telephone at (734) 482-4110 x1309. 
 
Questions regarding the bid process should be directed to Lisa Hoenig, Library Director, 
(734) 879-1300 or lisa@ypsilibrary.org. 
 
All quotations are due by 5:00 p.m. Wednesday, August 16, 2023.  
 
Quotations should be submitted to Lisa Hoenig, Library Director, and can be: 

• Faxed to (734) 482-0047. 
• Delivered to YDL, 5577 Whittaker Road, Ypsilanti Michigan 48197. 
• Emailed to lisa@ypsilibrary.org. 



Michigan Avenue Whittaker Road Superior Three Property

Seasonal Price Seasonal Price Seasonal Price Total Price

A.K. Lawncare 

305 W. Main Street 

Milan, MI  48160
$5,500 $11,500 $10,500 $27,500

RNA Facilities Management 

717 W. Ellsworth Road 

Ann Arbor, MI  48108
$7,530 $21,250 $11,500 $40,280

Superior Landscape 

Companies, Ypsilanti, MI 

48197
$11,475 $24,875 $11,475 $47,825

Ypsilanti District Library Snow Removal Bids 

2023/24‐2025/26 Seasons



Page 1 of 2 

 

 
 
 
 

A Professional Snow & Ice Management Company 
 

3-year Snow Maintenance Proposal  
 

305 W. Main St.  
Milan, MI 48160 

734-439-3063 office 
734-439-5649 fax 
www.ak-lawncare.com  

 
 
Date: August 2, 2023    
 
 
Submitted to: Ypsilanti District Library 
 
229 W. Michigan Ave. 
Ypsilanti, MI 48197 
 
 
We hereby submit specifications and estimates for: 
 
Parking lots, entrances, and walks. Plowing and shoveling begins after 1.5” accumulation of snow as the 
result of snowfall or drifted snow.  Salting occurs after plowing or during icy conditions.                                                      
 

*Return services will be provided every 2”-4” of additional accumulation.  
*Ice melt will be used on sidewalks. 
 

 
 
Annual Snow Removal & De-icing Cost: $ 5,500.00  
 
Payment of $ 1,100.00 commencing November 1st, 2023 – March 1st, 2024. (5 months) 
Payment of $ 1,100.00 commencing November 1st, 2024 – March 1st, 2025. (5 months) 
Payment of $ 1,100.00 commencing November 1st, 2025 – March 1st, 2026. (5 months) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Page 2 of 2 

 

Contract begins November 1, 2023 and ends March 31, 2026.  
 

 
All material is guaranteed to be as specified. All work to be completed in a workmanlike manner according 
to standard practices. Any alteration or deviation for above specifications involving extra costs will be 
executed only upon written orders and will become an extra charge over and above the estimate. Our 
workers are fully covered by Workers Compensation Insurance. The Owner acknowledges that some 
damage to the property of the Owner is reasonably foreseeable as a consequence of the Contractor's 
performance of this Agreement, and such reasonably foreseeable damage includes, but is not limited to, 
damage to concrete, asphalt, sod, grass and planting materials and surface damage to curbs and asphalt 
due to the clearing of snow. All perimeters are marked off with orange plastic stakes.  
 
 
Acceptance of proposal - The above prices, specifications and conditions are satisfactory and are 
hereby accepted. You are authorized to do the work as specified. Payment will be made as outlined 
above. 
 
 
 
Signature_____________________________________________ Date of Acceptance _________ 
   Ypsilanti District Library - 229 W. Michigan Ave 
 

 



Page 1 of 2 

 

 
 
 
 

A Professional Snow & Ice Management Company 
 

 
3-year Snow Maintenance Proposal  

 
305 W. Main St.  

Milan, MI 48160 
734-439-3063 office 
734-439-5649 fax 

www.ak-lawncare.com  
 
 
 
 
Date: August 2, 2023  
 
 
Submitted to: Ypsilanti District Library 
 
1900 Harris Road 
Ypsilanti, MI 48198 
 
 
We hereby submit specifications and estimates for: 
 
Parking lots, entrances, and walks. Plowing and shoveling begins after 1.5” accumulation of snow as the 
result of snowfall or drifted snow.  Salting occurs after plowing or during icy conditions.                                                      
 

*Return services will be provided every 2”-4” of additional accumulation.  
*Ice melt will be used on sidewalks. 
 
 

 
Annual Snow Removal & De-icing Cost: $ 10,500.00  
 
Payment of $ 2,100.00 commencing November 1st, 2023 – March 1st, 2024. (5 months) 
Payment of $ 2,100.00 commencing November 1st, 2024 – March 1st, 2025. (5 months) 
Payment of $ 2,100.00 commencing November 1st, 2025 – March 1st, 2026. (5 months) 
 
 
 
 



Page 2 of 2 

 

Contract begins November 1, 2023 and ends March 31, 2026.  
 
All material is guaranteed to be as specified. All work to be completed in a workmanlike manner according 
to standard practices. Any alteration or deviation for above specifications involving extra costs will be 
executed only upon written orders and will become an extra charge over and above the estimate. Our 
workers are fully covered by Workers Compensation Insurance. The Owner acknowledges that some 
damage to the property of the Owner is reasonably foreseeable as a consequence of the Contractor's 
performance of this Agreement, and such reasonably foreseeable damage includes, but is not limited to, 
damage to concrete, asphalt, sod, grass and planting materials and surface damage to curbs and asphalt 
due to the clearing of snow. All perimeters are marked off with orange plastic stakes.  
 
 
Acceptance of proposal - The above prices, specifications and conditions are satisfactory and are 
hereby accepted. You are authorized to do the work as specified. Payment will be made as outlined 
above. 
 
 
 
Signature_____________________________________________ Date of Acceptance _________ 
   Ypsilanti District Library – 1900 Harris Road  
 

 



Page 1 of 2 

 

 
 
 
 

A Professional Snow & Ice Management Company 
 

3-year Snow Maintenance Proposal  
 

305 W. Main St.  
Milan, MI 48160 

734-439-3063 office 
734-439-5649 fax 
www.ak-lawncare.com  

 
 
Date: August 2, 2023   
 
 
Submitted to: Ypsilanti District Library 
 
5577 Whittaker Rd 
Ypsilanti, MI 48197 
 
 
We hereby submit specifications and estimates for: 
 
Parking lots, entrances, and walks. Plowing and shoveling begins after 1.5” accumulation of snow as the 
result of snowfall or drifted snow.  Salting occurs after plowing or during icy conditions.                                                      
 

*Return services will be provided every 2”-4” of additional accumulation.  
*Ice melt will be used on sidewalks. 
 
 

 
Annual Snow Removal & De-icing Cost: $ 11,500.00   
 
Payment of $ 2,300.00 commencing November 1st, 2023 – March 1st, 2024. (5 months) 
Payment of $ 2,300.00 commencing November 1st, 2024 – March 1st, 2025. (5 months) 
Payment of $ 2,300.00 commencing November 1st, 2025 – March 1st, 2026. (5 months) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Page 2 of 2 

 

Contract begins November 1, 2023 and ends March 31, 2026.  
 
All material is guaranteed to be as specified. All work to be completed in a workmanlike manner according 
to standard practices. Any alteration or deviation for above specifications involving extra costs will be 
executed only upon written orders and will become an extra charge over and above the estimate. Our 
workers are fully covered by Workers Compensation Insurance. The Owner acknowledges that some 
damage to the property of the Owner is reasonably foreseeable as a consequence of the Contractor's 
performance of this Agreement, and such reasonably foreseeable damage includes, but is not limited to, 
damage to concrete, asphalt, sod, grass and planting materials and surface damage to curbs and asphalt 
due to the clearing of snow. All perimeters are marked off with orange plastic stakes.  
 
 
Acceptance of proposal - The above prices, specifications and conditions are satisfactory and are 
hereby accepted. You are authorized to do the work as specified. Payment will be made as outlined 
above. 
 
 
 
Signature_____________________________________________ Date of Acceptance _________ 
   Ypsilanti District Library - 5577 Whittaker Rd 
 

 



To:  YDL Board of Trustees 
From:  Lisa Hoenig, Library Director 
Date:  8/16/2023 
Re:  Consideration of the purchase of laptops for staff use 
 

We would like to purchase 4 new laptops as specified on the attached quote.  These would replace 
aging equipment currently used by the Assistant Director, Superior Branch Manager, Community 
Relations Coordinator, and IT department.   
 
The quotation comes from Insight Public Sector and utilizes group pricing through our OMNIA Partners 
contract, so already incorporates competitive bidding. 
  



YPSILANTI DISTRICT LIBRARY 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 2023-31 
 

August 23, 2023 
 

RESOLUTION TO PURCHASE NEW LAPTOPS FOR STAFF USE 
 

___________________ 
 
Whereas, the Ypsilanti District Library strives to provide high quality tools for staff to use in 
service to its patrons, and  
 
Whereas, demand for staff laptops has increased since the pandemic, and 
 
Whereas, the Library budgeted to purchase staff laptops this fiscal year, and  
 
Whereas, the Information Technology Manager researched options and solicited the attached 
quote for the desired computers and support using a group purchasing contract, Now 
Therefore, 
 
IT IS RESOLVED BY THE YPSILANTI DISTRICT LIBRARY BOARD that the 
equipment specified on the attached quote be acquired from Insight Public Sector for 
$5,203.30. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
OFFERED BY: ____________________________________________________________ 
 
SUPPORTED BY: __________________________________________________________ 
 
YES:            NO:             ABSENT:            VOTE: 



HTTP://WWW.INSIGHT.COM

Page 1 of 3INSIGHT PUBLIC SECTOR SLED
2701 E INSIGHT WAY
CHANDLER AZ  85286-1930
Tel: 800-467-4448

SOLD-TO PARTY 11112432

YPSILANTI DIST. LIBRARY
ACCOUNTS PAYABLE
5577 WHITTAKER RD
YPSILANTI MI  48197-9752

SHIP-TO

YPSILANTI DISTRICT LIBRARY
ATTN: SCOTT OSBTY
5577 WHITTAKER RD.
TECHNOLOGY MANAGER
YPSILANTI MI  48197

We deliver according to the following terms:
Payment Terms : Net 30 days
Ship Via : Insight Assigned Carrier/Ground
Terms of Delivery: : FOB ORIGIN
Currency : USD

Quotation

Quotation Number : 0226510230
Document Date : 27-JUL-2023
PO Number :
PO release: :
Sales Rep : Mark Latiolais
Email : MARK.LATIOLAIS@INSIGHT.COM
Telephone :

In order for Insight to accept Purchase Orders against this contract and  honor the prices on this quote, your agency must be 
registered with OMNIA Partners Public Sector (formerly U.S.  Communities). 
Our sales teams would be happy to assist you with your  registration.  Please contact them for assistance -- the registration  
process takes  less than five minutes. 
 

Material Material Description Quantity Unit Price Extended Price

21JT001AUS Lenovo ThinkPad E16 AMD G1 - AMD Ryzen 7 - 16
GB RAM - 512 GB Storage - Windows 11 Pro

       4             1,077.74             4,310.96

OMNIA PARTNERS IT PRODUCTS & SERVICES(# 4400006644)
List Price: 1168.99
Discount: 7.806%

5WS0E84879 Lenovo Depot/Customer Carry-In Upgrade -
extended service agreement - 5 years

       4               132.66               530.64

OMNIA PARTNERS IT PRODUCTS & SERVICES(# 4400006644)
List Price: 176.99
Discount: 25.047%

40AY0090US Lenovo ThinkPad Universal USB-C Dock -
docking station - USB-C - HDMI, 2 x DP - GigE

       2               180.85               361.70

OMNIA PARTNERS IT PRODUCTS & SERVICES(# 4400006644)
List Price: 236.99
Discount: 23.689%

Product Subtotal             4,672.66
Services Subtotal               530.64
TAX                0.00

Total             5,203.30

https://www.insight.com/insightweb/quoteDetails?quoNum=226510230
http://www.insight.com/en_US/search.html?qtype=all&q=21JT001AUS
http://www.insight.com/en_US/search.html?qtype=all&q=5WS0E84879
http://www.insight.com/en_US/search.html?qtype=all&q=40AY0090US


HTTP://WWW.INSIGHT.COM Document Date 27-JUL-2023
Quotation Number 226510230

Page 2 of 3

PURCHASE ORDER REQUIREMENTS: 
Quote Number:226510230  
  
Purchase Order Number: _____________________________________ 
  
Authorized by/Title: _____________________________________ (please print) 
  
Authorized Signature: _____________________________________ Date: _______________ 
  
Additional signature, where required 
  
Authorized by/Title: _____________________________________ (please print) 
  
Authorized Signature: _____________________________________ Date: _______________ 
 

Thank you for choosing Insight.  Please contact us with any questions or for additional information about Insight's complete IT 
solution offering. 
  
Sincerely,

Mark Latiolais

MARK.LATIOLAIS@INSIGHT.COM

OMNIA Partners (formerly U.S. Communities) IT Products, Services and Solutions Contract No. 4400006644 
  
Insight Public Sector (IPS) is proud to be a contract holder for the OMNIA Partners Technology Products, Services & Solutions 
Contract. 
  
This competitively solicited contract is available to participating agencies of OMNIA Partners.  OMNIA Partners assists local and 
state government agencies, school districts (K-12), higher education, and nonprofits in reducing the cost of purchased goods by 
pooling the purchasing power of public agencies nationwide.  This is an optional use program with no minimum volume 
requirements and no cost to agencies to participate. 
  
Thanks for choosing Insight! 
 

Insight Global Finance has a wide variety of flexible financing options and technology refresh solutions.  Contact your Insight 
representative for an innovative approach to maximizing your technology and developing a strategy to manage your financial 
options.

This purchase is subject to Insight’s online Terms of Sale unless you have a separate purchase agreement signed by you and 
Insight, in which case, that separate agreement will govern. Insight’s online Terms of Sale can be found at the “terms-and-policies” 
link below. 
  
SOFTWARE AND CLOUD SERVICES PURCHASES: If your purchase contains any software or cloud computing offerings 
(“Software and Cloud Offerings”), each offering will be subject to the applicable supplier's end user license and use terms 
("Supplier Terms") made available by the supplier or which can be found at the “terms-and-policies” link below. By ordering, 
paying for, receiving or using Software and Cloud Offerings, you agree to be bound by and accept the Supplier Terms unless you 
and the applicable supplier have a separate agreement which governs.



To:  YDL Board of Trustees 
From:  Lisa Hoenig, Library Director 
Date: 8/16/23 
Re:  Consideration of proposed renewal agreements for HVAC maintenance  
 
 
Since 2016, YDL has had Guaranteed Professional Maintenance (GPM) agreements with Campbell Mechanical 
Services for HVAC maintenance at Whittaker and Michigan Avenue.  The current agreements expire 8/31/23.  
YDL-Superior’s HVAC equipment has been under warranty since opening.  We propose moving to a somewhat 
more robust contract with Campbell for the upcoming year, to include a boiler maintenance kit.  At the end of 
the one-year period we would enter into a GPM for Superior as well. 
 
The GPM agreements have many benefits.  Among them, we pay a single price for all needed parts and labor 
covered, avoiding the lengthy waits for repair approval we endured previously.  The service technicians from 
Campbell know us, know our systems, and can be called upon whenever there are issues.  We also have 
security in the knowledge all preventive maintenance schedules are being followed. 
 
The Whittaker proposal includes retrofitting 3 VAV (Variable Air Volume) units per year.   
 
Because we have forged a positive relationship with Campbell and their technicians, we would like to continue 
using their services for our HVAC maintenance.  We did not pursue additional quotes. 
 
I recommend waiving the bid process and awarding the HVAC maintenance contracts to Campbell Mechanical 
Services as described in the attached documentation. 



YPSILANTI DISTRICT LIBRARY 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 2023-32 
 

August 23, 2023 
 

RESOLUTION TO CONTRACT WITH CAMPBELL MECHANICAL SERVICES FOR 
GUARANTEED PROFESSIONAL HVAC MAINTENANCE FOR THE WHITTAKER 
AND MICHIGAN AVENUE LIBRARIES THROUGH 8/31/26 AND A CUSTOMIZED 

PROFESSIONAL MAINTENANCE PROGRAM FOR THE SUPERIOR LIBRARY 
THROUGH 8/31/24 

 
___________________ 

 
 
Whereas, the Ypsilanti District Library’s facilities have complex Heating, Ventilation and Air 
Conditioning  systems which require professional maintenance to operate effectively, and  
 
Whereas, Campbell Mechanical Services has serviced the Library’s HVAC equipment under 
a Guaranteed Professional Maintenance agreement for many years, and  
 
Whereas, Campbell Mechanical Services has proposed a renewal Guaranteed Professional 
Maintenance Agreement for Whittaker and Michigan Avenue for the next three years, and 
 
Whereas, they have proposed a one-year Customized Professional Maintenance Program for 
YDL-Superior since its equipment is still so new, and 
 
Whereas, YDL Facilities and Administrative staff wish to continue the Library’s positive 
working relationship with Campbell, Now Therefore, 
 
IT IS RESOLVED BY THE YPSILANTI DISTRICT LIBRARY BOARD that: 
 
The Library Director is authorized to waive the bid process and approve the three Agreements 
proposed by Campbell Mechanical Services. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
OFFERED BY: ____________________________________________________________ 
 
SUPPORTED BY: __________________________________________________________ 
 
YES:            NO:             ABSENT:            VOTE: 

























































To:  YDL Board of Trustees 
From:  Lisa Hoenig, Library Director 
Date:  8/16/2023 
Re:  Resolution to join Michigan CLASS investment pool  
 

Michigan public libraries are required by Michigan Public Act 20 PA 1943, as amended, to invest the 
public money they hold very conservatively.  Because of this, CDs have typically been the vehicle of 
choice for library investing – but CDs earn very little interest these days.  When I was Director at the 
Redford Township District Library, our reserves were managed by a professional investment broker 
specializing in governmental accounts.  She was very good, but of course, her services came with fees.  
In this “year of the deep breath” I’d planned to explore investment options for YDL and had a few 
brokers to investigate.   
 
Earlier this month, however, there was an inquiry on the MichLib-L listserve asking for suggestions for 
investments beyond CDs – and it received a response that intrigued me.  It recommended the Michigan 
CLASS investment pool, which currently earns a return greater than 5%.  (A compilation of comments I 
gathered in my research immediately follows this memo, including the original post.) 
 
From what I have since learned, Michigan CLASS is a low-risk option for municipal investing.  It 
complies with Act 20 rules and, because it pools very large sums of money (similar to MERS or a 
community foundation), can reap a greater return.  Part of the recent increase in return is its ability to 
invest in Treasuries, which are earning nicely right now.  There are no fees and no minimum balances.  
Funds are accessible by ACH within 24 hours, and we can enforce 2-person approval of the 
transactions, which our auditors recommend. 
 
Currently, the majority of YDL’s fund balance is held in an Insured Cash Sweep (ICS) account at Bank of 
Ann Arbor, earning about 1.5% interest.  We also have funds (within the maximum limit insured by the 
FDIC) invested at PNC Bank, Huntington Bank, and 5/3 Bank. 
 
I have conferred with accountant Jim Carey, auditor Luke Downing, and Board Treasurer Theresa 
Maddix, and feel confident that joining Michigan CLASS would be a good move for YDL.  Kristin Angel, 
one of Michigan CLASS’s Directors of Investment Services, will give a presentation at our Board 
meeting and answer any questions you may have about the pool.   
 
The first requirement to join Michigan CLASS is a review of our Investment Policy, making sure it aligns 
with what they do.  I submitted our policy for review.  A letter of acceptance, informational pages, and 
the enrollment form for Michigan CLASS are attached.  (More information at MichiganCLASS.org.) 
 
The next step is to provide a Board resolution indicating the library wishes to join.  Then we would fill 
out the enrollment form, decide how much to invest, and begin letting our money earn significantly 
more (up to $10K/month right now depending on how much we move).  Jim Carey and I agree we 
should maintain some funds in the ICS account at Bank of Ann Arbor.  We would carefully monitor the 
returns, and move our money back there if/when indicated.  I look forward to hearing your thoughts. 



Michlib-l] FW: Investment of Surplus Funds 
Amber Alexander director at pidl.org 
Mon Jul 24 17:38:41 EDT 2023 

 
 
MI Class 
 
https://www.michiganclass.org/ 
 
The ROI is excellent and beats out any rate you get at bank for 
a CD. 
 
 
Amber Alexander 
Library Director, MLIS 
Presque Isle District Library 
181 E. Erie Street 
Rogers City, MI  49779 
989.734.2477, 101 
www.pidl.org <http://www.pidl.org/>  
 
 
From: Michlib-l <michlib-l-bounces at mcls.org <mailto:michlib-
l-bounces at mcls.org> > On Behalf Of Kristina Knezic via 
Michlib-l 
Sent: Monday, July 24, 2023 3:44 PM 
To: Michlib-l <michlib-l at mcls.org <mailto:michlib-l at 
mcls.org> > 
Subject: [Michlib-l] Investment of Surplus Funds 
 
Hello All,  
 
I know there are guidelines for investing public funds, but my 
Board is interested in knowing where other libraries are 
investing surplus funds.   
 
Thank you,  
 
Kristina  
 
 
Kristina Knezic, Director  
Berrien Springs Community Library  
215 W. Union St.  
Berrien Springs, MI 49103  
269-471-7074  
www.bsclibrary.org <http://www.bsclibrary.org>   
 
** 

 

Tue, Aug 15, 
9:29 PM  

 
 
 

mailto:michlib-l%40mcls.org?Subject=Re:%20Re%3A%20%5BMichlib-l%5D%20FW%3A%20%20Investment%20of%20Surplus%20Funds&In-Reply-To=%3C00ab01d9be77%24384dd1b0%24a8e97510%24%40pidl.org%3E
https://www.michiganclass.org/
http://www.pidl.org/
https://mail3.mcls.org/mailman/listinfo/michlib-l
https://mail3.mcls.org/mailman/listinfo/michlib-l
https://mail3.mcls.org/mailman/listinfo/michlib-l
https://mail3.mcls.org/mailman/listinfo/michlib-l
https://mail3.mcls.org/mailman/listinfo/michlib-l
https://mail3.mcls.org/mailman/listinfo/michlib-l
http://www.bsclibrary.org/


Jim Carey (YDL’s accountant) 
 

Fri, Jul 28, 
11:55 AM 

 
 

 
 

I was not aware of this particular product, but in skimming I see the instruments 
are treasuries and agencies which are basically as safe as a CD with better 
interest rates (except if the US defaults on its debts, as could happen if 
Congress does not raise the debt ceiling when that is necessary).  

For reference, BOAA ICS is paying 1.5% and the short term quotes on this 
product are in the 4.5 - 5% range, with longer short range % about a point less. 

Current interest on ICS (June) was about $5K. This could mean $15K/month on 
the cash reserves at current levels. 

I would definitely want to understand liquidity claims they are making, so that 
you aren't stuck for a check run, and would love to know the experience of any 
from your circles who is working with them. I have some recent experience with 
a more main stream firm for a different client, so I understand some of the 
concepts. Feel free to call and discuss. 

  

On Tue, Jul 25, 2023 at 1:04 PM Lisa Hoenig <lisa@ypsilibrary.org> wrote: 

Hi, Jim: 
 
There was a recent thread on the Michigan library listserv about where/how 
libraries invest their surplus funds.  I'm curious if you know anything about this 
option: 

https://www.michiganclass.org/# 

I don't see many drawbacks but not sure how it compares to our ICS at 
BOAA.  Would love to see us generate more interest. 

Lisa 
** 
 

Downing, Luke A (YDL’s Auditor) 
 

Lisa, 
 
I can’t say I have an opinion on them one way or the other as I am not well versed in 
investments and all that comes along with them. I can tell you I have other 
governmental clients that have them and like them.  
 
2 person approval is always great.  
 

mailto:lisa@ypsilibrary.org
https://www.michiganclass.org/


** 

On Thu, Aug 3, 2023 at 3:14 PM Rick Rosekrans <rosekrans@tln.org> wrote: 
Hi Lisa, 
  
We have been passively using MICLASS for 20+ years but only recently, actively.  It is 
similar to a savings account without the instant availability.  Once you attach your bank 
account to the Michigan CLASS account you can move money with a 1 day turn 
around.  You do not have to monitor it at all.  They will have statements available 
monthly just like a bank account.  
  
More info at: 
https://www.michiganclass.org/overview/ 
  
Thanks, 
  
Rick Rosekrans 
Controller 
The Library Network 
 

** 

 
Steven K. Bowers 
 

Wed, Aug 2, 
1:22 PM 

 
 
 

 
 

Hi Lisa, 
 
Yes, we have been pleasantly surprised by the returns on MIClass this year. We 
recently moved more into it (since we, too, received our State Aid). Copying our 
Business Controller, Rick Rosecrans, in case he can provide more input. 
 
As far as I understand one of the reasons we like it (in addition to the current 5% rate) is 
the liquidity you are asking about, or the easy ability to invest and then take the money 
back out. 
 
Steven K. Bowers 
Executive Director 
The Library Network 
 

** 

On Wed, Aug 2, 2023 at 4:48 PM Amber Alexander <director@pidl.org> wrote: 
 
Lisa, 
  

mailto:rosekrans@tln.org
https://www.michiganclass.org/overview/
mailto:director@pidl.org


So far we love it!  It has been very easy to use.  They set you up with an account where you can go in and 
look at your dashboard.  It is easy to transfer money by ACH from our local bank (set up was easy 
through the online MI Class account), and when we need to put more in our checking account at local 
bank, it is an easy withdraw and occurs within a day, depending on weekend or holiday.  I just monitor 
what we have when bills are paid, and move when need to.  We actually have been able to keep less 
money in our checking then in past, and more in the MI Class (gaining interest) because the ease of 
transferring back to our checking account.  So as we received our tax funds this year, I deposited into 
our checking, then moved what we didn’t need to keep as our base in checking into MI Class.  As we 
paid the bills and payroll happened, just withdrew from MI Class back into our checking.  All from my 
desk, except for going to bank to deposit the tax funds into our checking.  
  
As to monitoring, just keep an eye after Finance Manager pays bills and where we sit in Quickbooks-
checking and if it is below the number that I feel comfortable with, I just transfer the money out 
of MI Class into our checking.  I’d say it takes 5 minutes of my time, to look and login and make the 
transfer.  
  
We only started with them in January, but haven’t had an issue.  I can say we were only making about 
$1,200 in CD interest, as of July 31st we have made about $12,000 interest from MI Class.  Our Board is 
very pleased by this.  
  
And, they are FDIC insured. 
  

Amber Alexander 
Library Director, MLIS 
Presque Isle District Library 
** 

Other active library users of Michigan CLASS I didn’t reach out to but who responded positively to the 
MichLib-L post:  Macdonald Public Library (New Baltimore) and Romeo District Library. 



YPSILANTI DISTRICT LIBRARY 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 2023-33 
 

August 23, 2023 
 

RESOLUTION TO JOIN MICHIGAN CLASS INVESTMENT POOL 
 

___________________ 
 
 
Whereas, it is the policy of Ypsilanti District Library to invest its funds in a manner 
which will provide the highest investment return with the maximum security while 
meeting daily cash flow needs and complying with all state statues governing the  
investment of public funds, and 
 
Whereas, the Michigan CLASS investment pool complies with Public Act 20, offers ample 
liquidity, and is generating a much better return on investment than what the Library 
currently enjoys, Now Therefore, 
 
IT IS RESOLVED BY THE YPSILANTI DISTRICT LIBRARY BOARD that the Library 
Director is authorized to enroll the Ypsilanti District Library in the Michigan CLASS 
investment pool.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
OFFERED BY: ____________________________________________________________ 
 
SUPPORTED BY: __________________________________________________________ 
 
YES:            NO:             ABSENT:            VOTE: 



POLICY E2  PAGE 1 

 

E2 
Investments 
Approved:  01/26/1999 
 

To Comply With Act 20 PA 1943, as amended 
 
It is the policy of Ypsilanti District Library to invest its funds in a manner which will provide 
the highest investment return with the maximum security while meeting the daily cash flow 
needs of the Ypsilanti District Library and complying with all state statues governing the 
investment of public funds. 
 
This investment policy applies to all financial assets of the Ypsilanti District Library. These 
assets are accounted for in the various funds of the Ypsilanti District Library and include the 
general fund, special revenue funds, debt service funds, capital project funds, enterprise 
funds, internal service funds, trust and agency funds and any new fund established by the 
Ypsilanti District Library. 

 
Primary objective, in priority order, of the Ypsilanti District Library's investment 
activities shall be: 

 
Safety - Safety of principal is the foremost objective of the investment program.  
Investments shall be undertaken in a manner that seeks to ensure the preservation of 
capital in the overall portfolio. 

 
Diversification – The investments will be diversified by the security type and institution in 
order that potential losses on individual securities do not exceed the income generated from 
the remainder of the portfolio. 

 
Liquidity - The investment portfolio shall remain sufficiently liquid to meet all operating 
requirements that may be reasonably anticipated. 

 
Return on Investment – the investment portfolio shall be designed with the objective of 
obtaining a rate of return throughout the budgetary and economic cycles, taking into account 
the investment risk constraints and the cash flow characteristics of the portfolio. 

 
Delegation of Authority to Make Investments 
Authority to manage the investment program is derived from the following: Board Resolution 
#99-01.   Management responsibility for the investment program is hereby delegated to the 
Board Treasurer and the Library Director, who shall establish written procedures and 
internal controls for the operation of the investment program consistent with this investment 
policy.  Procedures should include references to: safekeeping, delivery vs payment, 
investment accounting, repurchase agreements, wire transfer agreements, 
collateral/depository agreements and banking service contracts.  No person may engage in 
an investment transaction, on behalf of the library except as provided under the terms of this 
policy and the procedures established by the Finance Committee and the Library Director.  
The Board Treasurer and Library Director shall be responsible for all transactions 
undertaken and shall establish a system of controls to regulate the activities of subordinate 
officials. 



POLICY E2  PAGE 2 

 

 
The Ypsilanti District Library is limited to investments authorized by Act 20 or 1943, as 
amended. 

 
Safekeeping and Custody - This provision will confirm that the securities are physically 
safe. 

 
All security transactions, including collateral for repurchase agreements and financial 
institution deposits, entered into by the Ypsilanti District Library shall be on a cash (or 
delivery vs payment) basis.  Securities may be held by a third party custodian designated 
by the treasurer and evidenced by safekeeping receipts as determined by the treasurer. 

 
Prudence 
Investments shall be made with judgment and care, under circumstances then prevailing, 
which persons of prudence, discretion and intelligence exercise the management of their own 
affairs, not for speculation, but for investment considering the probable safety of their capital 
as well as the probable income to be derived. 

 
 



What  is Michigan CLASS?

Michigan Cooperat ive Liquid Assets Securit ies System (Michigan 
CLASS) is a local government investment pool that  emphasizes 
safety, liquidity, convenience, and competit ive yield. Since 1991, 
Michigan CLASS has sought to provide Michigan public agencies with 
a safe and competit ive investment alternat ive. Michigan CLASS 
invests only in instruments applicable to state of Michigan laws 
governing investment opt ions for public agencies. Funds of the 
Part icipants are invested in prime or high-grade, short-term fixed 
income instruments selected with the goal of providing program 
safety, liquidity, and competit ive rates of return as further defined by 
the Board?s Investment Policy. Michigan CLASS is rated ?AAAm? by 
S&P Global Ratings. The ?AAAm? principal stability fund rat ing is the 
highest assigned to principal stability government investment pools.

 

Who oversees and manages Michigan CLASS?

Investments made on behalf of the Part icipants are subject to the 
overall direct ion of the Michigan CLASS Board of Trustees, which 
consists of up to thirteen Trustees elected by the Part icipants for 
staggered three-year terms. The Board of Trustees approves the 
program?s investment parameters that must also fall within the 
investment st ipulat ions mandated under Michigan statute for the 
investment of surplus funds of the Part icipants. The Board of 
Trustees has entered into an investment advisory agreement with 
Public Trust Advisors, LLC which is responsible to the Board for all 
program investment and administrat ive act ivit ies and services 
provided on behalf of the Part icipants.

How can you part icipate in Michigan CLASS?

Enrolling in Michigan CLASS is simple. After reading the 
Part icipat ion Agreement and Information Statement (available at 
www.michiganclass.org), follow these steps: 

MICHIGAN CLASS FEATURES

As a Michigan CLASS Part icipant , 
you have access to many 

convenient  features:

- Same-day availability of funds 
(3:00 p.m. ET cut-off)

- Deposits by wire or ACH 

- Secure online access for 
transact ions and account 
statements

- Professionally managed since 
1991

- Competit ive daily yields 

- Unlimited subaccounts

- No minimum balance         
requirements

- No transact ion fees*

- Audited annually by an 
independent audit ing firm**

- Direct deposit  of state and 
federal payments  

- Dedicated client service 
representat ives available via  
phone, fax, or email on any 
business day

*You may incur fees associated with wires and/or ACH transact ions 
by your bank, but there will be no transact ion fees charged from 
Michigan CLASS for such transact ions. **External audits may not 
catch all instances of accounting errors and do not provide an 
absolute guarantee of accuracy. 

113623 Acacia Lane, DeWitt, Michigan 48820  | (855) 382-0496 | www.michiganclass.org | clientservices@michiganclass.org

Michigan Cooperat ive Liquid Asset  Securit ies Syst em  Michigan Cooperat ive Liquid Asset s Securit ies Syst em  

Submit your ent ity?s investment policy to the program  
administrator for review.

Adopt the Part icipat ion Agreement by Board resolut ion. 

Complete the Michigan CLASS Trust Registrat ion. 

Submit the above documents to Michigan CLASS Client 
Services.

After we review and approve the above documents, you will 
receive confirmation that you have been accepted as a 
Michigan CLASS Part icipant. 

5

4

3

2

1

http://www.michiganclass.org
http://www.michiganclass.org
mailto:clientservices@michiganclass.org


Safety
The primary investment object ive of Michigan CLASS 
is the safety of public funds. Our conservat ive 
investment policy and emphasis on safety have helped 
us earn S&P Global Ratings highest money market 
rat ing: 'AAAm.? The custodian for all Michigan CLASS 
investment holdings is Fifth Third Bank.

Liquidity
When you invest with Michigan CLASS, you have 
access to your funds on any business day. You must 
not ify Michigan CLASS of your funds transact ion 
requests by 3 p.m. ET via the Internet, phone, or fax. 
By offering daily liquidity, we provide you with the 
flexibility you need to meet your daily cash needs.

Convenience
To make cash management simple and efficient, 
Michigan CLASS includes many features that make it  
easy to access account information and simplify record 
keeping. Part icipants may make account transact ions 
on any business day using the Michigan CLASS phone 
number (855) 382-0496, fax number (855) 381-0496, 
email (clientservices@michiganclass.org), or via the 
Michigan CLASS Online Transact ion Portal at  
www.michiganclass.org. 

Flexibility
You may establish mult iple Michigan CLASS 
accounts to track and parallel your own internal fund 
accounting structures. You will receive 
comprehensive monthly statements online or via 
email that show all of your transact ion act ivity, 
interest post ings, and rate summaries. These 
statements have been specifically designed to 
facilitate public-sector fund accounting and to 
establish a clear accounting and audit  t rail for your 
investment records.

Compet it ive Returns
The Michigan CLASS philosophy has always been to
provide competit ive returns while adhering to all 
object ives of safety and liquidity. Our portfolio 
managers are professionals with experience in public 
funds management. Michigan CLASS maintains a low 
management fee structure to help facilitate a 
competit ive yield on the investment portfolio.

Legality
Michigan CLASS invests only in investments legally
permitted under Michigan state law.
 

What  are the object ives of Michigan CLASS?

Have Quest ions?
Contact us or visit  www.michiganclass.org for more information.

Any financial and/or investment decision should be made only after considerable research, considerat ion, and involvement with an experienced professional engaged for 
the specific purpose. The information presented should not be used in making any investment decisions. This material is not a recommendation to buy, sell, implement, or 
change any securit ies or investment strategy, funct ion, or process. Please review the Michigan CLASS Information Statement before invest ing. Michigan CLASS is not a 
bank. An investment in Michigan CLASS is not insured or guaranteed by the Federal Deposit  Insurance Corporat ion or any other government agency. Although the Michigan 
CLASS prime-style local government investment pool seeks to preserve the value of your investment at $1.00 per share, it  cannot guarantee it  will do so. Past performance 
is not an indicat ion of future performance. No assurance can be given that the performance object ives of a given strategy will be achieved. Any financial and/or investment 
decision may incur losses. A 'AAAm' rat ing by S&P Global Ratings is obtained after S&P evaluates a number of factors including credit  quality, market price exposure, and 
management. Ratings are subject to change and do not remove credit  risk. For more information on rat ing methodologies, visit  www.spglobal.com. 

Krist in Angel 

Senior Director, Investment Services 

krist in.angel@michiganclass.org

(517) 861-6515

Jeff Anderson

Director, Investment Services 

jeff.anderson@michiganclass.org

(517) 719-4503

mailto:clientservices@michiganclass.org
http://www.michiganclass.org
mailto:matt.starr@newyorkclass.org
mailto:matt.starr@newyorkclass.org
mailto:matt.starr@newyorkclass.org
mailto:matt.starr@newyorkclass.org
mailto:matt.starr@newyorkclass.org
mailto:matt.starr@newyorkclass.org
mailto:matt.starr@newyorkclass.org
mailto:matt.starr@newyorkclass.org


Get  to Know Michigan CLASS

Michigan Cooperat ive Liquid Asset s Securit ies Syst em  

The Michigan CLASS portfolio distribut ion strategy 
focuses on minimizing market risk and enhancing 
safety via diversified investments. Funds of the 
Part icipants are invested in prime or high grade, 
short-term fixed income instruments as illustrated 
to the left. 

Michigan CLASS is a local government investment pool that allows 
public agencies, such as yourself, to pool funds together to 
collect ively earn interest on investments. Our philosophy is, and has 
always been, to provide competit ive returns while adhering to all 
object ives of safety and liquidity.  Michigan CLASS carries a 'AAAm' 
rat ing from S&P Global Ratings. 

Part icipant  Breakdown by Ent ity Type*

Port folio Dist ribut ion*

Serving Over 575 
Par t icipant s*  

Michigan CLASS welcomes all public agencies without 
favor to one type. The Board membership represents 
the diversity of such agencies and works to maintain a 
product that services the needs of all Michigan public 
agencies.  

Source: Public Trust Advisors® *Data as of April 30, 2022. Data unaudited. Charts may not equal 100% due to rounding. Performance results are shown net of all fees and expenses and reflect the 
reinvestment of dividends and other earnings. Many factors affect performance including changes in market condit ions and interest rates and in response to other economic, polit ical, or financial 
developments. Investment involves risk including the possible loss of principal. No assurance can be given that the performance object ives of a given strategy will be achieved. A 'AAAm' rat ing by S&P 
Global Ratings is obtained after S&P evaluates a number of factors including credit  quality, market price exposure, and management. Ratings are subject to change and do not remove credit  risk. For 
more information on rat ing methodology, please visit  www.spglobal.com. Past  performance is no guarantee of future results. Any financial and/or investment  decision may incur losses.

Cont act  us t o get  st ar t ed!
Visit  us at www.michiganclass.org

Edward Sell Jr., CPA
Chairperson, Finance Director 
City of Monroe

Ed Bradford
Chief Financial Officer 
City of Manistee 

Karen Coffman
Treasurer
Jackson County

Kelly Corbet t , CPA, CFO
Director of Business & Finance
St. Johns Public Schools

Susan Daugherty, CPFA, CPFIM 
Treasurer 
Green Oak Charter Township 

Barbara Fandell, CPT, ACPFA
City Treasurer-Finance Director
City of Ithaca

Bruce Malinczak, CPFA
Assistant Treasurer
Canton Charter Township

Catherine McClary, CPFO, CPFIM  
Treasurer                            
Washtenaw County                                  

Julie Omer, CFO 
Business Manager/CFO 
Owosso Public Schools 

Eric Sabree
Treasurer
Wayne County

Joseph Snyder
Chief Financial Officer
City of Rochester Hills

Scot t  Taylor, CPA, CTP 
Manager, Accounting & Finance 
Lansing Board of Water & Light

Teri Weingarden
Treasurer
West Bloomfield Township

Michigan CLASS Board of Trustees 

https://www.michiganclass.org/
https://www.michiganclass.org/
https://www.michiganclass.org/
https://www.michiganclass.org/


Michigan CLASS | T (855) 382-0496 | F (855) 381-0496 | info@michiganclass.org | www.michiganclass.org

Michigan CLASS Investment Income Earned

As of Date Time $100K $1M $10M

Jul 1 - Jul 31  1 month $449 $4,490 $44,898

May 1 - Jul 31  3 months $1,324 $13,240 $132,402

Feb 1 - Jul 31  6 months $2,534 $25,344 $253.435

Michigan CLASS Daily Yields

as of Month-End

Month Year Month-End Yield

July 2023 5.3830%

June 2023 5.2602%

May 2023 5.1912%

April 2023 5.0495%

March 2023 4.9975%

February 2023 4.7707%

January 2023 4.5828%

December 2022 4.4862%

November 2022 3.9769%

October 2022 3.2904%

September 2022 3.0091%

August 2022 2.3557%

Investing with Michigan CLASS could mean more for your local community.

Use the Michigan CLASS investment calculator to see just how much you could have earned.  

Invest  with Michigan CLASS!

Michigan Cooperat ive Liquid Asset  Securit ies Syst em  Michigan Cooperat ive Liquid Asset s Securit ies Syst em 

Source: Public Trust Advisors® Data unaudited. Values presented may not 
add up precisely to absolute figures due to rounding. Performance results for 
Michigan CLASS are shown net of all fees and expenses and reflect the 
reinvestment of interest and other earnings. Many factors affect 
performance including changes in market condit ions and interest rates and 
in response to other economic, polit ical, or financial developments. 
Investment involves risk including the possible loss of principal. No assurance 
can be given that the performance object ives of a given strategy will be 
achieved. Michigan CLASS is not a bank. An investment in Michigan CLASS is 
not insured or guaranteed by the Federal Deposit  Insurance Corporat ion or 
any other government agency. Although the Michigan CLASS prime-style 
local government investment pool seeks to preserve the value of your 
investment at $1.00 per share, it  cannot guarantee it  will do so. Please review 
the Michigan CLASS Information Statement before invest ing. Past  
performance is no guarant ee of fut ure result s. Any f inancial and/or 
invest ment  decision may incur losses. Please visit  
www.michiganclass.org/rates-disclaimer for more information.

Amount  Invest ed 

St ar t  Dat e 

End Dat e 

July 1, 2023

July 31, 2023

$1,000,000

Months listed are in the year 2023 

For more information on both historical yields 

and annualized performance, visit  

www.michiganclass.org/rates

or scan the below QR code:



 

Michigan CLASS | 15309 Meadowwood Drive | Grand Haven, Michigan  49417 
T (855) 382-0496 | F (855) 381-0496 | info@michiganclass.org | www.michiganclass.org 

Michigan Cooperative Liquid Assets Securities System

August 15, 2023 
  
Lisa Hoenig, Director 
Ypsilanti District Library 
5577 Whittaker Road 
Ypsilanti, MI  48197 
 
Re: Acknowledgement of Receipt of Investment Policy and Agreement to Comply 

 
 Dear Ms. Hoenig: 

 
Thank you for your interest in the Michigan Cooperative Liquid Assets Securities System 
(Michigan CLASS) program. As is required by law, this letter is to acknowledge that the 
Michigan CLASS staff has received, read and fully understands Act 20 of PA 1943, Section 
129.91, as amended, and the Investment Policy for Ypsilanit District Library. 

  
Any investment advice or recommendation given by the program investment advisor 
(Public Trust Advisors, LLC) to the Michigan CLASS program and its Participants shall 
comply with the requirements of Act 20 of PA 1943, Section 129.91, as amended, and the 
Investment Policy of the above-named entity. 

 
Any existing investment not conforming to the statute or the policy will be disclosed 
promptly. 
 
Sincerely, 

        
 Stephen J Dixon 

Director, Business Operations 
 



Regist rat ion Packet



 
 
 

717 17th Street, Suite 1850 

Denver, Colorado 80202 

T (855) 382-0496 
F (855) 381-0496 

clientservices@michiganclass.org 
www.michiganclass.org   

Page 1 

 

Welcome to Michigan CLASS 

 
Thank you for choosing Michigan CLASS! 

 

This packet contains all the materials necessary to set up your Michigan CLASS account(s). If you have any 

questions about the registration process or about your Michigan CLASS account(s), please do not hesitate 

to contact us. The Michigan CLASS Client Service team can be reached any business day from 8:00 a.m. to 

5:00 p.m. ET by phone at (855) 382-0496 or by email at clientservices@michiganclass.org.  

 

 

Michigan CLASS is not a bank. An investment in Michigan CLASS is not insured or guaranteed by the Federal Deposit Insurance 

Corporation or any other government agency. Although Michigan CLASS Prime seeks to preserve the value of your investment at 

$1.00 per share, it cannot guarantee it will do so. Please read the applicable Michigan CLASS Information Statements carefully 

before making an investment decision. Many factors affect performance including changes in market conditions and interest rates 

and in response to other economic, political, or financial developments. Investment involves risk including the possible loss of 

principal. No assurance can be given that the performance objectives of a given strategy will be achieved. Past performance is no 

guarantee of future results. Any financial and/or investment decision may incur losses. 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 
  



 
 
 

717 17th Street, Suite 1850 

Denver, Colorado 80202 

T (855) 382-0496 
F (855) 381-0496 

clientservices@michiganclass.org 
www.michiganclass.org   

Page 2 

Registration Procedures 
 

To participate in Michigan CLASS, please complete the following: 

 Read the Participation Agreement (accessible on www.michiganclass.org). 

 Provide an Authorizing Resolution or a copy of your meeting minutes supporting participation in 

Michigan CLASS (please attach). 

 Adopt the Certificate of Delivery and Resolution (page 3). 

 Complete the Entity Registration (page 4). 

 Complete the Authorized Contacts Form (page 5/6). 

 Complete the Accounts to be Established Form; you may open as many accounts as you wish (page 

7). 

 Should you be interested in participating in Michigan CLASS EDGE, complete the EDGE Participant 

Acknowledgement Form (page 8), and the EDGE Accounts to be Established Form; you may open 

as many accounts as you wish (page 9).  

 Keep the original forms for your records and send the completed packet to the Michigan CLASS 

Client Service team by fax (855) 381-0496 or email clientservices@michiganclass.org.  

 
Questions? Please contact us; we would love to hear from you. 

 

 Michigan CLASS Client Service Team 

 T (855) 382-0496 

 clientservices@michiganclass.org 

 

 

Through the Michigan CLASS website, www.michiganclass.org, Participants will be regularly informed of 

important program information, holidays, upcoming Board meetings, Participant events, conferences, and 

more. Board of Trustee meetings, which are open to the public, are generally held quarterly and discuss 

relevant issues to the governance and operations of the Michigan CLASS program.  



 
 
 

717 17th Street, Suite 1850 

Denver, Colorado 80202 

T (855) 382-0496 
F (855) 381-0496 

clientservices@michiganclass.org 
www.michiganclass.org   

Page 3 

Certificate of Delivery and Resolution 
 
 

The attached Authorizing Resolution which has been duly adopted by ________________________ and 

certified by the Clerk thereto is hereby delivered to Public Trust Advisors, LLC (the Investment Advisor) to 

effectuate participation (in what is commonly known Michigan CLASS) in the Participant Agreement dated 

November 1, 2021, as amended. 

 

 
  
Authorized Signer’s Name 

  
Signature 

  
Title  

Entity Name  



 
 
 

717 17th Street, Suite 1850 

Denver, Colorado 80202 

T (855) 382-0496 
F (855) 381-0496 

clientservices@michiganclass.org 
www.michiganclass.org   

Page 4 

Trust Registration 
 
Entity Information 

Entity Name (Participant)    

Entity Type:  City/Village  County  Township School District   

 Other (Specify)     

Mailing Address    

City     Zip     County    

Physical Address (if different than above)   

City     Zip     County    

Tax ID     Fiscal Year-End Date (Month/Day)    

 
I authorize Michigan CLASS and its transfer agent and administrator to act on any instructions believed to be genuine for any service authorized on this 

form. I agree that Michigan CLASS, its transfer agent, and administrator, Public Trust Advisors LLC, and their respective officers, directors, affiliates, 

representatives, employees and agents (each an “Indemnified Party”) will not be liable for any losses, claims, expenses and liabilities (collectively, the 

“Losses”) that result from accepting such instructions, and I agree to indemnify and hold harmless each Indemnified Party from and against any and all 

Losses arising from or resulting from such reliance on, or acceptance of, such instructions.  Withdrawal proceeds can be sent only to the bank(s) indicated 

below unless changed by written instructions. Each local government is responsible for notifying the Trust of any changes to its account(s). 

 
Wires will be distributed every hour with the final distribution ending at 3:00 p.m. ET; distribution times are subject to change as needed by the Michigan 

CLASS Administrator. Additionally, Michigan CLASS must be notified of any contributions by 3:00 p.m. ET to receive same day credit. If funds are not 

received by 5:00 p.m. ET, contribution orders will be voided.   

 

Banking Information 

Bank Name   Bank Routing Number (ABA)   

Account Title   Account Number   

Bank Contact*   Contact’s Phone Number   

Wire ACH Both 
 
Additional Banking Information (Optional) 

Bank Name   Bank Routing Number (ABA)   

Account Title   Account Number   

Bank Contact*   Contact’s Phone Number    

Wire ACH Both 
 
*If there will only be one Authorized Signer on the Michigan CLASS account, bank contact must be provided to verify 
bank account information 



 
 
 

717 17th Street, Suite 1850 

Denver, Colorado 80202 

T (855) 382-0496 
F (855) 381-0496 

clientservices@michiganclass.org 
www.michiganclass.org   

Page 5 

Authorized Contacts 
 

Authorized Signers Can: Read-Only Users Can 

Approve changes to the Investor Profile  

Update banking/contact information 

Process transactions 

Receive account updates  

Receive account updates  

Request “view-only” access to monthly statements and 
transaction confirmations  

 
Key Contact and Authorized Signer 

      
Print First and Last Name  Title 

    
Signature Required  Phone (Required if Authorized Signer) 

    
Email (Required if Authorized Signer)  Fax 
 

 

Additional Contact (Optional) Note – Michigan CLASS strongly advises each participant to have multiple authorized 
signers to help prevent fraud 

      
Print First and Last Name  Title 

    
*(Signature Required if Authorized Signer)  Phone (Required if Authorized Signer) 

    
Email (Required if Authorized Signer)  Fax 
 

Permissions (check only one)    

 Authorized Signer to Move Funds*   

 Read-Only Access 

  

Additional Contact (Optional) 

      
Print First and Last Name  Title 

    
*(Signature Required if Authorized Signer)  Phone (Required if Authorized Signer) 

    
Email (Required if Authorized Signer)  Fax 

 
Permissions (check only one)   

 Authorized Signer to Move Funds*    

 Read-Only Access   

*The key contact on an account is the main point of contact for an entity. They receive voting credentials for Board of Trustee elections and all other important 

communications. 



 
 
 

717 17th Street, Suite 1850 

Denver, Colorado 80202 

T (855) 382-0496 
F (855) 381-0496 

clientservices@michiganclass.org 
www.michiganclass.org   

Page 6 

Authorized Contacts (cont.) 
 
Additional Contact (Optional) 

      
Print First and Last Name  Title 

    
*(Signature Required if Authorized Signer)  Phone (Required if Authorized Signer) 

    
Email (Required if Authorized Signer)  Fax 

 
Permissions (check only one)   

 Authorized Signer to Move Funds*    

 Read-Only Access  

 
Additional Contact (Optional) 

      
Print First and Last Name  Title 

    
*(Signature Required if Authorized Signer)  Phone (Required if Authorized Signer) 

    
Email (Required if Authorized Signer)  Fax 

 
Permissions (check only one)   

 Authorized Signer to Move Funds*    

 Read-Only Access  

 
Additional Contact (Optional) 

      
Print First and Last Name  Title 

    
*(Signature Required if Authorized Signer)  Phone (Required if Authorized Signer) 

    
Email (Required if Authorized Signer)  Fax 

 
Permissions (check only one)   

 Authorized Signer to Move Funds*    

 Read-Only Access  

  



 
 
 

717 17th Street, Suite 1850 

Denver, Colorado 80202 

T (855) 382-0496 
F (855) 381-0496 

clientservices@michiganclass.org 
www.michiganclass.org   

Page 7 

Michigan CLASS Accounts to be Established 
 
Entity Name:         
 
Desired Subaccount Name(s)* i.e. General Fund, etc.: 
(To be completed by Participant, at least one Subaccount is required) 
 

*Name must be limited to 35 characters. 

    

    

    

    

    

Michigan CLASS & LCSA 

Eligible entities can now receive Local Community Stabilization Authority (LCSA) distributions directly to a Michigan 

CLASS subaccount. With online distributions, entities can receive LCSA payments as soon as the LCSA distribution is 

initiated. If you would like your LCSA payments to be deposited directly into a Michigan CLASS subaccount, please list 

below the following information:  

 
LCSA Payee ID**  LSCA Account Name**    Michigan CLASS Subaccount Name  
(State Municipal Code)     (Select an account name from above)  

 
     Same as above  
     (if only one account name is listed)  

       

       

       

**If you are unsure of your LCSA account name and payee ID, please reach out to the Michigan CLASS Client Service team for 

assistance.  

Once your Michigan CLASS account has been established, you will receive a confirmation email with your login credentials from no-

reply@michiganclass.org. If you do not receive your login credentials within 48 business hours of submission, please first check your 

junk or spam folder before contacting the Michigan CLASS Client Service team. 



 
 
 

717 17th Street, Suite 1850 

Denver, Colorado 80202 

T (855) 382-0496 
F (855) 381-0496 

clientservices@michiganclass.org 
www.michiganclass.org   

Page 8 

EDGE Participant Acknowledgement Form  
 

Participant Information  

Entity Name (Participant)      

     

Participant Acknowledgement  

The undersigned Authorized Signer for the Participant hereby acknowledges the following: 

 The Participant has received and reviewed the Michigan CLASS EDGE Information Statement. 

 All EDGE investments are made in accordance with the Michigan CLASS EDGE Investment Policy.  

 Prior to making an investment in the Michigan CLASS EDGE portfolio, your entity must submit its 

investment policy to Michigan CLASS for review.   

 Michigan CLASS EDGE is designed to complement the daily liquidity of the Michigan CLASS fund by 

gaining exposure to a diversified portfolio of high-quality securities.  

 The general objective of EDGE is to generate a higher level of income than provided by a traditional 

stable NAV LGIP while seeking to protect Participant capital.  

 Withdrawals are available one business day after the request is made. With EDGE, investments 

continue to accrue interest during the one-day redemption period. Due to the design of EDGE, early 

withdrawals are not permissible. 

 Withdrawals can only be initiated in the Participant Portal. 

 Any Authorized Signer has full power and authority to make investments for the above Participant. 

 Michigan CLASS EDGE is designed for investors with a slightly longer investment horizon and the 

ability to tolerate a higher risk profile. 

 

                

Authorized Signer 

    
Signature    Date 

    
Printed Name  Title 

  
The investment advisor providing these services is Public Trust Advisors, LLC (Public Trust), an investment adviser registered with the SEC under the Investment Advisers Act of 

1940, as amended. Registration with the SEC does not imply a certain level of skill or training. Additionally, this registration provides no guarantee of return or protection against 

loss. Michigan CLASS is not a bank. An investment in Michigan CLASS is not insured or guaranteed by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation or any other government agency. 

Please read the applicable Michigan CLASS Information Statements carefully before making an investment decision. Many factors affect performance including changes in market 

conditions and interest rates and in response to other economic, political, or financial developments. Investment involves risk including the possible loss of principal. No assurance 

can be given that the performance objectives of a given strategy will be achieved. Past performance is no guarantee of future results. Any financial and/or investment 

decision may incur losses. 



 
 
 

717 17th Street, Suite 1850 

Denver, Colorado 80202 

T (855) 382-0496 
F (855) 381-0496 

clientservices@michiganclass.org 
www.michiganclass.org   

Page 9 

EDGE Accounts to be Established 
 
 
Entity Name:         
 

Michigan CLASS EDGE Accounts    

Desired Subaccount Name(s)* i.e. General Fund, etc.:   

(To be completed by Participant)   

 
 
   

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

    

*Name must be limited to 35 characters. 

 

Once your Michigan CLASS account(s) has been established, you will receive a confirmation email with your login 

credentials from no-reply@michiganclass.org. If you do not receive your login credentials within 48 business hours of 

submission, please first check your junk or spam folder before contacting the Michigan CLASS Client Service team. 

Michigan CLASS EDGE is designed to complement the 

daily liquidity offered by the Michigan CLASS portfolio. 

EDGE is best suited for funds not needed on a 

frequent or near-term basis. Michigan CLASS EDGE is 

designed for investors with a slightly longer 

investment horizon and the ability to tolerate a higher 

risk profile. 

 

EDGE does not seek to maintain a stable net 

asset value (NAV) and does not offer daily 

liquidity. Investing in Michigan CLASS EDGE 

introduces the potential for the reporting of 

unrealized and realized gains and losses. 

 
 
If you have questions about which of your local 

government’s funds are appropriate for the EDGE 

portfolio, please contact your Michigan CLASS 

representative or email info@michiganclass.org.   

 


	1.0 Board Packet Cover llll
	1.1 Agenda August 2023 - 08.17.2023draft
	1.2 Minutes_coversheet
	1.3 07.26.2025_Board_Minutes_July 2023
	CALL TO ORDER

	1.4 Financial Report_coversheet
	1.5 Balance Sheet
	1.6 General Fund
	1.7 101
	1.8 Cap Asset
	1.9 Cap Exp
	2.0 Periodic Financial statement_073123_revised
	2.1 checkregistersummary July 2023
	2.2 Communications_coversheet
	2.3 2023 penal fines distribution
	2.4 Literacy Liberty poster_11x17
	2.5 MakingTheCase-FactSheet Intergen Progs
	2.6 MI Right to Read Mlive article
	2.7 Committee Reports_coversheet
	2.8 Superior Planning Committee report
	2.9 Facilities Committee report
	3.0 FR206032 Observation Report 3
	3.1 Directors Report_coversheet
	3.2 Director's Report 8-23-23
	3.3 Dashboards_coversheet
	3.5 DEVELOPMENT REVENUE DASHBOARD 8 15 23
	3.6 DEVELOPMENT REVENUE DASHBOARD 8 15 23
	3.7 Department Reports_coversheet
	3.8 Department Report_Acquisitions_August_2023
	Acquisitions Department Board Report
	August 2023

	3.9 Department Report_Assistant Director_August_ 2023
	4 Department Report_communications_august_2023
	Community Relations
	Major print/design pieces produced:
	Promotions
	Community Relations news


	4.1 Department Report_Customer Services_August_2023
	4.2 Department Report_Development August 2023
	4.3 Department Report_Facilities_ August 2023
	4.4 Department Report-IT ServiceAug2023
	Status Report
	Overall System Status
	New or Upcoming Items

	4.5 DepartmentReport_MichAve_2023_Aug
	4.6 Department Report_Outreach Services_August 2023
	4.7 Department Report_Superior August 2023
	4.8 Department Report_Whittaker Adult Services_August2023
	4.9 Department Report_Whittaker Youth Services-August2023
	5 New Business_coversheet
	5.1 Roof repairs memo
	5.2 Resolution 2023-29 MA gutter testing
	5.3 MA roof water proposal 8-23
	6.0 Snow removal contract memo
	6.1 Resolution 2023-30 Snow removal
	6.2 Request for snow bid 2023
	6.3 Snow bids 2023
	6.4 AK Ypsilanti Library - 229 - 3yr contract
	6.5 AK Ypsilanti Library - 1900 - 3yr contract
	6.6 AK Ypsilanti Library - 5577 - 3yr contract
	7.0 New laptops memo
	7.1 Resolution 2023-31 Laptops
	7.2 Quotation #0226510230 - laptops
	8.0 HVAC maintenance contract memo
	8.1 Resolution 2023-32 HVAC agreements
	8.2 YPSI - WHITTAKER
	8.3 YPSI - MICHIGAN
	8.4 YPSI - HARRIS
	9.0 Michigan CLASS memo
	9.1 MI CLASS info compilation
	Michlib-l] FW: Investment of Surplus Funds

	9.2 Resolution 2023-33 Michigan CLASS
	9.3 E2 - Investments
	9.4 03.23 - Michigan CLASS Features and Benefits
	03.23 - Michigan CLASS Features and Benefits
	Page 1
	Page 2


	9.5 05.22 - Michigan CLASS Pool Fact Sheet (1)
	05.22 - Michigan CLASS Pool Fact Sheet
	Page 1


	9.6 08.23 - Michigan CLASS Rate Sheet
	08.23 - Michigan CLASS Rate Sheet
	Page 1


	9.7 Michigan CLASS Investment Policy Acceptance Letter Ypsilanti District Library
	9.8 Michigan_CLASS_Registration_Form

	Authorized Signer A: 
	Title A: 
	Entity Name A: 
	Local Government Name Participant: 
	Entity Type: 
	Mailing Address: 
	City: 
	Zip: 
	County: 
	Physical Address: 
	City1: 
	Zip1: 
	County1: 
	Tax ID: 
	Fiscal Year End Date MonthDay: 
	Bank Name: 
	Bank Routing Number ABA: 
	Account Title: 
	Account Number: 
	Bank Contact: 
	Contacts Phone Number: 
	Bank Name1: 
	Bank Routing Number ABA1: 
	Account Title1: 
	Account Number1: 
	Bank Contact1: 
	Contacts Phone Number1: 
	Entity Selection: Type
	Radio Button0: Off
	Radio Button1: Off
	Radio Button2: Off
	Transfer Type 1: Off
	Transfer Type 0: Off
	Transfer Type 2: Off
	Transfer Type 3: Off
	Transfer Type 4: Off
	Transfer Type 5: Off
	Radio Button3: Off
	Transfer Type: Type
	Transfer Type2: Off
	Print First and Last Name: 
	Title: 
	Phone: 
	Fax: 
	Print First and Last Name 2: 
	Title 2: 
	Email 2: 
	Phone 2: 
	Fax 2: 
	Email: 
	Print First and Last Name 3: 
	Title 3: 
	Phone 3: 
	Fax 3: 
	Email 3: 
	Permissions 1: Yes
	Permissions 2: 1
	Title 4: 
	Phone 4: 
	Fax 4: 
	Print First and Last Name 4: 
	Email 4: 
	Title 5: 
	Phone 5: 
	Fax 5: 
	Print First and Last Name 5: 
	Email 5: 
	Print First and Last Name 6: 
	Email 6: 
	Title 6: 
	Phone 6: 
	Fax 6: 
	Permissions 3: Yes
	Permissions 4: Yes
	Permissions 5: Yes
	Name of Public Local Government 2: 
	Subaccount 1: 
	Subaccount 2: 
	Subaccount 3: 
	Subaccount 4: 
	Subaccount 5: 
	Subaccount 6: 
	Subaccount 7: 
	Subaccount 8: 
	Subaccount 9: 
	Subaccount 10: 
	LCSA PAYEE ID 1: 
	LCSA ACCOUNT NAME 1: 
	LCSA PAYEE ID 2: 
	LCSA ACCOUNT NAME 2: 
	Preffered Michigan CLASS Subaccount Name From Above: 
	LCSA PAYEE ID 3: 
	LCSA ACCOUNT NAME 3: 
	Preffered Michigan CLASS Subaccount Name From Above 2: 
	LCSA PAYEE ID 4: 
	LCSA ACCOUNT NAME 4: 
	Preffered Michigan CLASS Subaccount Name From Above 3: 
	Name of Public Agency 3: 
	Print Name - EDGE0: 
	Date - EDGE0: 
	Title - EDGE0: 
	Name of Public Agency 4: 
	EDGE Subaccount Name 1: 
	EDGE Subaccount Name 2: 
	EDGE Subaccount Name 3: 
	EDGE Subaccount Name 4: 
	EDGE Subaccount Name 5: 
	EDGE Subaccount Name 6: 
	EDGE Subaccount Name 7: 
	EDGE Subaccount Name 8: 
	EDGE Subaccount Name 9: 
	EDGE Subaccount Name 10: 
	EDGE Subaccount Name 11: 
	EDGE Subaccount Name 12: 
	EDGE Subaccount Name 13: 


